ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FNANCIAL REPORT =

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 2“2 l

JACOBC. SHADE ...~
PFll-all'}E..] 5 T

Allegany County Finance Office
www.Alleganygov.org







ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
JULY 1, 2020 - JUNE 30, 2021

Prepared by:
The Allegany County Finance Office
Jason M. Bennett, CPA, Director



This page left blank intentionally



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Number
I. INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal .. PSP ix
Summary of Certain County OffiCIalS .....cccemmmmmrnmmsimmmmmrssmssssrisermrstsseraserssssaesemssssssnsasrmses s oo ts s s nas s s rassnsas xiv
Organization Chart .......ceceensererninrinanne retkerreReeamean s arraasarat e o e e e s s e e na R ar et auRarEE s XV
II. FINANCIAL SECTION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Leatresraenssnmna et ara R aemeaearata e teteeRe et AR RIS 2 44 sk R R r e e et nnnm e nne A-1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .....ccoiveniiiiniinrmenimi e emsasssnie s sbasssssannases B-1
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of Net POSIHON. ......ccoiiiucinirninrirrasmnararree st s esstssrssrtrassrssrssrrssmrnrmanensssnssonnssnes C-5
Statement Of ACHVITIES 1...vuverevercrrerreeeameciemamsiriiiasssntassssssassssnanmsrararanss araresarrisassetssrnrarvres C-6
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental FUnds ............cceiimeeiiiinimniicsinrirmenns e oriaasnisansse C-11
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds ................. C-12
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Activities. ... ..covmvveviriiiiiiii e, C-13
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds. .......coveeviiiiiniiniisiiesse s cesrersnsiasnnsvrenes C-15
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds .................. C-16
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary FUnds.......ccccoiiivnver i i smsameeas c-17
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fuduciary Fund..............coiiiniinin e i C-18
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fuduciary Fund ......cooiiiiiiiiiinnainennes C-18
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.........cc.ccvveriiiirniiiinmitisiiianii e, Cc-21
A, IDHORICHON. ... ceviiiiernarernssrrasereeramnm e e rirotias s tnssasatssnnisrsessnasrnntastnnssnnrissanannas Cc-21
B. REPOIHOEEOLLY. ... cuecseueeesssiesesesnesessesnssrsessisssassssnsenseninsensasensansssasssasrscensssns c2
C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements........coucveeieeniiiirrrasinsiseniiesnnssrnsoenes, C-23
D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation..........ccoeaun. Cc-23
E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity.......... C-25
Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements..........coocceeiiiiiiiiiini, C-32
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet
and the government-wide statement of net POSION. .....c..cciiiiiiiii i C-32
B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fumd balances and the government-wide
statement Of ACHVIHES ..vvvvivinnrrroee e iesieer s it res e e rs s na i s s e neeans C-33
Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A. Budgetary Information...........vveiirmmsinmnimiriiicarssissereasieias s renrssrraseensans s aneaananas C-34
B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations.......cuveeeiensiirnsniiinsmimmmaimnniisnnesnes, C-35
C. Deficit Fund EQUILY.....ccocreerericmniirirrrsunres it s ssnssssniiss s sassanssssrasissens i e seasaes C-36
Note 4. Deposits and INVESINENES. ... .v.eeuiviricriarmsrseiiierrss s ree e e e e seriaescs s st s s snassssnans C-36
Note 5. Fair Value Measurement. . .......ivviiiienrmicesiasiossisismasearssessrisriaisssrsssersrsrasssroseesmnssnnnes C-40
Note 6. Property Taxes Receivable............oooore i v e e s s r e e Cc42
Note 7. Other Receivables......coeieeiiiiiicniiiiimeimirien i rstnsnsns sttt s ssssna s sas s s s sann e, C-42
Note 8. Capltal ASSEES.......ccvreererreriieerereireeessuesieresersreesssssoneessseessarese eererrrortivenseeseeanans C-45

il



ALLEGANY COUNTY., MARYLAND
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
II. FINANCIAL SECTION -continued Page
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued Number

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
Note 9. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

A, Due To/From Other FUnds..........cccuveerriinniimimmnii s ennsessisssses e Cc-49

B. Advances and Loans To/From Other Funds...........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e C-49

. TranSfers......coiiiiieiiii i s e e s s e C-50
Note 10. Short=Term Dbl .. ..o e eece e creeeerr v vraernrrreer e ve e amnvarersenrervnnyennnns C-51
Note 11. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Compensated AbSENCes.....vvvriineeriiiinieniiiiacniesiacens C-51
Note 12. Pensions and Retirement Systems.......c...vvernveieiieriieenrocrirensarnrssnrsssesanrssessssnraranens C-55
Note 13. Length of Service Award Progarm (LOSAP) .._...coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et e C-63
Note 14. Governmental Fund Balance Classifications ..........coovvvviiiiniin i neens C-66
Note 15. Postemployment Health Care Plan..........oc.ouioiii i ccr e e e e C-67
Note 16. Tax ADatEIMENTS. .uveu.iuniieiinriiriiiiti s s s e as s sss st s s s sasssrssssseanrene C-74
Note 17. Risk Management. .........c.cvveriircrmunnrmemreereecrnsissnssrennsaeessnnnarannssrassrnsrsensssannssrnns C-76
Note 18. Pending Claims and Litigation. .....viveeiiiinneriiiimssiimiceriissiineriirmssrnaeereriassarnseisasses C-77
Note 19. Contingent Liabilities. ...........cvuireieriiiciiiiire s reeren e ec e einsinnenn s s srnnrrnns C-77
Note 20. Related PArty.........oeuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic i it et iia ot tas sttt s s aasse e ebe st s am e ean s rans C-77
Note 21. Evaluation of Subsequent EVEntS.........cociiciiiiiciiiivsiniieriiissmnmsenies tisrssasresstisnsnasens C-78

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan Contributions, Pension RSL. ..., ... D-3
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan Confributions RSIL.........cccoiiiiiininmniiiieriiiessninsninsieene. D-4
Notes to Required Supplementary Information —.........c..coceiioirriesiiiasmrree e cra s e rer s rnssesrrnne D-5
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund .........covciiiniiiiiiiii i i ccsisi s D-6
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Revolving Building Fund .........c.ocvvevveiooeeieoeasiiivrrneernnvecnneeees D-14
Notes to Required Supplementary Information .......c.eeiiviniiiniiiiiicriiian it iasss s siear s sanenenens D-14

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUGAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES:
Non-Major Governmental Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet...........o. i e e e e enan E-4

Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ............cccceavveniinianee, E-6
Non-Major Enterprise Funds:

Combining Statement 0f Net POSIION. ......ccvririiriiimiriririiirsesrritrsssssarsretrsssasararnserrassssnesanres E-10

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position .............ccccccoooieniee. E-11

Combining Statement 0F Cash FIOWS .....c.cvveriiivsrirvneriricosnsrerisireeriresesssrsnsersesrersisssnssesersssns E-12
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual:

Debt Service FUMA ..o.oo. e e e e e e e ey e e et e e e en e ivaneaaananrnnn E-15

Special Revenue FUDAS ....voiiiveiiiieeniiisisiiiiae s rsssnniersiiiassnnnesstsisssnsaserisassssestnnnsstsinssasarsoans E-16

Capital Project FUndS ... ..o i ci e et cca e e a e e e e r e e nn i neaens E-21
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Project Balances - From Inception to June 30, 2019

Capital Improvement Projects FUDRQ ............ccocismsmsmsmninininnini i imssessse st s s s s s oo nan se e emeemn s enmes E-24

Pay-As-You-Go Capital Project FUNA ... o sa e s s e snn e nan E-24

Public Improvement Bonds Capital Projects Fund e eaememememememtmemtataeeeemememeaee e e s en e enenane E-24

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances By Project-
For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

Capital Improvement Projects FUnd ...........oviverirerssssmssmssssssssrasrrsesssserssrnsn sasass s asassssesnersasasnnransssasss E-28
Pay-As-You-Go Capital Project FUD ......cocoeimmsniiniiniiinrtsmsmrsnininisinsss s s st se s ss e s smns sanmnsass senmnens E-30
Public Improvement Bonds Capital Projects Fund e n et san E-32

iv



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
II. FINANCTAL SECTION -continued Number
COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCTAT STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES continued:
Enterprise Funds Combining Schedules:
Water Districts Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assefs.............ccoeauees E-34
Sanitary Districts Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets......c.ovvveeenen E-36
Agency Fund
Agency Fund - Statement of Changes in Assets and Ligbilities .........cccoveeemriiriienrirenirnssnneermnen E-40
Capitat Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds:
Comparative Schedule By SOUICE......c.oiiiiveiiiieimiiimreriniirorerirarasenrnssesnreisressssesrerisssorsssnssmasens E-42
Schedule of Assets By Function Creerissesesieensnseeserasanassssssasanisinarsstreasananeas D3
Schedule of Changes in Capital ASSets by FUNCHON ........ocerccniiiivecrscsenseecsssamecssssssssmssses s s ensss s srennanssens E-43
III. STATISTICAL SECTION
Table Of COMIENTS. 11uuuiviniiiiiiin it sesotisrine st isasmssamassstbnntisernnsrstebannssnnisntennrssnsnnnssssnnrsissnebabsnns F-1
Financial Trends:
Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal YEars ......cveereriiiriiiisirsiirieiinsieserssrosasssirssnsnsrassesnsenn. E-5
Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiseal Years .. ..o trr vy e e e e F-6
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last TEn YEars .....ovucieriianiriasssinciiisiiisasiomsisaniasassossnssansnns F-9
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years .......c.cccvevierervirerisnrmenirerrisiesrnsiassenss F-10
Revenue Capacity:
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal YEArs ........ovvvvvvenneeernirennsernecnes F-13
Schedule of Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping, Last Ten Fiscal Years ......ceccccecveeeeeeceneeeeen... F-14
Principal Property Tax PAYETS ........cocciiiiiiimiimniiiii it i i s s sca s s s ras s ra s eens F-15
Property Tax Levies and ColleCtions o....vuvuiiieveeriisnimsiisimirmriiissssrsissrrissssssinarrerrressasrasrersssrensseans F-16
Debt Capacity:
Ratios of Quistanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years ..........cccccevvinimrrnririniescrnannneennienssnncrnnnn, F-19
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years .............ocooiiiiiiiiiimiiaiiaaans F-20
Legal Debt Margin Information, Last Ten Fiscal YEars ....c...covvveeniviiirmms i s esnssnrases F-21
Pledged Revenue Coverage, Last Ten FISCal YEaIS .....ccvueveriarioiininsieinmesissiniurnsonsmsestusrnsessisssssasans F-22
Demographic and Economic Information:
Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Calendar Years ... ...cc.ccooiveiiiiivinnrranerruersrennsrenarane F-25
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years ABO «vvuvciiviaiiiiriisanissniasstrrimmsrrrarmssseassassssnnnn: F-26
Operating Information:
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years ............., F-29
Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years .....c.ccccivveeireriiiccrmnenienensrecersnnenenans F-30
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years ............ovovieiimoimcriccireececiceemnen, F-31



This page left blank intentionally,

vi



INTRODUCTORY
SECTION



This page left blank intentionally.

viii



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
Finance Office

701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland 21502
(301) 777-5916 FAX (301) 777-2072

finance@allconet.o www.gov.allconet.org
BOARD QOF COMMISSIONERS
Jacob Shade, President Jason Bennett, CPA, Administrator
Creade V. Brodie, Jr. Pamela S Diaz, CPA, Deputy Director of Finance
David J. Caporale
March 8, 2022

To the Board of County Commissioners and the
Citizens of Allegany County, Maryland

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of Allegany County, Maryland for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2021, including the report of our independent Certified Public Accountants is
presented herewith, This report has been prepared by the Allegany County Finance Department
in accordance with Article 19 of the Annotated Code of the State of Maryland and with Part I,
Chapter 26, Article 26-3 of the Allegany County code. This report is presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Allegany
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of Allegany County has established a comprehensive
internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss,
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County's
financial statements in conformity with GAAP, Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will
be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County's financial statements have been audited by Turnbull, Hoover & Kahl, PA., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used, and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
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based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that
the County's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally
mandated ‘Single Audit’ designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in
Allegany County’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County's MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of Allegany County

Allegany County, located on the Potomac River in western Maryland, was established in 1789. It
is bordered by Pennsylvania to the north and West Virginia to the south, and comprises an area
of 428 square miles. Cumberland, the County seat, covering eight square miles, is at an elevation
of 641 feet. Cumberland is situated approximately 100 miles southeast of Pittsburgh and
130 miles northwest of Baltimore and Washington, D.C. There are seven incorporated
municipalities in the County: Barton, Cumberland, Frostburg, Lonaconing, Luke, Midland and
Westernport.

The County is predominately rural in character. The 2000 census showed a population of
74,930; according to the 2010 Census, the population is 75,087 for the County. The County seat
and principal city is Cumberland, with a 2010 population of 20,859.

Both the executive and legislative functions of the County are vested in the elected, three-
member Board of County Commissioners. Commissioners are elected on a county-wide basis
and serve four-year terms. The Board elects one Commissioner to serve as its President. The
Board is required to meet monthly.

In 1974, the County adopted the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F
of the Maryland Constitution and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this
form of government, the Board has the authority to enact, amend, and repeal public local laws
relating to the incorporation, organization, and government of the county, including, laws
authorizing the issuance and sale of bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each
member of the board has one vote and, except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the
Board is sufficient to enact any bill into law.

In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator of Allegany
County responsible to the Board and charged with the administration of all County affairs. The
Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board, direct and supervise the administration of
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all departments and agencies, and perform all duties enumerated in the Allegany County Code
Chapter 2, Article 1.

County financial matters are administered through the Department ot Finance of the County by
the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance is charged with the administration of the
financial affairs of the County, which generally include the receiving of County taxes, fees and
other revenues and funds of every kind due to the County; the custody and safekeeping of all
funds or securities belonging to or by law deposited with, distributed to, or handled by the
County; the disbursement of County funds; the keeping and supervision of all accounts; and such
other functions as may be prescribed by the Board.

BUDGET

The formulation of the County's Budget is a joint responsibility between the Director of Finance,
who also serves as Budget Officer, and the County Administrator. In addition to formulating the
Budget, the Budget Officer is responsible for the submission to the Board of periodic reports on
their efficiency and economy, and such other duties and functions as may be assigned by the
Board.

The County Budget is comprised of the Operating Budget, which has current year appropriations
for all funds, and the Capital Budget.

Operating Budget

The Operating Budget, which must be balanced, is prepared by the County Administrator and the
Director of Finance on a modified accrual basis and submitted for approval of the Board of
County Commissioners. It is based upon estimated revenues and expenditures for operations for
the ensuing fiscal year that is submitted to the Director of Finance by the department head of
each office, Court, department, institution, board, commission, corporation or other agency of the
County government. The current Operating Budget must contain the following information: (1) a
schedule of all revenues estimated to be received by the County during the ensuing fiscal year,
classified to show the receipts by funds and sources of income; (2} a schedule of the debt service
requirements for the ensuing fiscal year; (3) schedule of the receipts and expenditures for the last
two completed fiscal years, the estimated receipts and expenditures of the current ending fiscal
year and the expenditures recommended by the Board of County Commissioners for the ensuing
fiscal year for each function, activity, and sub activity; and (5) any other material which the
Board of County Commissioners may deem advisable.

Variance reports of actual revenues and expenditures versus budgeted revenues and expenditures
are prepared by the Director of Finance on a monthly basis. Additionally, individual offices,
departments, boards, commissions, and other agencies of the County review on a monthly basis
all events affecting their budgetary estimates and can request the Board for supplemental
appropriations to increase their budgetary allowances. The Board in turn has the power to grant
such increases.
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Capital Budget

The Capital Budget is prepared by the Capital Projects Engineer atter approval by the Review
Committee and then submitted for approval to the Board of County Commissioners. The Review
Committee consists of the County Administrator, the Director of Public Works, the Director of
Finance, the Director of Economic and Community Development, and the County Engineer. It is
based on the need for having certain capital projects undertaken and the availability of financial
resources. Each project is identified with estimated costs and estimated sources of funding. All
funding requests are then applied to a debt affordability model to ascertain if the proposed debt is
within the County's self-imposed debt guidelines.

Adoption of Budget

Before the end of April in each year, the preliminary County Budget is publicly reviewed by the
County Commissioners at an announced time and date. Opportunities are then available at the
next several public meetings for citizens to express their views. After the public hearings, the
Board of County Commissioners may revise the preliminary budget. Line-item details of all
individual departmental and agency requests and proposed appropriations are available. The
Board is further authorized to revise the schedule of anticipated receipts and estimated rates for
general and special taxes. The Budget must be approved and signed by a majority of the
Commissioners by June 30th.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which Allegany
County operates.

Local economy: Allegany County currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and local
indicators point to continued stability. The unemployment rate decreased from June 30, 2020 at
9.7% to 7.4% for June 30, 2021. The region has diverse manufacturing and industrial base of
rail transportation and the manufacturing of window coverings. During regular years, a varied
service provider base gives the area relative stability of the unemployment rate. Major service
providers include health services, government, education, and call centers.

The state and federal government have a major economic presence with the operation of
correctional facilities. The state also operates a 4-year higher education institution that serves
the region offering a variety of undergraduate and graduate programs.

Allegany County has a total labor force of 35,827.

Long-term financial planning: The County adopts a five-year Capital Improvement Program
each year as required by state law.

Major initiatives: The County has taken major steps to improve and expand our broadband
offerings to our citizens, schools and businesses utilizing CARES and ARPA funds as a result of
the global pandemic. The goal will be to allow access to broadband in every corner of the County
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while focusing on enhanced speeds. The County also created Invest Allegany with these funds to
spur capital investment and rehabilitation in our main street communities.

The County has partnered with Fed Ex to start the construction of a new distribution facility in
Mexico Farms that will bring additional jobs to our County.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) last
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Allegany County
for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This was
the twenty-fifth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

I wish to acknowledge the support and interest of the Board of County Commissioners in the
recording and reporting of financial matters. It is of the utmost importance that the accounting
functions have this support. I also want to express my appreciation to Pamela S Diaz, CPA,
Deputy Director of Finance, and the entire staff of the Finance Office for their cooperation,
dedication, and professionalism in the preparation of this report. In conclusion, I want to
acknowledge the efforts of the many County employees that support the accounting function.

Respectfully submitted,

J aso{ZBennett, CPA
County Administrator
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David W, Turnbull, CPA HM‘ ?er , 217 Glenn Street, Suite 200
Richard ]. Hoover, 'CPA Cumberland, Maryland 21502
Bernard B. Kahl, CPA &K m Phone: 301.756.3270

www.thkcpas.com

Board of Allegany County Commissioners
County Office Complex

701 Kelly Road

Cumberland, Maryland

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland (the County), as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Allegany County Board of Education and the
Allegany County Library System, which represent 65 percent, 63 percent, and 72 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the component units. Those statements
were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for the Allegany County Board of Education and the
Allegany County Library System, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
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judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland,
as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages B-1 through B-9, the schedule of changes in
net pension liability, County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and County’s
contributions on page D-3, schedule of changes in post retirement benefits liability, County’s
post retirement benefits contributions, and County’s post retirement benefits investment returns
on page D-4, notes to required supplementary information on page D-5, and the budgetary
comparison information on pages D-6 through D-14 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Allegany County, Maryland’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such-information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America by us and other anditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed
as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 8, 2022, on our consideration of Allegany County, Maryland’s intemal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
Allegany County, Maryland’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Allegany County, Maryland’s internal control over financial reporting

and compliance.

Cumberland, Maryland
March 8, 2022
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Allegany County, we offer readers of Allegany County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have fumished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found at page ix of this report.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of Allegany County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$155.9 million (net position). Of this amount, $183 million is net investment in capital assets and $8
million is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net position). The County’s total unrestricted net
position is ($35.1 million). This total unrestricted net position amount includes ($23.6 million) from
govenmental activities, and unrestricted net position balance from business-type activities of ($11.5
million}.

» The government’s total net position decreased by $5.2 million or 3.2%. The governmental net position
decreased $3.2 million. Business-type net assets decreased by $2 million during the year.

*  As of the close of the current fiscal year, Allegany County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $54.1 million, an increase of $ 9.8 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 33% of the ending fund balance, $17.9 million, is agvailable for spending at the
government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance), $1.2 million is nonspendable, $ 15 million is
restricted, $ 11 million is committed to certain programs and $8.7 million is assigned to specific
programs.

s Allegany County’s govermmental activity outstanding debt increased by $9.5 million (or 30%) duting
the current fiscal year. The County’s business-type debt decreased by $ 1.4 million (or 5%).

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Allegany County’s basic financial
statements. Allegany County’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of Allegany County’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information of all of Allegany County’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Allegany County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revemes and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and eamed, but unused, vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Allegany County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The government activities of Allegany County include general government,
public safety, public works, social services, economic development, and payments to component units (the
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public school system, community college and library). The business-type activities of Allegany County
include the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Loan Fund and Allconet IL

The government-wide financial statements include not only Allegany County itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public school system, community college, library system and a
sewer district. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself . Detail financial information on the component
units can be found on their separately issued financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages C5-C7 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities of objectives. Allegany County, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of Allegany County can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating governments’ near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
s0, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financial decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

Allegany County maintains sixteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the revolving building fund, and the public improvement
fund all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other thirteen governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages C9-C18 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Allegany County has one type of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Allegany County uses enterprise funds to account for its water fund, sewer fund, loan fund, and the
Allconet IT fund

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for all of the
enterprise funds, of which the water and sewer funds are considered to be major funds of Allegany County

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages C15-C17 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support Allegany County’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages C18 of this report.
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Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages C21-78 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning Allegany County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to certain groups of its employees

Also reported as required supplementary information are budgetary comparison schedules for the General
Fund, the Revolving Building and the PIB Fund which are reported as major funds. Required
supplementary information can be found on pages D4-14 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal
service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Cembining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages E4-50 of this report.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
In the case of Allegany County, assets exceeded liabilities by $155.9 million at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of Allegany County’s net position ($182.9 million) reflecis its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. Allegany County uses these capital assets to provide services to cifizens
consequently; these assets are not available for future spending. Although Allegany County’s investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate

these liabilities.
ALLEGANY COUNTY'S NET P OSITKON

GnvemmentnlAc_t_i_vilizs Business-type Activities Total
FY2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY2020 FY2021 FY 2020
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 83323801 $ 68977847 $ (7,243,700) $§ (4460,730) $ 76080,01 § 64,517,117
Capitalassets 94,219,932 95,015,226 122,770,202 123,617,100 _25,990,134 218,632,326
Totalassets 177,543,733 ¥%3,993,073 115,526,502 18,156,370 293,070,235 rZSS,H9,443
Deferred Outflows ofResources 5,329,149 3,949,594 283,706 189,385 561,855 4,148,979
Liabilitics :
Current and o ther liabilitics 11,959,604 17,563,794 3,023,81 3060966 25,982,795 20,624,760
Long-term Babiliies outstanding 83,015,427 74,968,780 26,126,372 27,527,235 114,141,799 02,495,015
Total liahilities 110,975,031 92,532,574 29,149,562 30,588,200 140,124,593 23,120,775
Deferred nflows ofResources 2,629,556 2,962,170 76471 101529 2,706,027 3,063,699
Net position:
Netinvestment in capitalaszets 85,075,724 89,130,241 97,889,075 97,116,540 182,964,799 B6,246,881
Restricted 7841911 1544,097 162,484 194,232 8,004395 1738329
Unrestricted {23,649,340) (18,2264 15) (11,467,378} (8,644,846) {35,115,718) (26871261}
Totalnet position $ 69268295 $ 72,447,923 5 86584179 $ BB666026 $§ 155852476 $  161113,949
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An additional portion of Allegany County’s net position (5%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The County has a negative unrestricted net position balance
of ($35.1 million), The unrestricted net position balance for the governmental activities was

($23.6 million) and the business-type activities have a balance of ($18.2 million).

During the current fiscal year, the government’s net position decreased by $5.2 million. Revenues
increased by $7.2 million to $129.9 million while expenses increased by $ 10.3 million from the prior year
to $135.1 million. The revenue increase was largely due to an increase of § 4.2 million received operating

grants for businesses affected by COVID (economic development) and $ 2.5 million increase in income tax
revenue.

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Govemmental Activities Buysingss-type Activities Total
Revenunes: FY2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY2021 FY209
Program revenues:
Charges forservices H 7,751,507 § 9234638 § 9706482 § 385748 0§ 17457999 § 19,620,386
Operating grants and contributions 13,034,096 8,288,736 - 13,034,096 8,288,736
Capital grants and contributions 3,258,409 2,658,561 160,589 1922922 4,418 998 4581483
Generalrevenues:
P roperty taxes 43,025,595 42,056,853 1183,381 1159,250 44,208,976 43,216,103
hcome taxes 31,138,685 28,719,134 - 31,138,685 28,710,134
Otherbcaltaxes 8,036,528 6,753,500 - . 8,036,628 6,753,500
Franchise taxes 420,472 418,750 420472 418,750
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific pro grams 8,939,389 8939231 - 8.939389 8,939,231
Unres tricted fises - - - -
Unrestricted investment eamings 1635283 1456467 180,380 94 R46 1815,663 1561313
Gain onsalk/retirement of
capitalassets 33,531 - 33,531
Miscellaneous 426,242 601978 - 426,242 601978
Totalrevenues 117,665,316 109,171379 12,230,832 13,562,766 129,897,48 122,734,145
Expenses:
Genéralgovernment 13,980,499 2,883,978 - 13,980,499 12,883,978
P ayment to data processing 109,829 H6465 - . 09,829 M6,465
P ublic safety 30,600,972 27,462,769 - . 30,600,972 27462,769
P ublic works 468,577 14,227 947 H618577 14,227,947
Health 8,019,965 4274237 8,019,965 4,274,237
Socialaervices 1733,627 1,485,169 - 1733627 1485,199
Education 1936310 2,512,606 - 1936310 2,512,606
P ayment to public schoolsyster 3L1538,670 30,734,335 3LB8670 30,734,335
P ayment to ¢ommunitycollege 8,066,856 7.589.498 8,066,856 7,989,498
Recreation, cubture & libraries 691457 L4B 456 691457 1418456
P ayment to public librarysystem 966,545 966,545 866,545 966,545
Conservation ofnaturalresources 404, 82 66,702 - 404,182 66,702
Community development &housing ~ 1589,652 L012,235 1,589,652 1012235
Economic develbbpment 5,801,705 3460,799 - 5,801,705 3,460,799
hiterest on long-term debt 1,103,537 979,034 1,103,537 979,034
Water - - 503344 4,858,397 5033414 4,858,397
Sewer 9,044,813 022151 9,044,813 10,221511
Nursing Home - - - -
Other proprictary funds - - 318,008 151357 318,008 151357
Totalexpenses 120,762,383 19,620,805 14,396,235 15,231,265 B5,158,618 24,852,070
Incrense innet position before trans fers (3,096,067} (449,426} (2,165,403) (L668,499) (5,261470) (2,117 ,925)
Trans fers (83,560 (480,942} 83,561 489,942 - -
Increase (decrease) in net position (3,179,628) (939,368) (2,081,841 (LI78,556) (5,261470) (2,117,925)
Net position, beginning, restated 72,447,923 73,387,291 88,666,023 89,844,582 161,113,946 153,231,87.
Netposition, ending 5 69268295 $ 72447923 § 86,584,175 5 BBS566,026 $ 155852474 $§ 1153948

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased Allegany County’s net assets by $3.1
million. Total revenues increased $ 8.5 million (or 7.8%) and expenses increased § 11.1 million (or 10%).
Key elements of the changes in governmental net position are as follows:

e  Approximately $6 miltion dollars in federal and state COVID relief grants were received

e Expenses increased due to the receipt and expenditures of COVID relief grant awards.
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Business-type activities. The net position of the County’s business-type activities decreased by $2.1
million after transfers. Key elements of the decrease were:
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Revenues decreased $ 1.3 million due to the pandemic-businesses shut down thus used less water. Also
capital grants decreased .8 million due to less projects .

Sewer expenses decreased 1.1 miltion, which was largely due to a decrease in sewer treatments costs.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Allegany County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Allegany County’s governmental fiinds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
Allegany County’s financing requirements. In particular, urassigned may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balance of $54.1 million, an increase of $ 9.8 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 33 percent of this total amount ($17.9 million) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which
is available for spending at the government’s discretion. Other fund balance classifications are;
e Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or legally
required to be maintained intact - $1.2 million
» Restricted — amounts restricted to specific purposes by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation - $15 million.
e Committed — amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the County’s Board of Commissioners. - § 11 million.
e Assigned — amounts which are intended to be used for specific purposes as constrained by the
action of the Board or by the Director of Finance - $8.7 million.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Allegany County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $20 million, out of a total fund balance of $30 million.
As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned find balance represents 22 percent of total
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 33.2 percent of that same amount.

Proprietary fands. Allegany County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net position at year end and the change in
net position during the current year are highlighted below:

Water Sanitary Other
Districts Districts  Enterprise Funds = Totals

Net position:

Net investment in capital asset $37,533,846  $59,548,192 § 807,037 $97,889,075

Restricted for debt service - 162,484 - 162,484

Unrestricted 2,355,234 (15,154,727) 1,332,111 (11,467,384)
Total net position $39,889,08¢ $ 44,555,949 $ 2,139,148  $86,584,175
Change in net position during

the year, increase (decrease) $ (673,006) $(1,755483) § 346,649 $(2,081,841)

Other factors concemning the finances of these three funds have already been addressed in the discussion of
Allegany County’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights



During the year, the original budget was amended and totaled of $ 95.4 million.
Significant changes between the original budget and actual are summarized as follows:

¢  Actual revenue exceeded budgeted revenue by 2.9 million. The increase was largely due to increase in
income tax revenue.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Allegany County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of June 30, 2021 was $183 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, fumniture and fixtures, equipment, vehicles, heavy
equipment and other miscellaneous assets. The total decrease in Allegany County’s investment in capital
assets for the current fiscal year was 3.5 percent (a 4.5 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 1
percent increase for business-type activities).

Additional information on Allegany County’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial
statements, note 8 on pages C-45 through C-46 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County had total debt outstanding of
$66.5 million. Governmental activities debt consists of $41.6 million in general obligation bonds including
premium and $.2 million of debt incurred with creditors for which the full faith and credit of the County
has also been pledged. The $25 million of debt for the business-type activities (revenue bonds) is either
paid from revenues restricted for that purpose or by user fees.

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
General obligation $39,190,000 530,336,000 $ - $ - $ 39,190,000 $ 30,336,000
Notes 188,321 195,341 - 188,321 195,841
Capital leases . : -
Statc loans 66,580 222,236 7,662,931 8,639,651 7,729,511 8,861,887
Federal loans - 17,218,433 17,649,100 17,218,433 17,649,100
Premiym on Bond: 2,177,633 1,411,498 2,177,633 1,411,498
Total F$41,622,535 7$32,165,576 $24,881,145 $26,288,782 $ 66,503,680 § 58,454,326

Allegany County governmental activities retired $ 9.1 million in total during the current fiscal year and
bond proceeds in the amount of § 18.6m were received and debt was incurred. The total debt cutstanding
increased 30 percent.

No new debt was incurred for Business type activities. Business type debt retired during the year was $1.6
million.

In March, 2013, Allegany County’s rating from Moody’s upgraded from “Al” rating to “Aa3”. In March
of 2013 of Standard & Poor’s raised the County’s “A+” bond rating to “AA-", one of the few upgrades
nationally for a governmental entity.

Additional information on Allegany County’s long-term debt can be found in note 11 on pages C-51
through C-55 of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

*  The unemployment rate for June 2021 for Allegany County was 7.4 percent, which decreased from 9.7
percent when compared to June 2020,

All of these factors were considered in preparing Allegany County’s budget for the 2022 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, spendable fund balance in the general fund increased to $20 million. The
use of the unexpended and available fund balance reduced the amount of tax, service charges and fee
increases necessary to have a balanced budget for the 2022 fiscal year

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Allegany County’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Allegany County Finance
Director, 701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland 21502 or e-mail at finance@allconet.org,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
Primary Government __ C Units
Board Allegamy Allegany LaVale
G | Business-type of College of County Sanitary
ASSETS: Activities Activities Toual Education Maryland Library Commission
Currant Assets:
Cash $ 23015676 & 152617 § 23,168,293 § 40,847,662 5 10300711 § 578,768 § 3,030,231
Investments 10,344,384 439,206 10,784,090 203,912 390,648 -
Property taxes receivable 5,040,638 - 5.040,638 - . -
Receivables:
Accounts 343,308 2,720,934 3,064,292 17,802,224 469,081 450,529 256,487
Cither 12,021,029 T34,280 12,755.309 3,897,657 - 133,512
Inteenal balances 11,724,414 (11,724,414) s - N -
Inventary 41,235 2,050 123,285 201,274 204,704 - 198,251
Prepaid expenses . 290,711 192,626 9,796 41,952
Miseellancous 359,605 359,605 - - - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash 10,282,648 189,083 10,471,741 313,800 - 305,618
Investments 10,150,364 10,150,364 18,169,593
Taxes - receivable - 158,993 158,993 - - - 50,476
Recelvables - 3,491 3,491 - - - -
Total current assets 83,323,801 (7,243, 700) 76,080,101 59,141,871 33,752,084 1,429,741 4,016,567
Non-carrent Asscts:
Long tevrn Lnvestment, Market . - . - 4,264,960 - -
Restricted asset-Cagh 21,0672
Net OPEB Asset 271,156
Net Pension Asset 426,395
Land 27,211,512 192,532 27,404,044 7,643,505 1,564,352 413,750
Work In Progress 3,642,768 4,550,502 8,193,270 2,797,588 13,212,886 1,302,706 168,389
Other non-depreciablo assets - . 197,532 153,740 - -
Capital assers subject to
depreciation/amortization 166,306,232 206,685,182 372,991,414 236,902,077 64,192,937 9,081,600 31,182,663
Accumulated depreciation (102,940,580) (88,658,014) (191,598,594) (127.331,114) (39,419,696} (4,818 869) {15,472 360)
Total non-current assets 94,219,032 122,730,202 215990134 119,709 588 43.969.179 5,565 437 17,011 665
Totel Assets 177,543,733 115,526,502 253,070,235 178,351,459 77,721,253 6,995,178 21,097,632
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Cutflows for Pengions-State 3,630,911 283,706 3,914,617 1,314,002 197,339 19,372 245368
Deferred Qutflows for Pensions-LOSAP 1,341,385 1,341,385
Deferred Outflows for OPEB 356,853 356,853 2,210,571 5,945 1,651,623
Total Deferred Qutflaws of Resources 5,329,149 283,706 5,612 855 3,524,573 187.339 25317 1,896,991
LIABILITIES:
Current Lighilities: -
Accounis payable 5,401,978 838,138 5,240,116 3,300,007 1,535,027 461,022 203,632
Accrued wages payable 788,543 48918 837,461 1,600,876 494 252 37,268 22,615
Accrued fringe beaefits paysble 321,503 24,812 346,715 . 184,704 -
Accryed imerest 620,044 75,640 695,634 s 11,825
Current poction of long-term debt:
Bonds and loans 1,562,248 1,623,033 3,205,281 - 235612
Capital leases - 101,724 665,448 ‘
Compensated sbsences 1,377,485 162,921 1,540,406 241,058 789,465 28,046
Due to Agency Fund 565,251 565,261
Due to State of MD Commerce 1,500,000 1,500,000
Due to Trust Fund E - - - -
Uneaned Revemio T.651,196 L 7,651,196 4,414,710 600,392 v -
Accrued health claims 555,200 555,200 8,544,804 253,250 -
Miscelianeous Habilities 2,581,745 249,729 2,841,475 1,843,531 1144791 -
Total current linbifitics 22 959 604 3,023,191 25,982 795 20,946,710 5.06!.!29 498,290 501,730
Non-current lishilities:
Cash advance due general fund (1,200,000) 1,200,000 - - -
Bands and loans 40,040,257 73,070,763 63,111,050 . = 3,819,978
Capital leases E - - 183,914 272,062 - -
Annuity payment Gability 1,741
Termination benafits - 505,972
Net pension linbility-State 19,178,494 1,500,125 20,678,619 6,142,206 865,429 31,133
Net pension Hability-LOSAP 5,216,858 5,216,858
Net OPEB Eability 21,167,587 21,167,587 10,485,511
Post-employment benefits 110,765
Compensated absences 3,612.201 355484 3,967,685 2,039 302 - 85,161 30,665
Total non-current liabilities 88,015427 26,126 372 114,141,799 18,350,933 1645214 227,059 3,850,643
Total Liabilities 110975031 20,149,562 140,124,593 39,797,643 6,713,543 725,349 4,352,373
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows for Pensions-State 1,066,420 76,471 1,142,891 822,221 75,093 5,062 226,994
Deferred Inflows for Pensions-LOSAP 271,398 271,398
Deferred Inflows for OPEB 1,291,738 1,201,738 4,014,903 37,242 3,715,399
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,629,556 76,471 2,706,027 4,837,124 76,093 42 304 3,042 303
NET POSITION
Net investment in
Capital Assets 85,075,724 97,889,075 182,964,799 119,226,418 39,365,709 5,565,437 12,236,852
Restricted for:
Public safety 1,137,564 - 1,137,564 -
Highways 117,796 . 117,796
Education - .
Commumnity development & housing 9,739 9,739 +
Beonomic development .
Capital projects . - 4,384,543
Other purposes 6,575,812 162,484 6,739,296 290,711 17,614,879 456,694 377,168
Unrestricted $__ (23,649340) (11,467,378) (35,116,718) 13,839,593 14148378 _ 230711 _ 2015839
Total Net Position 69268205 § 86,584,175 % 155852470 % 137,741,265 § 71128966 3 6,252 842 §__ 14,629,857

The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Expenses Expenses Program Revenues
Before Indirect After QOperating Capital
Indirect Expense Expense Indirect Expense Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Alloeation Allocation Allocation Services Contributions Coniributions
Primary gnvanment::
Governmental activities:
General government: $ 14637186 & (656687) % 13,980,499 3 953,068 3 511,457
Payment to data processing 109,829 - 109,829 - .
Public safety 29,776,951 - 30,600,972 2,279,605 3,196,261
Public works 14,618,577 14,618,577 1,221,356 1,697,941 441,925
Health & Hospitals 8,019,965 - 8,019,965 . 1,225,851 831,542
Social services 1,733,627 - 1,733,627 26,059 721,531 -
Education: 1,936,310 - 1,936,310 -
Payment to public school system 31,138,670 - 31,138,670 - -
Payment to community college 8,066,856 - 8,066,856 - . -
Recreation, culture & libraries: 691,457 . 691,457 93,907 246,537 992,570
Paynent to public library system 966,545 - 966,545 - -
Conservation of natural resources 404,182 - 404,182 5437 51,739 47,125
Community development and . .
housing 1,589,652 - 1,589,652 1,168,222 674,960
Economic development 5,801,705 5,801,705 3,172,085 4,214,557 270,287
Interest on long term debt 1,103,537 . 1,103,53‘7_ - - -
Total governmental activities 120,595,049 (656,687) 120,762,383 7,751,517 13,034,096 3,258,409
Business-type activities:
Water 4,837,344 196,070 5033414 4,176,794 - 88,895
Sewer 8,584,196 460,617 9,044,813 5,485,782 - 418,241
Other funds 318,008 - 318,008 43,906 - 653,453
Total business-type ectivities 13,739,548 656,687 14,396,235 9,706,482 - 1,160,589
Total primary government § 134.334,507 § ] TI5.1%8,618 % 17457000 ¥ 13034096 T 4418998
Component units:
Board of Education $ 141,788,564 $ 136,225 $ 28,441,160 $ 3,731,313
Allegany College of Md. 37,323,583 10,181,277 20,488,828 7,855,966
County Library 2,295,712 183,456 195,995 1,095,355
LaVale Sanitary Commission 4.916,512 4,124,707 - 9,709
Total cotnponent units $ 186,324,371 $ 14,625,665 $ 49,125,983 $ 12,696,349
General revenues:
Property taxes
Income taxes
Other local taxes
Casino Tax
(Gaming Tax
Highway Users Tax
Hotel/Motel Tax
Recordation/Transfer
Admission/Amusement
Other Tax
Appropriation from Primary Government
Franchise tax
Grants & contributions not restricted
to specific programs

Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale/retirement of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues, transfers and special items
Change in net position
Net position - beginning (restated)
Net position - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Units
Governmenta] Business-Type Board of Allegany County LaVale Sanitary
Activities Activities Total Education College of MD Library Commission
$ (12,515,974) 3 - $ (12,515974) 3 $ $ $
(109,829) : (109,829) -
{25,125,106) - (25,125,106) .
(11,257,355) : (11,257,355) - - =
(5,962,572) (5.962,572)
(986,037) (986,037) : .
(1.936,310) (1,936,310) = -
(31,138,670) . (31,138,670 . .
(8,066,856) - (8,066,856) - - -
641,557 ) 641,557 :
{966,545) . (966,545) -
(299,881) (299,881) -
253,530 253,530
1,855,224 : 1,855,224 - -
(1,103,537 - (1,103,537 - -
(96,718,361) - (96,718,361) - - - -
- (767,725) (767,725) - -
- {3,140,790) (3.140,790) -
- 379,351 379,351 - - -
- 3,529,164 §3,529,164; - - - -
SEE’ZZE’EE!; y f) » - - - -
- {109.479,860) - = -
. - - 1,202,488 - -
: 2 - (816,506) .
- - - - E . (782,096)
- - (109.479,860) 1,202,488 (816,908) (732,096)
e —— ——— B —— — —
43,025,595 1,183,381 44,208,975 - . 431,439
31,138 685 31,138,685 . 815,999
2,560,261 2,560,261
543,429 543,429
1,057,788 1,057,788
824,379 824,379
1,723,827 1,723,827
70,630 70,630
1,256,314 1,256,314
: - - 31,138,670 8,066,856 966,545
420472 420,472 - . . .
8,939,389 . 8,939,389 84,559,639 . 899,487
1,635,283 180,380 1,815,663 54,076 4,019,078 4,203 15,050
. ; 123,221 .
426,242 426,242 298,39¢ 41,332 2,792 1,165
(83,561) 83,561 = 3 - -
93,538,733 1,447 322 94,986,055 116,050,781 12,250,487 1,873,027 1,263,653
(3.179,628) (2,081,841) (5,261,470) 6,570,923 13,452,975 1,056,121 481,557
72,447,923 88,666,023 161,113 945 131,170,342 57,675,991 5,196,721 14,148 300
$ 69268205 T g6584.175 $ 155852470 3 137741265 § 71,128 966 $ 6252842 $ 14620837
—_—————— _———

The notes to the financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2621
American Revolving Other
General Rescue Building Public Improve Governmental
ASSETS: Fund Plan Fund Bond Fund Funds Total

Cash 5 23014526 $ - $ $ 1,150 § 23,015,676

Cash -restricted - - - 10,251,562 31,086 10,282,648

Investments 7,107,095 2,403,187 9,510,282

Investments-restricted 3,287,025 6,863,339 10,150,364

Property tax receivable 5,121,638 - - 5,121,638

Receivables

Notes and loans - - - 173,319 173,319
Other reccivables 6,877,759 294 368 707,777 2,699,018 10,578,922

Due from other finds 6,838,741 8,192,528 5,242,724 20,273,993

Advances to other funds 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000

Inventory - 41,235 41,235

Prepaids - : .

Miscellaneous assets 60,305 - - - 60,305
Total Assets $° 46668348 5 6,838,741  BA%6,800 10059339 $  17A455,058 §  D0AUE 382
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:

Acconnts payable 3 1,953,854 § 591,431 § 850,233 § 1,605,158 $ 5,300,676

Accrued payroll 742,080 10,925 35,538 788,543

Accrued payroll fringe 299,787 4,558 17,558 321,903

Due to other fimds 6,695,896 : 2,918,664 3,717,867 13,332,427

Amounts held in escrow 1,654,722 855,617 2,510,339

Uneamed revenue 371,456 6,838,741 - 614,327 7,824,524

Miscellaneous liabilities 78,907 2,500 - 81,407
Total Liabilities 11,796,702 6,838,741 600,414 3,768 897 7,146,065 30,159,819
Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable revenue 4,823,110 33,043 - 1,239,995 6,096,148
Total Deferred inflows of tesources 4,823,110 - 33,043 - 1,239,995 5,096,148
Fund Balances:

Nonspendable 1,200,000 2 41,235 1,241,235

Restricted 78,907 7,190,442 7,765,429 15,034,778

Committed 1,446,563 7,344,439 1,948,484 11,239,486

Assigned 7,301,025 1,411,742 8,712,767

Unassigned 20,022,041 - (2,097,892) 17,924,149
Total Fund Balances 30,048,536 - 7,844,439 7,190,442 9,068,998 54,152,415
Total Liabilities, defesred inflows of
resources and fund balance $ 46,668348 $§ 6,838,741 BA86896 § 10,959,339 $ 17,455,058 .

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different becanse:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 94,219,657
Other long -term assets are not available to pay cumment -period expenditures
and are deferred in the fimds, 1,530,394
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,506,125
Deferred Outflows for Pension and OPEB benefits 5,329,149
Effect on assets/linbilities due to internal service fund slloccation to
Governmental activitics 4,691 648
Long-term debt, including compensated absences, is not due and payable in
the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds. (46,612,221}
Deferred Inflows for Pension and OPEB benefits (2,629,556)
Other long -term liabilities are not due and payable in the chrrent period
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (42,919316)

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are &n integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES:

Taxes:
Property taxes
Income taxes
Other local taxes

Service charges
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Rent
Miscellaneous

Total Reveniues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Heatth and Human Services
Social Services
Education
Recreation, culture and libraries
Conservation of natural
resources
Community Development
and Housing
Economic development
Miscellansous
Appropriation to
other governments
Payments to component units
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and Human Services
Education
Recreation, culture and libraries
Economic development
Miscellaneous
Total Expenditurcs

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINAN G
Transfers in
Transfers out
Debt issued-Bond Proceeds
Debt issued-Bond Premium
Sale of capital assets

Total Other Financing
Sources and uses

Net change in fimd balances
Fund balance, beginming

Fund balance, ending

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

American Revolving Other
Generel Rescue Building Public Improve Governmental
Fund Plan Fund Bond Fund Funds Total
$ 44,893617 § - % 3 - 3 44,893,617
31,190,781 ‘ - 31,190,781
4,872,995 603,369 5,476,364
542,024 . 542,024
2,313,392 200,000 6,031,690 8,545,082
10,512,416 4,500 5,850,897 16,367,813
1,236,527 - 29,508 873,531 2,139,566
2,213,639 - 256,125 2,469,764
12,14 - 194,694 206,843
107,680 2,044 158,175 267,899
3,334,691 3,334,691
297,820 79,633 401,320 778,773
T 98,193,040 - 3,630,576 1,031,706 338, 3217
10,010,531 . 228,601 10,239,132
24,350,122 - 2,074,154 26,424,276
10,962,679 - 2,078,098 13,040,777
677,207 . 5,163,654 5,840,861
1,529,861 5 1,529,861
528,957 - 528,957
348,993 - 348,993
: - 1,582,428 1,582,428
860,234 1,825,695 365,962 3,051,891
51,157 - 51,157
1,285,190 200,000 1,485,190
39,921,900 360,000 40,281,900
8,984,176 8,984,176
1,103,951 1,103,951
B - - 1,995,516 215,957 2,211,473
: ; 685,384 771,780 1,457,164
- - - 2,040,643 647,866 2,688,509
831,542 831,542
623,484 972,543 1,596,027
. : 102,256 102,256
- 2,560,823 . 2,560,823
T O0336831 - 4386318 5345027 75,682,06 1250413
7,666,209 - (736,142) {4,313 321) (12,344,873) (9.728,127)
32,702 . 19,098,271 19,130,973
(3,550,799) {135,345) (15,293.227) (235,163) (19,214,534)
- - - 17,675,000 17,675,000
897,346 897,346
85,932 460,019 522,427 1,068,378
(3,432,165) - 324,674 3,279,119 19,385,535 19,557,163
4,234,044 (411,468) (1,034,202) 7,040,662 9,829,036
25,814,492 - 8,255,907 8,224,644 2,028,335 44,323,378
$ 30,048,536 S - 7,844,439 § 7,190,442 $ 9,068,997 § 54,152,415

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page C-6)
are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page C-12) $ 9,829,036

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures, However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceed depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay $ 5,963,542

Depreciation (5,516,639) 446,903
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
{i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position. (2,572,213)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds, 333,823

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items,

Debt proceeds (18,572,346)
Payment of principal 8,984,176 (9,588,170)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do net require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in the governmental funds. (1,422,963)
Effect of revenues, expenditures and other changes in net position of the

internal service funds allocated to governmental activities (206,044)
Change in net position of governmental activities (pages C6-C7) 5 53.179,628!

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Current Assats;
Cash:
Cash
Cash - resiricted
Investmerits
Receivables:
Accounts (net)
Taxes - restricted
Accounts {net) - restricted
Other
Due from other funds
Hospital Deposit
Bid Deposit
Inventory
Total current assets
Non-current Assets:
Other receivables
Land
Construction in Progress
Capital assets subject
to depreciation
Accurnulated depreciation
Total noneurrent assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Reaources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pension
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LAABILITIES
Current Lisbilities:
Accounts payabls
Acecrued payroll
Acaorued payroll fringe
Accrued interest
Cuirent portion of long-term debt
Revenue debt:
Bonds and loans
Other loans
Compensated absences
Due to other funds
Health Insurance Rescrve
Miscellaneous liabilities
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent Lisbilities:
Cash advance due to General Fund
Laong term debt:
Net Pensicn Liability
Revenue debt:
Bonds mnd loana
Other loans
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflown of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pension
Total Deferred Inflows of Rosources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2021
Allogany Allegany
County County COther Govemnments] Activity
‘Water Sanitary Enterprise Internat Service
Districts Districts Funds Total Fund
-] $ 132,617 $ s 152,617
189,093 189,093
219,598 219,608 439,206 £34,602
1,404,365 1,307,978 8,641 2,720,984 702
158,993 - 158,993
3,491 - 3,491
2,167 320,427 411,688 734,282
1,731,146 9,707,71% 739,967 12,178,832 4,213 588
299,300
R £.,050 - 82,050
3,357,276 12,141,976 1,160,296 16,659,548 5,348,192
= - 187,331 187,331
125,250 67,282 192,532
952,677 3,597,825 4,550,502
68,300,453 132,874,140 5,510,589 206,585,182
(21,148,899) (62,805,563) (4,703,552) (88,658,014)
48,229,481 73,733,684 994,368_ 122,957,533
31 759 85,875,661 2,154,665 139,617,083 5,348,192
71,863 211,843 - 283,706 .
71,863 31843 - 783,706 -
162,900 659,722 15,516 838,138 101,306
12,444 36,474 48918
1.365 17,447 24,812
27,764 47876 75,640
301,687 1,321,346 1,623,033
24,527 627 25,154
2,807 160,114 162,921
- 23,903,247 23,903,247
555,200
- 248,730 - 249,730
539,454 26,396,583 15,516 26,951,593 656,506
400,000 800,000 1,200,000
368,624 1,131,501 1,500,125
10,219,747 12,851,016 23,070,763
149,674 12,503 - 162,177
75,935 279,548 - 355 A83
11,213,980 15,074,568 - 26,288 54% -
11,753,474 41,471,152 15,516 53,240,141 656,506
16,068 60,403 - 76471
16088 WA = AT -
37,533,846 56,548,192 807,037 97,885,075
- 162,484 - 162,484
2,355,234 (15,154,727) 1,332,111 (11,467,384) 4,601,686
$ 39,889,080 $ 44,555,949 $ 2,139,148 $ 26,584,175 $ 4,691,686
———— ] ——

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROFRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Allegany Allegany
County County Other Governmental Activity
Water Sanitary Enterprise Internal Service
OPERATING REVENUES: Districts Districts Funds Total Fund
Service charges $ 4150479 5 5412077 8 43,906 £ 9606462 8,608,798
Federal Grant-ARC .
Other Agency Revenue
Miscellaneous 26,315 73,705 100,020
Total Operating Revenues 4,176,794 5,485,782 43,906 9,706,482 8,608,798
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 452,653 1,146,080 1,598,733
Employee benefits 259,046 622,690 891,736 8,814,804
Office expenses 82,316 19,584 102,400
Utilities 2,085,525 472,878 6,737 2,565,140
Repairs & mainiénance 161,284 462,953 13,434 837,671
Coniractual services : - -
Treatment costs 2,173,560 2,173,560
Professional services £,804 34,423 21,197 70,424
Materials and supplies 52,985 391,355 26,507 470,847
Insurance ; 143,557 1,770 145,327
Indirect cost 196,070 460,617 - £56,587
Miscellaneous 67,564 24,042 91,606
Depreciation 1,435,161 2,713,875 222779 4,371,815
Total operating expenses 4,729,092 8,728,847 318,008 13,775,946 2,814,804
Operating Income (Loss) (552,298) (3,243,063) (274,102) (4,069,464) {206,006)
NON-OPERATING RE E ENSES):
Real and persenal property taxes - 1,148,731 1,148,731
Interest & penalties on taxes - 53,284 - 53,284
Discounts on taxes - (6,122) - (6,122)
Enterprise/mdustrial exemptions .
Collection fees - (27,443) - (27,443)
Front footage assessments - 14,931 14,931
Interest income 75,371 105,009 180,380
Interest income, debt service g
Interest expense (304,322) (315,966) (620,288)
Gain {Loss) on sale
of capital assets - - -
Total non-operating (expenses) (228,051) 672,424 - T4IATS -
Income (Loss) befors contributicns
and transfers (781,249) (2,270,639) (274,102) (3,325,991) {206,006)
Capital contributions:
Federat grants 88,895 328241 539,761 956,897
State grants 90,000 113,692 203,602
Other - -
Transfers:
Transfers in 19,348 100,013 119,361
Transfers out (3,099) (32,702) (35,801} i
Change in net position (673,006) (1,755.483) 346,649 (2.081,842) (206,008)
Total net position 40,562,088 46,311,436 1,792,499 88,566,023 4,897,692
Total net position - ending § 39,880,080 $ 44,555,949 5 2,139,148 $ 86,584,175 $ 4,591,688

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROFRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERFRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Allegany Allogany
County County Other Governmental Activity
Watar Sanitary Enterprise Internal Service
Cash flows from operating activities: Districts Districts Funds Total Fimd
Cash received from customers £ 4343516 § 6,189397 - 75,645 § 10,608,558 8,626,708
Cash payments for goods and services (2,634,166) (4,265,208) (79,863) (6,979,237) (8,758,777}
Cash payments to employees for services {641,856) (1,788,015) - {2,429.871)
QOther cperating revenues . -
Net cash provided {used) by
operating activities 1,067 494 136,174 (4,218) 1,199 450 (132,065)
from Ital financin; les:
Advances from other finds 6,489,956 14,396,464 (213,495) 20,672,925 8,659,776
Advances to other funds (5,017,266} (14,269,433) 419,890 {18,866,309) (8,521,707)
Transfers from other funds 19348 100,013 119,361 -
Transfers to other fimds {3.099) (32,702) (35,801) .
Net cash provided (used) by
noncapital financing activities 1,492,038 223 945 173,693 1,889,676 132,069
Cash flows from capitat and refated fmamcing activitics:
Proceeds from capital debt
Acquisition and construction and disposal
of capitel assets (2,123,535) (552,481) (B64,128) (3,540,144)
Prineipal paid on capital debt (317.012) (1,302,321} - {1,619,333)
Interest paid on capital debt {303,030) (316,026) - (619,056)
Deferred inlflows/mflows/pension lisb 19,779 46,151
Grant revenues 18,895 418,241 653,453 1,160,589
Debt fees/Other 75371 1,288,390 41,200 1,404,961
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities (2,559,532) (418,046) {159,475) (3,212,983) -
Cash flows from lovesting activities: '
Hospital Deposit
Purchase of investments
Sale of investmonts
Interest on investments - -
Net cash used in investing activities - - - - -
Net incroase (decrease) in cash - (57,927) - (57.927) -
Cash at baginning of the year - 399,637 - 399,637 -
Cash at end of year 5 B £ 341,710 5 - $ 341,710 $ o
Reconciliation of o ng income to met eash pravided Ing activities;
Operating income (loss) $  (552298) $ (3243,063) $ (274102) § (4,069463) (206,006)
Adjustments to resonsile operating inoome to
net oash provided by operating activities:
Drepreciation 1,435,161 2,713,875 2227719 4371815 -
Provision for imcollectible accounts - - -
Change in agsets & Labilities:
(Increase) decrease in reccivables 166,722 703,613 31,739 902,074 17910
(Increase) decrease in inventory . .
(Increase) decrease in prepaid exp
Incrense (decrease) in acc'ts payable (61,934) {19,005} 15,366 (65,514) 56,027
Increase (decrease) in acerued payroll 79,843 (19,245) - 60,598
Total adjustments 1,619,792 3,379,237 269,884 5,268,913 73537
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ 1,067,494 S 136,174 § (4218) $ 1,199,450 {132,069)
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

OFEB Custodial
ASSETS: Trust Fund Fund

Cash $ 494,789 5
Investments, at fair value

Pooled Cash-MACO 3,209,917

Certificates of Deposit
Aceounts receivable 1,316,142
Due from other funds 569,261
Prepaid Expenses

Hospital deposit
Total Assets 3,704,706 1,885,403

LIABILITIES:

Health claim reserves -
Other Liabilities 1,885,403
Total Liabilities - 1,885,403

NET POSITION:

Restricted for OPEB $ 3,704,706 $ -

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OPEB Custodial
ADDITIONS: Trust Fund Fund
Contributions:
Employer contributions 3 991,359
Employee contributions
Plan Members 82,400
Other
Total contributions 1,073,759 -
Other additions:
Interest 46,711
Investment activity 641,574
Less: Investment expense {12,529)
Total other additions 675,756 -
Real Estate collections for other governments - 7,952,691
Total additions 1,749,515 7,952,691
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 1,023,759
Administrative expenses 145
Payments of real estate collections to other governments 7,952,691
Total deductions 1,023,904 7,952,691
Net increase in net position 725,611 -
Net position restricted - beginning 2,979,095 -
Net position restricted- ending $ 3,704,706 [ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

4.

Introduction

Allegany County, Maryland (the County) was established in 1789. The County in 1974 adopted
the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F of the Maryland Constitution
and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this form of government, the Board
has the authority to enact, amend and repeal public local laws relating to the incorporation,
organization and government of the county, including laws authorizing the issuance and sale of
bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each member of the Board has one vote and,
except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the Board is sufficient to enact any bill into law.

In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator the Chief
Administrative Officer of Allegany County responsible to the Board and charged with the
administration of all County affairs. The Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board,
direct and supervise the administration of all departments and agencies and perform all duties
enumerated in the Allegany County Code Chapter 2, Article 1.

The executive offices of the County are located at the County Office Complex, 701 Kelly Road,
Cumberland, Maryland 21502. The County Commissioners’ office telephone number is 301-
777-5911. The County’s website can be viewed at www.allconet.org.

The financial statements of Allegany County have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant County principles,
policies and procedures are summarized in the following Notes to the Financial Statements.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity includes Allegany County’s departments and agencies (the primary
government) and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that is legally separate from
Allegany County.

As a result of its evaluation, the County has concluded that the following are component units of
Allegany County and should be included in the reporting entity:

Blended Component Units — no external governmental units are blended in the combined
financial statements.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

B.

Reporting Entity — continued

Discretely Presented Component Units — the component unit columns of the government wide
financial statements include the financial data of the County’s component units. They are
reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.

1.

The Board of Education — operates the public school system. The Board of Education
may not issue debt without the County’s approval and the County provides a significant
portion of the Board’s funding. The members of the board are elected by the voters of
Allegany County.

The Allegany County Library — operates the County’s Library system. The Library
System may not issue debt without the County’s approval. The County provides a major
portion of the Library’s funding and appoints the members of the board.

The LaVale Sanitary Commission — provides water and waste treatment facilities for
LaVale and surrounding areas. Allegany County has pledged its full faith and credit for
the debt of the LaVale Sanitary Commission. The governing board is appointed by the
County Commissioners. The County provides no operating subsidies to the LaVale
Sanitary Commission.

Allegany College of Maryland — offers two years of higher education to area residents.
The College is fiscally dependent on Allegany County which provides a significant
portion of the funding for its operations and the College can not issue debt without the
approval of the Allegany County Board of Commissioners. The College has elected to
report its financial information in accordance with GASB 34 special-purpose government
type using the business-type activity model.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their
respective administrative offices:

Administrative Offices:
Allegany County Board of Education LaVale Sanitary Commission
108 Washington Street 1 Roselawn Avenue
Cumberland, Maryland 21502 LaVale, Maryland 21502
Allegany County Library System Allegany College
31 Washington Street 12401 Willowbrook Road
Cumberland, Maryland 21502 Cumberland, Maryland 21502
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

C.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of changes in net position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes or
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the govemment-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay the liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the County considers property tax revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days of the year-end and a 90-day availability period is used for all
other general fund revenues. Other major revenue sources subject to accrual are income taxes,
federal and state grants and service charges. All other governmental funds use a 90 day
availability period for revenue recognition. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
the payment is due.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

D.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued

The following is a description of the governmental fund types of the County:
1. General fund — the general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not
accounted for and reported in another fund.

2. Special revenue funds — are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.

3. Capital projects funds — are used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. They exclude those types of
capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds or assets that will be held in trust.

4. Debt service funds — are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government not accounted for and reported in another fund.

The American Rescue Plan Fund (ARP) is used to report the activity associated with funds
received via the Federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, The funds are to be used to
combat the COVID-19 pandemic, including the public health and economic impacts.

Revolving Building Fund is used to report the activity associated with the construction,
operation and maintenance of County buildings used to enhance its economic development
activities. The majority of revenue is derived from operating leases.

The Public Improvement Bond Fund is used to report the activity associated with bond
proceeds. FY 2021 activity includes expenditures for various projects.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water Districts Fund accounts for the activities of twenty-one individual water districts
in various unincorporated areas of the County.

The Sewer Fund reports the activities of sixteen individual sewer districts in various
unincorporated areas of the County.

The Internal Service Fund accounts for the self-insurance activities which provides health
insurance coverage to county departments.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

D.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
The Custodial Fund accounts for taxes billed and collected for the State of Maryland, four
municipalities and seventeen special taxing districts.
The OPEB Trust Fund accounts for the Allegany County Non-Pension Post-Employment
Benefits Plan (ACBP), which provides medical benefits to eligible retired County employees
and their beneficiaries.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated trom the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water
and sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the water and sewer funds are service charges. The water and
sewer funds recognize as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of
connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Assets, liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and net position or equity

1. Deposits and investments
The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the County to invest
surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the United
States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
L

accordance with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or
other obligation for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are
pledged, any bank or banks in the State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any
building and loan association, in interest-bearing time deposit; and/or savings accounts, or in
the Local Government Investment Pool.

Investments for the County, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value.
2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.c., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from
other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade receivables of the enterprise funds are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
The allowance accounts for trade accounts receivable for the water and sewer funds are
comprised of 50% of the balance six to nine months of age and 100% of account balances in
excess of nine months. The allowance account for the loan fund is based on the analysis of
individual accounts the expected ability to collect those accounts. The allowance for
property taxes receivable is one-half of one percent of the annual levy and is based on
historical trends.

As of July 1, 1996, State law mandates owner-occupied residential property owners may
¢lect to pay real property taxes under a semiannual or annual payment schedule. The first
installment for a semiannual payment or the annual payment is due by September 30, and the
second installment of a semiannual schedule is due December 31, of the tax year without
interest. Any unpaid installments after January 1 are charged interest of 1.5% monthly.
Property owners electing to pay real property taxes semiannually may not have delinquent
taxes on the property.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

The assessment of all real and personal property for purposes of property taxation by the
County is the sole responsibility of the State Department of Assessments and Taxation. Real
property is valued at market value and is assessed at 100% of that value. The real estate
assessment of 100% is the result of The Maryland Truth in Taxation Act, Chapter 80 of the
Laws of Maryland of 2000 effective October 1, 2000. Prior to the law change, the
assessment was 40% of the market value. Real property tax rates were adjusted to make the
law revenue neutral. Tangible personal property is assessed at cost, less 10% depreciation
for each year held, to a minimum of 25% of cost. The County granted tax differential rates to
municipalities located within the County in accordance with Article 32A of the Annotated
Code of Maryland which reduced the tax rates for owners of municipal property. The
various tax rates for Allegany County for fiscal year 2021 are as follows:

Real Personal Property
Unincorporated 9750 2.4375
Barton .8740 2.1850
Cumberland .8166 2.0415
Frostburg .8273 2.0683
Lonaconing .8422 2.1055
Luke .8408 2.1020
Midland .8740 2.1850
Westernport .8740 2.1850

3. Inventories and prepaid items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

E. Assets, ligbilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position or equily - continued
4. Restricted assets
Certain revenues of the County’s sewer funds are set aside for their repayment of loans used
to fund construction of sewer systems. They are classified as restricted assets on the balance

sheet because they are limited by State law and debt covenants to the repayment of debt or
construction.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
“
5. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000
(850,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life of two years or more. Such
assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in
a service concession arrangement should be reported at acquisition value rather than fair
value.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
not included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30-40
Sewer/Water Systems 30-50
Other infrastructure 30-40
Furniture & Fixtures 7-10
Vehicles 5-7

Equipment 5-10
Heavy equipment 7-10
Other capital assets 7-50

E. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net positions or equity - continued

6. Compensated absences

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits. All vacation pay and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

A liability is accrued for certain future vacation, sick, and other leave benefits, provided the
following conditions are met:

a. The employer’s obligation relating to employees’ rights to receive compensation for
future absences is attributable to employees’ services already rendered.

b. The obligation relates to rights that vest.

c. Payment of the compensation is probable and not contingent on a specific event
outside the control of the County or the employee.

d. The amount can be reasonably estimated.

County employees earn vacation time depending upon their length of service and are eligible
to use this time in the year in which it is eamned. Vacation time may be carried from one year
to the next, but may not exceed 200% of the annual accrual at any point in time. Vacation
time earned when the 200% ceiling has been reached is accrued as sick time and remains as
such. All vacation time outstanding and earned upon leaving County service is paid to the
employee at the current salary level.

County employees earn fifteen sick leave days per year with no accumulation ceiling. It is
the policy of the County to pay for up to 120 days, if eamed, of sick leave accumulated, upon
the retirement of most employees. Any reduction in the liability for compensated absences is
charged to the fund and function where the employee’s time was charged which historically
has been the general fund or the transit fund for the governmental funds and the Sanitary
Districts for the enterprise funds.

At June 30, 2021, compensated absence liabilities for Allegany County are summarized as
follows:

Curmrent Long-term Total
Portion Portion Liability
Total Governmental Fund Types $ 1,377485 $ 3,612,201 $ 4,989,686
Sanitary Districts 162,921 355,483 518,404
$ 1,540,406  § 3,967,684 7 § 5,508,090
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

7. Long-term obligations:
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund fype
statement of net position. Bond issuance costs incurred in connection with the issuance of
debentures are expensed in the year the cost is incurred.

8. Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the MD. State Retirement plan and additions to/deductions from the
retirement plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by the retirement plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

9. Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position:
Government-wide and proprietary fund net position are divided into three components:

e Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on their use
either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (2) law through enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position — all other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets™.

10. Governmental Fund Balances:
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:

e Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

» Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of federal or
state laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

e Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. The Board of County
Commissioners is the highest level of decision-making authority for Allegany County.
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions
approved by the Board of County Commissioners. Funds were committed in
accordance with Resolution # 87-12 , # 11-16 and #13-23 and #10.17

e Assigned — Amounts that are constrained by the Board of County Commissioners or
the Director of Finance, authorized agreements via board motion, for a particular
purpose.

o Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

11.

12.

13.

The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In
other governmental funds it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance
amount. However, in governmental funds other than the general fund, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned
to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in the
fund.

Because different measurement focuses and bases of accounting are used in the government-
wide statement of net position and in government fund statements, amounts reported as
restricted fund balances in governmental funds may be different from amounts reported as
restricted net position in the statements of net position.

Use of Restricted Resources:

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources
(net position), the County’s policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources
and then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the County’s policy is to first
apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive
classifications — committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund
balances.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. See Note 12,13 and 15 for detail of deferred outflows and
deferred inflows recorded in the entity-wide financial statements.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The County has only one type of item, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available.
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e e —————

The governmental funds reports unavailable revenues from the following sources:

NonMajor
General Fund RBF Governmental Funds Total

Property taxes 4,590,023 4,590,023
Public Safety Grants 31,753 31,753
Public Works Grants 103,830 1,229,974 1,333,804
Social Services Grant 54,514 54,514
State RBF Grant .
EMS fees 42,990 42,990
Other 33,043 10,021 43,064

Total - 4,823,110 33,043 1,239,995 6,096,148

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
Government-wide statement of net position. The governmental fund balance sheet includes a
reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and net position — governmental
activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term debt, including compensated absences, is not due and

payable in the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds.” The details of this
$46,612,221 are as follows:

“

Bonds payable (including premiums) $41,367,633
Notes payable 188,321
State loans 66,580
Conpensated absences 4,989,686

Net adjustments to reduce fimd balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activites $46,612,221
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Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements-continued

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances—total governmental funds and
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”
The details of this $ 446,903 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $5,963,542

Depreciation expense (5,516,639)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in find balances -
total governmental finds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities. $446,903

Another element of that reconciliation states the “The net effect of various miscellancous
transactions involving capital assets (i.., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net
position.” The details of this ($ 2,572,213) difference is as follows:

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is

reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale

increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from

the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. (2,572,213}

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances—total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental act
(2,572,213)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.”

The details of this § (9,588,170) difference are as follows:

Bond Proceeds (18,572,346)
Principal repayments:
Principal payments 8,984,176

Net adjustments to reduce find balance - total governmental
fimds to arrive at net position - governmental activites ($9,588,170)
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Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this ($ 1,422,963) difference are as follows:

Compensated absences (8117,239)
OPEB Expense 252,582
Pension Expense (1,552,014)
Other Misc expense 124,505
Accrued interest adjustment, net (130,797)

Net adjustments to decrease net changes in find balances -
total governmental finds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities. (81,422,963)

Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted for all General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Project
Funds. All governmental fund budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Encumbrances and appropriations generally lapse at year-end
and are treated as expenditures in the year the liability is incurred. Budgets are adopted for the
Enterprise Funds, though not required, on a revenue and expenditure basis to permit monitoring
of the financial activity. Budgets to actual comparisons are presented in this report for all the
primary government’s major governmental fund types.

Budget-to-actual comparisons for the non-major governmental funds, though not required, are
presented as supplementary information Budget-to-actual comparisons are not required for
component units and the enterprise funds and are not presented.

The County uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Prior to January 15, the County Administrator submits recommended budget
guidelines to the Board of Commissioners for their approval.

2. After receiving approval of the budget guidelines, the County Administrator and the
Director of Finance meet with the various departments and agencies to explain and
distribute the guidelines.

3. The County Administrator and the Director of Finance compile all budget requests;
after making departmental and agency review of the requests, a recommended
budget is presented to the Board of County Commissioners for review and approval.

4. A public hearing is held to obtain public input and opinion of a preliminary budget.

5. Under Local Code Home Rule, the property tax rate must be set by June 30, and by
that time, the budget is publicly adopted by the County Commissioners.

6. During the year supplemental appropriations shall be made by public approval of
the Board of Commissioners. No supplemental appropriations were made in FY 21.
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Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - continued

7. During the year, budget amendments within a department are approved by the
Director of Finance. Budget amendments between departments and/or funds
require Commissioner public approval.

8. Legally, total expenditures for all individual governmental funds may not exceed
the total budget for a particular fund except for emergencies, state-mandated
programs, or by approval of a majority of the Board of Commissioners.

9. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year for all funds, except the Capital
Project Funds, and certain federal grants that do not have a year-end date of
June 30.

10. Budget monitoring is the responsibility of the Finance Department and the
appropriate department head.

The County has elected not to employ the use of encumbrance accounting for financial reporting
purposes. The County utilizes an encumbrance-based accounting system for internal reporting.
However, these encumbrances lapse at year-end. Accordingly, the County does not prepare
budgetary basis statements of revenues, expendifures and changes in fund balance.

B.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2021, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds
(the legal level of budgetary control):

Fund Excess
Block Grant Fund 425,417
Community Develop & Housing Fund 924,065
Fire and Rescue Funds 29,498
Sheriff Drug Task Force Fund 120,661
Narcotics Task Force Fund 111,038
Capital Projects Fund 827,752
Public Improvement Bonds Fund 4,070,027
Debt Service Fund 7,009,742
Coal Haul Rds Fund 62,264
Pay Go Fund 241,534

o All expenditures over budget were funded by revenues that were not budgeted, debt
proceeds and unreserved fund balance
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Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability -continued

C. Deficit Fund Equity
At June 30, 2021, two governmental funds, the Capital Projects Fund had a deficit fund balance
in the amount of ($2,037,882), and the Block Grant Fund had a deficit fund balance in the
amount of ($ 18,775).

Note 4. Deposits and Investments

Allegany County Primary Government:
As of June 30, 2021, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturity in Months
Fair Less Greater

Investment Type Value Than 1 1-6 612 than 12
Statement of Net Position

Group Annuity Fixed $ 3287025 $ 3,287,025

US Treasury Bills $ 6,863,339 $ 6,863,339

Certificates of Deposit 10,775,591 10,775,591

Total Stot of Net Position § 20925955 § 20925955 § - 8 - 8 -

OPEB MACO Trust $§ 3,200,916 $ 3200916 §

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates,
the County’s investment policy prohibits investments that mature more than 2 years from the date of
purchase. However, the County may collateralize its repurchase agreements using longer dated
investments. Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding 2 years if the maturity of such
investments is made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds.

Credit Risk - The County investment policy and State law requires collateralization of 102% of fair
value of investments. ARTICLE 95, Section 22of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the
County to invest surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the
United States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in accordance
with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or other obligation for the
payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged, any bank or banks in the
State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any building and loan association, in interest-
bearing time deposit; and/or savings accounts, or in the Local Government Investment Pool. Allegany
County is in compliance with its investment policy and State law having all deposits and investments
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#

(except for the group annuity fixed investment) collateralized at 102% of fair value with bonds or other
obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the United States.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The County investment policy limits investments of the portfolio to 5%
of Bankers Acceptances, 5% to money market mutual funds, and 5% to commercial paper. The County
investment policy complies with Maryland state law limits.

Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not
covered by depository insurance and the deposits are:
a. Uncollateralized
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
c. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or
agent but not in the depositor-government’s name

The County carries its investments at fair value. Investments consist mostly of nonparticipating
contracts (nonnegotiable certificates of deposit) with maturities of less than one year.

The Group Annuity Fixed investment is uncollateralized in the amount of § 3,287,025.

The MACO Trust investment is an “Other Post-Employment Benefits” membership trust established to
help local governments invest current funds toward future obligations for retiree health insurance, a.k.a.
“other post-employment benefits.” Both county and municipal governments, and other county-funded
entities (like libraries and community colleges), are welcome to join the MACO OPEB Trust.

Investing through an entity like the MACO Pooled OPEB Trust offers governments an opportunity
under state law to invest funds in a manner suitable for longer term assets, and outside the laws
generally governing “public funds.” The Trust arrangement ensures that the funds may not be extracted
for purposes other than the intended benefits, making that distinction clear. The trust shall be invested
consistent with Section 17-102 of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as
amended from time fo time.

Overall, the Trustees have adopted a fairly conservative mixed portfolio, with 65% in equities and 35%
in fixed income investments. The target rate of return for the Trust is 7% annually, set generally in
keeping with industry trends given in the diversified portfolio construction. Further information
including audited financial statements is available at www.mdcounties.org/index.aspx?nid=250.

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units:

Allegany County Board of Education
Cash deposits — At year-end, the carrying amount of the Board’s deposits was

$40,847,662 and the bank balances were $41,836,861. Of the bank balances, $387,769
was covered by depository insurance and $41,449,092 was covered by collateral.
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Investments — All investment revenue is recorded in the fund that held the investment.
Market values are not materially different from carrying values for these investments. Of
the Board’s investments, all was covered by federal depository insurance. As of June 30,
2021, the Board of Education had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturity (in months)

Less than More than
Investment Type Total 1 1-6 6-12 12
Certificates of Deposit $ 4597329 § 45340 $ 181,693 $ 12,286 $ 220,010

$ 459320 P§ 45340 $ 181,693 $ 12,286 FS 220,010

Allegany County Library System
Cash — Risks and Policies
As of June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the Library’s deposits was $578,768 and the
bank balances were $ 774,225.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the
Library’s deposits may not be returned of the Library will not recover collateral securities
in the possession of an outside party. The Library’s policy requires deposits with
financial institutions to be fully secured by collateral. The Library’s cash balances at
financial institutions at June 30, 2021 are fully collateralized with securities held by the
Library’s agent in the Library’s name.

As of June 30, 2021, the Library had the following investments and maturities;

Investment Maturity
Less than 90 Days Over Credit

Investment Type Total 90 Days to One Year One Year Rating
U.S. Treasury Bonds $ 30,444 $ - $ 30444 N/A
Other Federal Government

Obligations 08,058 - 98,058 N/A
Investment in MD Local

Government Fund Pool 262,146 262,146 - - AAA

$§ 390,648 $ 262,146 $ - $128,502

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units:
Allegany County Library System (Continued)
Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. The Library investment policy specifies with the exception of U.S.
Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 5% of Bankers acceptance, 5% of
money market mutual funds and 5% to commercial paper.
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Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk
of adverse interest rate changes. The Library policy provides that to the extent
practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows. Unless matched to a
specific cash flow, the Library will not directly invest in securities maturing more than
onc year from the date of purchase. Reserve funds may be invested in securities
exceeding one year if the maturity of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as
practicable with the expected use of the funds.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the
Library’s investment in a single issuer. With the exception of U.S. Government
securities and authorized pools, the Library may not invest in no more than 5% of
Bankers Acceptance, 5% of money market mutual funds, and 5% of commercial paper.
The Library’s investment policy complies with Maryland State Law limits.

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the
Library will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in
the possession of an outside party. Library policy provides that investment collateral is to
be held by a third party custodian with whom the Library has a current custodial
agreement in the Library’s name. All of the Library’s investments are collateralized with
securities held by the Library’s agent in the Library’s name. The Library is in
compliance with its investments policy and State law having all deposits and investments
collateralized at 102% of market value with bonds and other obligations secured by the
full faith and credit of the United States.

LaVale Sanitary Commission
Cash deposits — At year-end, the carrying amount of the LaVale Sanitary Commission’s

cash deposits was $3,356,921 and the bank balance was $ 3,419,014. Demand deposit
funds are insured by FDIC and NCUA up to $ 250,000 per institution. Government
securities are pledged to secure the deposits in the repurchase investment account. These
securities are part of a pool which is held in the bank’s name. The commission held no
investments at year end.

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in an event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2021, $ 3,169,009 of the government’s
bank balance of $ 3,419,014 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and collateralized by Government Securities held by the Counterparty, but not
in LaVale Sanitary Commission’s name $ 3,187,977

Allegany College
Cash deposits — At year-end, the carrying amount of the Allegany College’s, not

including its component units, cash deposits was $ 141,951 and the bank balance was
1,008,069.
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g |

The bank balance was fully collateralized with securities held by the college’s agent in
the College’s name.

Investments - As of June 30, 2021, the College had the following investments and

maturities:
Less Than 90 Days
Investment Type Total 90 Days To One Year
Certificates of deposit $ 203912 $ - $ 203912
Maryland Local Government
Investment Pool 9,768,522 9,768,522

$ 9.972,434 $ 9,768,522 $ 203912

The College invests in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP) which
is administered by PNC Bank. The external investment pool is treated as a 2a-7pool.
The MLGIP has a Standard and Poor’s rating of AAAm and is administered by the State
Treasurer. The MLGIP fund maintains a $ 1.00 per share net asset value and is stated at
cost, which is the same as fair value.

Note 5: Fair Value Measurements

L~
Fair values of the County’s assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2021 are as follows:
Fair Value Measurements at

Reporting Date Using:
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value devel 1) (Level2) (Level 3)

June 30, 2021
Group Annuity Fixed § 3287025 $ 3,287,025 $0 50
Certificate of Deposit 6,863,339 6,863,339
US Treasury Bills 10,775,591 10,775,591
OPEB MACO Trust (a) 3,209,916 -
Total $24,135,871 $20,925,955 $o $0
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#

(a) In accordance with Subtopic 820-10 certain investments are measured at net asset value per
share (or its equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
amounts presented in the table above are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value
hierarchy to the line items presented in the statements of financial position.

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the County has the ability to access.
Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include the following:
- Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
- Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets
- Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability
- Inputs that are derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable
market data by correlation or other means
If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2021:

-Certificates of deposit are valued based on net asset value at year-end.

-Fixed income securities are valued at market quotations obtained from published sources.
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The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although management believes
its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no significant transfers in or out of levels 1,2 or 3.
Transfers between levels are recognized in the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period.

Note 6. Property Taxes Receivable

Property taxes are levied each July 1 and due on or before September 30 of that year. Unpaid property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of October 1. Property tax assessments are
performed by the State of Maryland on which the County bills and collects its property taxes.

Property tax receivable at June 30, 2021 was $5,121,638 (before an allowance of $ 81,000) of which
2,843,561 were current year’s taxes receivable and the balance of $2,278,077 was prior years® unpaid
taxes.

Note 7. Other Receivables

Receivables, other than property taxes receivable and loans to the County’s enterprise funds, as reported
in the Statement of Net Position as of the year end for the County’s individual governmental major
funds, non-major funds and in the aggregate, consist of the following:

Non-major
Governmental General PIB RBF Governmental Internal
Activities: Fund Fund Fund Funds Svc Fund Total
Receivables: '
Interest $ 89,221 $ -] 8 - ] 89,221
Income taxes 3,758,731 - - 3,758,731
Other taxes 451,167 32,240 483,407
Current:
Accrued revenues 4,020,044 707,777 294 368 2,666,777 702 7,689,668
Loans, notes - 169,989 - 169,98¢
Leases, capital
Long-term:
Accrued revenues - . -
Loans, notes - 173,319 173,319
Leases, capital - -
Total receivables $8,319,163 $ 707,777 $ 464,357 $ 2,872,336 |8 702 1§ 12,364,337
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Receivables as reported in the Statement of Net Position at year end for the County’s individual
enterprise major funds, non-major funds and in the aggregate, consist of the following:

Business-type Water Sewer Non-Major
Activities: Districts Districts Enterprise Funds Total
Receivables:
Accounts $ -
Accounts, other 2,167 320,427 24,880 347474
Accounts, trade 1,738,713 1,770,049 8,641 3,517,403
Less allowance (334,348) (462,071) - (796,419)
Net accounts, trade 1,404,365 1,307,978 8,641 2,720,984
Accounts, restricted 162,484 - 162,484
Less allowance - - -
Net accounts, restricted - 162,484 - 162,484
Loans - - 736,808 736,808
Less allowance - - {350,000) (350,000)
Net loans - - 386,808 386,808
Total receivables $1,406,532 $1,790,889 | $ 420,329 | $ 3,617,750

Leases — Operating and Capital:

The County, as part of its economic development efforts, has constructed numerous shell
buildings which are rented (operating leases) to various employers. The amount of future
minimum non-cancelable operating lease payments due each of the next five years and beyond is
as follows:

Operating Leases

Fiscal Year M inimum Payments
2022 2,946,232
2023 2824123
2024 2,810,658
2025 2,848,045
2026 2,911,810
Totals 3 14,340,568

The gross value of buildings with operating leases at June 30, 2021 is $20,593,101
and the accumulated depreciation is $ 11,709.984

Unearned Revenue:
Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental

funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but
not yet earned.

C-43



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 7. Other Receivables-continued

At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows:

Unearned revenue recorded as a receivable which are not considered
available to liquidate liabilites of the current period:

Unearned grant revenue $7.453,068
Unearned ticket revenucwther 198,139
Long term housing loans receivable 173,317

$7,824,524

Loans receivable;

The following table summarizes the loan receivable balances in the County Loan Fund at

June 30, 2021:
Source Balance
Entity of funds June 30, 2021
County Loan Fund loans:
Western Maryland Scenic Railroad Gen Fund/PIB of 1988 | § 250,000
Aeon Technologies RBF Fund $ 239,546
YMCA General Fund 100,000
Flood Wall Loan-Cintas General Fund 3,797
Employec loan General Fund 33,465
WebRestaurant Loan RBF Fund 30,000
City of Frostburg RBF Fund 80,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts (350,000}
Sub-total $ 386,808
Allconet I1 Fund loans:
TWR loan General Fund 24,880
Total
Total $ 411,688

The County has established a Loan Fund to account for the long-term receivables due

from other entities and the proprietary funds. Except for the payments received from fire
companies, which is a revolving pool, the cash receipts are transferred to the General Fund, as
they become available.
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 for the primary government was as follows:

Primary Government: Beginning Transfers Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases In(Out) Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 265625659 $ 653,127 $ @274) $ 27211512
Workin Progress 3,779,250 3,034,122 (3,170,604 3,642,768
Totalcapital assets not being depreciated: 30,341,909 3,687,249 4.274) (3,170,604 30,854,280
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 65,070,225 35,198 (2,329.464) 2,994,766 65,770,725
Infrastruciure 54,996,930 - 54,996,930
Furniure & Fixtures 1,054,110 - 1,054,110
Equipment 22,047,556 241,609 175,838 22,465,003
Vehicles 14,290,081 1,394,070 (864.,951) 14,819,200
Heavy Equipment 5530909 632,105 (214,5719) 5548435
Other Capital Assets 1251821 1,251,821
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 164241632 2302982 (3,408,994) 3,170,604 166,306,230
Less accurmulated depreciation for:
Buildings (33,117,388) (1,720,054) 1,024,248 (33,813,194}
Infrastructure (34,935,851) (820,075) (35,764,926)
Furniture & Fixtures (1,021,063) (5.718) (1,026,781)
Equipment (14.524.237) (1,688,213}, - (16,212,450}
Vehickes (10,795362) (893,176) 858473 (10,830,065}
Heavy Equipment {4,296,865) (285,823) 214,570 (4,368,109)
Other Capital Assets 50 47,502 052
Total accumulated depreciation (99,568,316) (5,469,561} 2097300 - {102,040,582)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 64,673,316 (3,166,579 (1,311,694) 3,170,604 63,365,648
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 95015224 § 520670 $ (1315968 3 - $ 94219928
[Primary Government: Begmming Transters Fndng
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases In(Qut) Balnce
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 3 192532 $ - 5 - $ 192,532
Work in Progress 4320974 2454943 (2225415 4,550,502
Totalcapital assets not being depreciated: 4513506 2,454,943 - (2,225415 4743034
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 256346 256,346
Infrastructure 190,445,559 162,083 2205415 ¥ 192833055
Furniture & Fixtures 17681 17,681
Equipment 6,689,794 907,884 - v 7,597,677
Vehicks 1,633,033 (24,840) 1,608,193
Heavy Equipment 1,537421 (2.800) 1,534,621
Other Capital Assets 2,837,063 | - - 2,837,063
Total capitalassets, being depreciated: 203416897 1,069,967 27640)] 2225415 206,685,182
Less accunmilated depreciation for:
Buildings (198427) 6,154) (204,581)
Infrastructure (72,849,792) (3,806,302) (76,656,004)
Furniture & Fixtures (17,680) (17,680)
Equipment - {6,264,286) (285,514) = (6,549,800)
Vehicles (1438,200) (71,159) 24,840 (1484,519)
Heavy Equipment (1,249,265} {113,126) 2,800 (1,359,591)
Other Capital Assets (2,296,191) 0,576) - - {2,385,767)
Total accummlated depreciation (84,313,841) 4,371,831) 27,640 - (88,658,014)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 119,103,056 (3,301,864), 0 2225415 118,027,168
Business-type activities capital assets, net § 123,616,556 $ @462 $ - $ - § 122770202




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 8. Capital Assets - continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government, as reported
in the statement of activities, for the year ended June 30, 2021 as follows:

Govemnmental activities:
General government $ 145,702
Public safety 2,553,214
Public works 1,352,081
Health 218,440
Social services 89,434
Recreation, culture and libraries 161,597
Community development and housing 7,224
Economic development 988,947

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $35,516,639

Business type activites:

Water districts $ 1,435,161
Sewer districts 2,713,875
Allconet I 222779

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $4,371,815

Construction Commitments

The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2021. The projects include industrial
park infrastructure and water quality and service improvements. At year end the County’s
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Frostburg Tech Bldg 1,202,330 2,045,319
LaVale Library Rehab 1,167,788 2,728,689
B Green Water Project 426,832 343,904
Brant Rd Project 211,605 87,618
Allegany High School 200,000
Barton Park Shell Building 3,962,266 30,000
Totals 6,970,821 5,435,530

Funding for all projects is a combination of federal and/or state grants and a local share funded
by long-term debt. Funding for the projects was in place prior to the commencement of
construction.
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Note 8. Capital Assets - continued

Discretely Presented Component Units:
Capital asset activity for the Board of Education of Allegany County for the year ended June 30,
2021 (not including component units), was as follows:

Board of Education Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 7643505 ] - $ 7643505

Work in process 289436 2,520487 (12,335) 2,797,588
Totalcapital assets not being depreciated: 7932941 2520487 (12,335) 10441,093
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land Improvements 10,969,036 33,519 (533,950) 10,468,605

Buidings & Improvements 201,925,395 404386 1454 202331,235

Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles 14, 1,640,688 {452540) 24,1 7
Totalcapital assets, being depreciated: 235,808,920 2078593 (985436) 236902077
Less accumulated depreciation for;

Land Improvements (5,081,711) (547877) 340,393 (5:289,195)

Buiklings & Improvements (100927,081) (4,305.358) 10,667 (105,221,772)

Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles (16,510,263) (1245654 435,770 17320,147)
Totalaccumulated depreciation {122,519,055) (6,098 889) 786,330 (127,831,114
Totalcapital assets, being depreciated, net: 113,289 865 (4,020,296) (198,606) 109,070,963
Governmental activitics capital assets, net § 121222806 $ (1499809 §$ (210941 119,512,056
Board of Education Beginning Endmg
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Degreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Work in process $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Furniture, Equipment & Vehickes 483,946 - 483946

Less accumulated depreciation (481,564) (2,382) (483,946)
Totalcapital assets, being depreciated, net: 2382 (2382) - -
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 2,382 3 (2382) § - 3 -

Capital asset activity for the Library of Allegany County for the year ended June 30, 2021

Library Beginning Ending
Governmental activitics: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Nen-deprecmble assets:

Construction in Progress 5 203351 § 1,099,355 § 1302706
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings & Improvements 5 4958615 h] - $ 4958615

Furniture & Equipment 933032 43,138 976,170

Vehicles/Bookmobile 91,036 - 91,036

Library Books 2900286 203,227 @7,734) 1055.779
Totalcapital assets, being depreciated: 8882960 246,365 (CERED) 9,081,600
Less accumnlated depreciation for:

Buiklings & Improvements {1,316415) (99,460) - (1415.875)

Furniture & Equipment (692607 (46,238) (738,845)

Vehicles/Bockmobile (55999 (6,545) - (62,539)

Library Books (2465489) (183,855) 47734 (2601,610)
Total accumulited depreciation 4.530,505) (336,098) 47,734 (4818,869)
Totalcapital assets, being depreciated, net: § 4352464 $ (89733 $ - $ 4262731
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 4555815 $ 1009622 $ - $ 5565437




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNEK 30, 2021

Note 8. Capital Assets - continued

Discretely Presented Component Units - continued.

Capital asset activity for Allegany College of Maryland and its component units for the year
ended June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Allegany College of Maryland Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1564352 $ - $ - § 1564352
Library Collections 143,590 10,150 - 153,740
Workin Progress 7819386 8,222 815 (2.829.815) 13,212,886
Total capital assets not being depreciated: 9,527328 8,232,965 C829815)| 14.930,978
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 48495222 2,941,005 - 51,436,227
Equipment 10,945,779 1460373 (@387017| ¥ 12019136
Awniliary Equipment 152,649 152,649
Library Books 650285 9,925 (75,285) 584,925
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 60243935 4411303 (462302) 64.192.937
Less accumulated depreciation : (37,842.,490) {2,038,142) 460936 {39419,696)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 22.401,445 2,373,161 (1,366) 24,773,241
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 31929273 $ 10,606,126 S (283L181)] § 39704219

Capital asset activity for the LaVale Sanitary Commission for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as
follows:

LaVale Sanitary Commission Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being deprecmted:

Land $ 402,190 3 11,560 $ - $ 413,750

Work in Progress 162,548 131,040 (125,199)] 168,389
Total capital assets not being depreciated: 564,738 142,600 {125,199) 582,139
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buiidings 807,388 - - 807,388

Infrastructure 28,864,640 132,483 28997,123

Machinery, Vehicles & Equipment,

Office Furniture and Egipment 1,324 437 55420 (1=7.0_5_). 1,378,152

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 30996465 187,903 (1,705) 31,182,663
Less accomulated depreciation for: (14,892.909) {581,156) 1,705 (15472,360)
Total capitat assets, being depreciated, net: 16,103,556 (393,253) 0 15,710,303
Business-{ype activities capital assets, net $ 16,468,294 $ (250653)] § (125199)] § 16292442
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Note 9. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2021, is as follows:

A. Due to/from other funds

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
Governmental funds:
General Fund -1$% 6,695,896
American Rescue Fund 6,838,741
Revolving Building Fund 8,192,528
PIB Fund 2,918,664
Non-major Governmental Funds 5,242,724 3,717,867
Sub-total 20,273,993 13,332,427
Enterprisc Funds:
Water Districts 1,731,146 -
Sanitary Districts 9,707,719 23,903,247
Non-major Enterprise Funds 739,967 -
Sub-total 12,178,832 23,503,247
Internal Service Fund 4,213,587
Fudiciary Funds:
Custodial Fund 569,261 -
TOTALS 37,235,674 | § 37,235,674

The interfund balances as of June 30, 2021 are the result of a centralized cash receipt and
disbursement function. This results in funds having a deficiency or excess of cash
depending on the timing of the receipt of revenues or other sources and/or the payment of
expenditures (or expenses) or other uses of cash.

B. Advances and Loans To/From Other Funds

Advances to Advances from
Other Funds Other Funds
Advances:
General Fund $ 1,200,000
Sanitary Districts $ 800,000
Water Districts 400,000
Loans:
Loan Fund 187,331
Allegany County Sanitary Districts:
Long-term debt-Bonds & Loans 12,503
Current portion of long-term debt 627
Allegany County Water Districts:
Current portion of long-term debt 24,527
Long-term debt 149,674
3 1,387,331 3 1,387,331
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Note 9. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (continued)

The amounts owed to the General fund from the Sanitary District Funds and the amounts owed to
the County Loan Fund from the Sanmitary District and Water District Funds are reported as
advances to indicate that such amounts are long-term assets and are not to be considered as

“available spendable resources.”

C. Transfers

Transfers to other funds for the year ending June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Transferred From:
Transferred To:

Ampunt

Total By
Fund

From the General Fund to:
Non-major funds governmental fimds $
Enterprise funds:

Allconet
Water/Sewer fund

3453885

96914 | §

Fromthe Revolving Building Fund To;
General Fund
Water Fund
County Loan Fumd
Non-major funds governmental funds

0
19348

115,957

From the Sartiary Fund To:
Water/Sewer fund

3,099

From the PIB Fund To:
Other Non-major governmental fimd

15,293,227

From the Non-major Governmental Funds to:
Enterprise funds:
Water/Sewer fund
Other Nonmajor governmental fimd

235,163

Fromthe Non-major Enterprise Funds to:
Water/Sewer fund
General Furd

32,702

3,550,799

135,346

15263227

235,163

32,702

309

TOTALS $

19250335 | $

19,250,335

General Fund transfers to the non-major governmental funds were to fund the local share of
grant funded programs and to pay debt service. Transfers to the enterprise funds were to assist in
operating costs and debt service. Transfers from the Revolving Building Fund were to pay debt
service costs of County economic development buildings and to pay for economic development’s

share of expenditures in other funds.

Payments to component units for the year ending June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Payment From: Totat By

Payment To: Amount Fund Type
From the General Fund (appropriations) to:

Board of Education $ 31,138,670

Board of Education, Data Processing 109,829

Allegany College of M aryland 7,706,856

Library 966,545 $ 39,921,900
From the Rocky Gap Slots Fund to:

Allggany College of MD Foundation 360,000 360,000
Total $ 40,281,900 $ 40,281,900
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E\Iote 10. Short-term Debt

Allegany County did not issue short-term debt during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and had no
balance payable at year end.

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

JUNE 30, 2021

Note 11. Long-Term Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Long-term liability activity of the County for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Long-term Debt
Governmental Activities
Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Within
Balance Issued Retired Bahnce One Year
General Obligation 30336000 § 17,675000 § (88210000 § 35190000 $ 1,385,000
Notes 195,841 - (7.520) 188,321 7959
State Loans 222236 - (155,656) 66,580 41,174
Premium on Bonds Payable 1411498 897,346 (13121 2,177,633 148,115
Total 32165575 % 18572346 % 9,115387) $ 41,622535 % 1,582,248
Busimess-type activitles
Beghning Amount Amourtt Ending Due Within
‘Water districts: Balance Issped Retired Bahnce One Year
Rural development loans 10424659 % $ Q75150 % 10149500 § 2834622
Maryhnd water quality bans 350025 (17,899 372,126 18,065
County loans 197,948 - 23,147 174,201 24527
Total water distrticts 11,012,632 - (316,796) 10,695,653 326214
Sewer districts;
Maryhnd water quakty loans 392,570 (27.962) 364,608 28250
Maryland envirormental bans 7,857,066 (1,118,637) 6,738429 1,132,893
Ruraldevelopment bans 7224441 (155517) 7068924 160,163
Other bans 13,729 - (600) 13,129 827
Totalsewer districts 15487806 0 {1,302,716) 14,185492 1,321,973
Total business-type activities:
Maryland water quality boans 782,595 - {45.861) 736734 46,355
Maryknd envircmmental lans 7,857,066 1,118,63D 6,738429 1,132,893
Rural development loans 17,649,100 (430,667 17,218433 443785
Orher boans 211,677 - (24347 187,330 25,154
Total business-type activities 26500438  § 0 § (1619512) § 24881145 § 1,648,187
Other Long-term Liabilities
Begining Current Ending Dus Within
Governmental Activities Bahnce Year Payments Bahnce One Yeer
Compensated Absences 4872447 § 606915 § (489,676) $ 4989685 % 1377485
Net Pension Linbility-8t of MD 16,571,127 2,607,367 19,17849%4
Net Pension Liabiity-LOSAP 4311454 905404 5216858
Net OPEB 21,668,757 (50‘1_,_11_0)_ 21,167,587
Business-type activities
Watcr & sewer districts
Compensated absences 465675 $ 53,749 % 1020y % 518404 & 1@1
Net Pension Liability 1324816 175,309 1,500,125
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JUNE 30, 2021

Note 11. Long-Term Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilities-continued

Liabilities for compensated absences, workers compensation, OPEB and pension are liquidated using
resources from the fund in which the employee performing service previously charged his or her salary
and benefit costs.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County’s governmental activities long-term

debt outstanding as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Year Notes from State Loans from
Ending General Obligation Bonds Direct Borrowing Capitai Leases Direct Borrowing Preminm Totals
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest  Principal Interest Bond Pay Principal Interest
2022 1,385,000 1,325,039 71,959 1,665 41,174 635 148,115 1,582,248 1,327,339
2023 1,450,001 1,194,196 8,423 1,240 25,406 236 148,115 1,631,945 1,195,672
2024 1,894,999 1,131,345 8,915 749 148,115 2,052,029 1,132,094
2025 2,075,000 10,598,445 9,434 529 148,115 2,232,349 10,598,974
2026 2,150,000 981,120 9,964 148,115 2,308,079 981,120
2027-2031 10,640,000 3,704,650 49,820 553,478 11,243,298 3,704,650
2032-2036 9,865,000 1,894,826 74,482 445,418 10,384,900 1,894,826
2037-2041 7,505,000 162,913 19,325 332,178 7,856,503 192,913
2042-2047 2,225,000 72,593 105,986 2,330,986 72,593
3 39,190,000 $ 21,095,127 % 188,322 § 4,183 § [ 0§ 66,580 % 871 3 2,177,635 41,622,539 § 21,100,181

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County’s business-type activities long-term

debt outstanding as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

The annualdebtservice requirements to maturily forthe Water Districts long-term debt outstanding at JTune 30,202 lare:

YearEnding Fammers Home Admin, Loans  waterQuality/MDE Loans OtherLoans Totak
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Iterest Principal hterest
2022 283,622 284,319 15,065 4,194 24,527 6,959 326,214 295,472
2023 292,634 275,306 18,233 4,027 25,333 6,153 336,200 285,486
2024 301,991 265,350 18,403 3,857 22,933 5,320 343,327 275,127
2025 311,706 256,235 18,574 7,546 4,430 4,557 334,710 268,338
2026 325795 245,146 18,747 358 4,633 4,353 345,175 254,012
2027-2031 1,778,486 1,030,558 96,407 14,916 24,561 18,370 1,901,454 1,063,844
2032-2036 1,844,388 733,589 90,689 9817 33,249 11,682 1,968,326 755,088
2037-2041 1,774,013 489,093 51,544 4,364 32,537 3,13 1,858,094 496,570
2042-2046 1,435,910 274,263 30,455 2,392 0 0 1,466,365 278,655
2047-2051 L343,579 118,865 11,003 671 0 0 1,354,582 119,536
2052-2056 448,418 13,024 1} 0 448,418 13,024
2057-2061 12,769 168 0 0 12,769 168
Totak $7W,H0,31T $ 73,097,565 37,120 $— 335,097 §_ T74.20% § 60,507 10,603,633 103,
The annualdebt service requie menis to maturity forthe Sanitary Districts long-term debt ontstanding atJune 30, 2021are:
YearEnding Water Quality Loans Md. EnvironmentalLoans Fammers Home Admin. Loans UtherLoans Totak
June 30, Prmcipal Interest Principal Tnterest Principal hiemst Prmcipal hicmest Principal hterest
2022 28,290 5,098 1,132,892 93,977 160,163 197,107 [:FX] 589 1321973 296,771
2023 28,623 4,766 L06%,955 79,540 164,968 192,301 656 360 1,263,202 277,167
2024 28,979 4,429 1,082,902 655,593 169,939 187,331 686 330 1,282,506 257,883
2025 29,300 4,089 L049,901 51444 175,082 182,188 718 499 1,255,001 238,220
2026 29,645 3,744 668,799 37,611 180,403 176,867 750 466 879,597 218,688
2027-2031 153,566 13,400 1,537,419 58,304 988,564 783,980 4,304 L779 2,683,852 857,463
2032-203¢6 66,205 1,120 197,560 6,750 1,140,549 633,775 5,188 695 1,409,702 642,340
2037-2041 - 1,132,973 463,019 1,132,973 463,019
2042-2046 - - - 1,312,735 283,257 1,312,735 283,257
2047-2051 - - 905,606 118,305 - 905,606 118,305
2052-2056 - - 407,446 25,322 - B 407,446 25,322
2057-2061 - - - - 330,891 18,900 - - 330,891 18,900
Totak $- 364,608 5 36,040 5 6,738,428 § 303,210 5 7,060,310 § 3,062,352 5 ILB30 8 3,18 § T,183,407 $3.607.335
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Note 11. Long-Term Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilities - continued

A summary of individual long-term debt balances for governmental activities for the current and prior

year is as follows:

JUNE 30, 2021

Allegany County Primary Government
Schedule of Long - Term General Obligation Debt:

General Obligation Bonds:
Public Improvement Bonds:
Bonds of 2013-Nontax
Bonds of 2014
Bonds of 2017
Bonds of 2019
Bonds of 2020-Nontax
Bonds of 2020
Premium on Bonds
Premium on Bonds
Premium on Bonds
Premium on Bonds
Premium on Bonds-Nontax
Notes:
Farmers Home Admin

State Loans:
PPG Purchase
M d Environmental Loan

Compensated Absences
Total long-term liabilities

Total Long - Term General Obligation Debt

Date of Date of Interest June 30,

Issue M aturity Rate (%) 2021 2020
03/11/13 0311/27 211 4,090,000 4,700,000
12/16/14 12/16/35 2.88 7,195,000 7,555,000
01/20/17 01/15/32 2.88 0 7,491,000
12/14/18 12/14/38 3.5-5 10,230,000 10,590,000
11/24/20 07/15/41 244 7,170,000
11/24120 04/15/43 2.50 10,505,000
03/1113 03/11/27 nfa 187,108 224,528
12/16/14 12116135 nfa 362,489 389,506
12/14/18 12114138 nfa 754,359 797465
11/24/20 04/15/43 n/a 508,096
11/24/20 07/15/41 nfa 365,583

1992 2032 575 188,322 195,842

2000 2020 5.00 0 114,874

2003 2023 0.89 66,580 107,359

41,622,539 32,165,576
4,989,686 4,872,447
$ 46,612,225 § 37,038,023
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JUNE 30, 2021
Schedule of Business-type Debt
Date of Date of [nterest June 30,

Water Dstricts Debt: Issue Maturity Rate (%) 2021 2020
Eckhart FHA Loan 1991 Series A 02721791 2031 60 $ 56,701  § 60678
Eckhart FHA Loan 1991 Series B 02/21/81 2031 60 138,267 147,990
Eckhart/Clarysville RDA Loan ¥ o1711 2051 25 183307 187423
Borden/Zhilman FHA Loan 1998 10/22/97 2037 45 212400 220,948
Carbs/Shaft FHA Loan 2000 12/28/99 12/28/2039 325 314995 327,298
Oldtown Rd FHA Loan 2000 R-1 12/28/99 12/28/2039 325 148,644 154,447
Oldtown Rd FHA Loan 2000 R-2 12/28/99 12/28/2639 325 151,741 157,665
Grahmiown FHA Loan 2001 R-2 2001 2042 45 432,022 444,648
Consol FHA loan 2004 2044 45 79993 81,985
McCoole FHA Loan 1999 2039 45 715,853 742,335
Barton Industrial Park 2005 2045 45 279346 285,937
Kbndike FHA 2005 2045 45 365,133 373,595
Morantown FHA Loan 2005 2046 425 134,284 137358
Mexico Farms 1992 2032 55 219676 233,166
Bowmans Addition RDA Loan ¥ 10/01/10 2051 375 516277 525,734
Bowmans Additon Phase 2RDA ¥ 1111 2052 200 521,852 533,656
Bedford Rd/Shades Lane MDE F 06/28/12 2052 1.00 33,022 34,498
Cresaptown RDA Loan ¥ 0628/12 2052 2.00 1,258,860 1,287,893
Cresaptown RDA Loan2 ¥ 06/28/12 2052 2.00 390,127 399,127
Mt Savage-FHA Loan ¥ 06/30/13 2053 200 2907437 3,065,984
Mt Savage-MDE Loan ¥ 10i31/12 2042 1.00 67997 70,854
Rawlings ¥ 03/31/14 2054 200 165,244 168,867
Rawlings-MDE Loan 2015 2020 200 134,734 143,726
Rawlings-RDA Loan 2006 2057 200 417,139 425476
QOldtown Road -FHA Loan 207 2057 200 92,744 94,507
Route 36 District -‘FHA 2017 2057 200 76,724 81,557
Route 36 District -MDE 2017 2036 200 91,190 93,101
Route 36 District -FHA 2018 2058 200 95,622 97484
Route 36 District -MDE 2018 2037 200 136,373 140,947
Pond Circle, FHA 2018 2058 2.00 93,592 95,460

Sub-total ¥ 10521432 ¥ 10814,699
Carlos/Shaft Loan 2006 2040 45 16263 T7444
Missick Road Loan 2006 2040 45 57,136 58,998
Route 51 Loan 2006 2040 45 20,164 20,821
PSC Rate case 2007 2024 45 60,638 80,683

Sub -total 174,203 197,48

Totaldebt 10,695,635 11,012,647

Less: Current maturities of long - term debt {326,214) (316,797)
Total Water Districts bong - term debt $ 10369421 § 10,695,849
Sanitary Districts Debt:
Bedford Road 2013 2032 14 152467 165,219
Jennings Run 2014/2015 2036 10 212,139 227,350
Braddock Run 2016 2034 10 689,842 735,256
Bedford Road 2017 2031 12 82,117 90,359
Cehnese WWTP Upgrade 06/03 2023 040 1,683,862 2,106,940
Inflow and Infikration Study I 12703 2023 040 77,686 154,677
Celanese 2006 2026 040 213,160 254,655
Inflow and Infikration Study 11 2008 2028 1.00 454173 515,138
George Creek WWTP Upgrade 2008 2029 040 3,401,166 3,846,574
Inflow and Infikration Study IT 2010 2030 100 136421 153474
Georges Creek 2007 2047 4,125 411,612 420,296
Cash Valley Road 1996 2036 450 85,028 89,032
Oldtown Road 1996 2036 450 322459 337,647
Bowling Green/Cresaptown A 2007 2047 4125 1,553,779 1,586,552
Bowlng Green/Cresaptown B 2007 2047 4,125 304,994 311433
Bedford Road 2012 2052 2000 396,831 405,987
Bedford Road 2013 2052 2000 432,861 442,631
Jennings Run 2013 2052 2,000 752457 769,593
Wrights Crossing-Brad Run 2018 2057 2,000 2.308,900 2861,266
QOldtown 2006 2036 45 13,130 13,729

Total 14,185,492 15487,813
Less: Current maturities of long - term debt (1,321973) (1,302,716)

Total Sanitary Districts Long -term Debt $§ 12863519 $ 14,185007
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Long-term Liabilities - Component Units

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Allegany LaVale

College of Sanitary

Maryland Commission
Payable at July 1, 2020 $ 186,760 $4,155,192
Amount issued 339,191 2,642,000
Amount retired (187,441) (2,741,602)
Payabile at June 30, 2021 $ 338,510 $4,055,590

Annual debt service requirements to maturity:

Allegany College of Maryland (Capital Leases) LaVale Sanitary Commission

Fiscal Year _ Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2022 66,448 2,797 69,245 235,612 68,871 304,483
2023 60,274 2,063 62,337 239,589 65,075 304,664
2024 52,023 1,465 53,488 218,672 61,225 279,897
2025 48,729 1,071 49,800 222,563 57,423 279,986
2026 111,036 1,014 112,050 226,469 53,542 280,011
2027-2031 . 1,193,484 207,140 1,400,624
2032-2036 - - 1,200,546 100,560 1,301,106
2037-2041 - 308,078 33,023 341,101
2042-thereafter 210,577 12,962 223,539
$ 338510 8 8,410 § 346920 4,055,590 § 659,821  $4,715,410

Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems

#

Allegany County Primary Government
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Descriptions
Allegany County contributes to the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems (“Systems”).
Both systems are cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans. The Systems were
established by Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland to provide retirement, disability,
annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.
Responsibility for the organization and administration of the Systems is vested in the Board of
Trustees of the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems. The retirement and pension
systems issue a publicly available financial report, which includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained at http://www.sra.state.md.us or by writing
to the following:

Maryland State Retirement Agency
120 E. Baltimore Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-6700
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

Contributions

Employees covered under the retirement system are required to contribute between five and seven
percent of their base salary. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate
and the current rate is 9% of covered payroll. Employees belonging to the pension system must
contribute seven percent of their base salary and seven percent of the base salary that exceeds the
social security wage base. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate
also. The contribution rate for the County is currently 9% of covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of plan members and Allegany County are established and may be amended by the
plan’s board of trustees. Allegany County’s contributions for the years ended June 30, 2021, 2020
and 2019, were $ 2,216,381, $ 1,961,655, and $ 1,781,734, respectively, equal to the required
employer contributions for each year.

Benefits Provided

Members are eligible for full service pension allowances upon accumulating 30 years of eligibility
service regardless of age. Members are eligible for early service pension allowances upon reaching
age 55 and have at least 15 years of eligible service. Full service pension allowances equals 1.2%
of the highest three consecutive years as an employee for each year of creditable service accrued
prior to July 1, 1998 plus 1.8% of the AFC for the three highest consecutive years as an employee
for each year of creditable service accrued on or after July 1, 1998. Early service pension allowances
equal the amount payable for a full service pension reduced by .5% for each month by which the
retirement date precedes the date on which the member reaches age 62. The maximum reduction is
42%.

All members are eligible for ordinary disability pension allowances upon completing five years of
eligibility service and receiving certification from the Medical Board that they are permanently
incapable of performing their necessary job functions. Ordinary disability pension allowances equal
the full service pension allowances if the members are at least age 62 on the date of retirement.
Otherwise, the allowances equal the full service pension allowances computed as though the
members had continued to accrue service credits until age 62 without any change in the rate of
earnable compensation.

All members are eligible for accidental disability pension allowances if the Medical Board certifies
that, in the course of their job performance and as the direct result of an accidental injury, they
become totally and permanently disabled. Accidental disability pension allowances equal the sum of
an annuity determined as the actuarial value of the members’ accumulated contributions, and 2/3 of
AFC.

In order to be eligible for death benefits, members must have either accumulated at least one year of
eligibility service prior to the date of the death or died in the line of duty. The benefit provided upon
death of all members equals the members® annual earnable compensation on the date of death plus
accumulated contributions. Under certain circumstances, surviving spouses who were named sole
primary beneficiaties may elect to receive either the aforementioned lump sum payment or a
monthly allowance calculated as payment under Option 2 (100% survivor option). If at the time of
death, the member had accrued at least 25 years of eligibility or attained age 55 with at least 15 years
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

of eligible service or aitained age 62 then the survivor’s allowance is determined as if the members
had been eligible to retire.

Members are eligible for vested pension allowances after separation from service and upon reaching
age 62, provided that at least five years of eligibility service was accumulated prior to separation.
Members may be eligible for reduced vested pension allowances upon attaining age 55 with at least
15 years of eligibility service. Vested allowances are reduced by .5% for each month by which the
allowance commencement date precedes the date on which the member attains age 62. Vested
allowances equal the normal service pension allowances computed on the basis of the member’s
accumulated creditable service and AFC at the point of separation. Members who elect to withdraw
their accumulated contributions, remain eligible to receive the employer-provided share of the vested
benefit. If members do not withdraw their contributions, and die before attaining age 62, their
accumulated contributions are returned to the designated beneficiary.

Cost of living adjustments are adjusted each year based on the Consumer Price Index. The Cost of
Living Adjustments (COLA) are effective July 1% of each year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the County reported total net pension liability of $ 20,678,533 for its proportionate
share of the MD State Retirement System’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The County’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the County’s long term share of contributions to the MD State
Retirement System relative to the projected contributions made by all participants to the MD State
Retirement System actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the County’s proportion was .0915
percent, which was an increase of .0048 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019,

Pension expense for the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $ 3,424,147,
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

At June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ - 5 (898,108)
Change of assumptions (54,614)
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan

investments 18,564
County contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 2,216,381
Total $ 2,180,331 $ (898,108)

The amount $ 2,216,381 reported as deterred outtlows of resources related to pensions resuiting
from County contributions to the pension system subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows

{Inflows) of
Resources
Year ended June 30:

2022 S (464,425)
2023 {267,660)
2024 {104,926)
2025 (97,146)
Total {934,157)
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following key actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Inflation 2.6% general, 3.1% wage

Salary increases 3.10% to 11.6, including inflation
Discount rate 7.40%

Investment rate of return 7.40%

Mortality Public Sector 2010 Mortality Tables

calibrated to MSRPS experience
with generational projections using
MP-2018 {2-dimensional) mortality
improv

The actuarial assumptions used in both the June 30, 2020 and the June 30, 2019 valuations were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the five year period of 2014-2018. Based on
the 2020 experience study, the actuary recommended changes in the actuarial assumptions. The
changes include 1) a decrease in the general inflation rate from 2.65% to 2.60%, and 2) a decrease
in the wage inflation rate from 3.15% to 3.10 Additionally, both the discount rate and investment
rate of return remained at 7.40%.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return were adopted by
the System after considering input from the System’s investment consultants and actuaries. For each
major asset class that is included in the System’s target asset allocation, these best estimates are
summarized in the following table:

C-59



Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Allocation Rate of Return
Public Equity 37% 5.20%
Private Equity 13% 6.50%
Rate Sensitive 19% -0.30%
Credit Opportunity 9% 2.80%
Real Assets 14% 4.30%
Absolute Return 8% 1.84%
Total 100%
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40%. This single discount rate
was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.40%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate, contributions from the employer will be made at
contractually required rates (actuarially determined), and contributions from the State will be
made at current statutorily required rates. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.40%, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.40%) or
1% higher (8.40%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
6.40% Rate 7.40% 8.40%
County's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability 29,439,263 20,678,549 13,381,658

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued MD State Retirement System’s financial report.
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

Defined Contribution Plan

Allegany County has also established one defined contribution plan for the Management
Contractual Employees Retirement Plan, to provide retirement benefits to certain contractual
employees of the County. The ICMA Retirement Corporation administers the plan. At June 30,
2021, there were 3 members enrolled in the plan.

The defined contribution plan requires the County to contribute 10.24% to the Management
Contractual Employees Retirement Plan of annual covered payroll. The required contribution
was $ 18,453, which was made. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established
and may be amended by the County Commissioners.

Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and earnings on those
contributions. Employees become vested in the County’s contributions and earnings on County
contributions immediately. There were no forfeitures for the plan. The County had no liability to
the ICMA plan at June 30, 2021.

The financial statements of the defined contribution plan is prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period the
contributions are due. Plan investments are reported at fair market value.

Allegany County Component Units

Board of Education-Component Unit

The Board of Education participates in the Maryland State Retirement System part of the same
cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension and retirement systems the County
participates in. The employees are covered under either the Teachers’ Retirement System, the
Employees’ Retirement System, the Teachers’ Pension System or the Employees’ Pension
System Plans. A copy of the report can be obtained by writing to the Maryland State Retirement
Agency at the address listed above.

Members of the retirement systems entering on or after July 1, 1973 are required to contribute
5% or 7%, based on personal election, of earnable compensation; members before that date
contribute the lessor of 5% or the percentage they were contributing prior to July 1, 1973.

Members of the contributory pensions are required to make contributions of 7% of earnable
compensation, The Board is responsible for paying 100% of the normal cost for the TPS and
TRS plans. The State of Maryland is responsible for paying 100% of the School System’s past
costs related to TPS and TRS plans. The State’s contributions on behalf of the Board for the year
ended June 30, 2021 were $ 6,593,560, which were equal to the State’s required contributions for
that year. The Board’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $ 2,591,294 and

$ 657,501 to the TRS, TPS and ERS, respectively. The Board recorded pension expense for the
FY 21 in the amount of $ 544,696 and the net pension liability recorded was $ 6,142,206.
Deferred outflows of resources was recorded in the amount of $ 1,314,002, of which, $ 31,253
was for change in assumptions, $ 170,503 for change in share $ 454,745 was for the net
difference between projected and actual earnings and $ 657,501 was for contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date. Deferred inflows of resources was recorded in the amount
of $ 822,221, of which $ 262,747 for the net difference between projected and actual experience,
$ 436,553 for change in share and $ 122,921 for change in assumptions.
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

Allegany County Library System-Component Unit

The employees of the Library are provided retirement benefits through the Maryland State
Retirement and Pension Systems; the same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
retirement system in which the County participates. All employees of the Library System except
custodial personnel are covered by the Maryland State Teacher’s Retirement Systems. The
Maryland State Department of Education is directly responsible for all financial and
administrative requirements of the employees' participation in the Teachers Retirement System.
The Library System itself is only financially and administratively responsible for custodial
employees' participation in the Maryland State Retirement Systems. As of year-end, all custodial
employees participated in the pension system. Detailed information on the Library’s retirement
plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends may be obtained in their
financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2021. The Library’s pension expense for the year
was $ 158,876, Net pension liability was $ 31,133 at June 30, 2021. Deferred outflows of
resources was $ 5,945 of which $ 377 was due to changes in assumptions, 2,217 was the net
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, $ 30 change in
share and $ 3,321 was the Library’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Deferred
inflows of resources was recorded in the amount of $ 5,062,0f which $§ 3,202 was for the net
difference between expected and actual experience and $ 1,467 was the change in assumptions
and $ 393 change in proportionate share.

Allegany College-Component Unit

The College’s permanent employees are provided pension benefits through one of several
pension plans: Maryland State Teachers’ Retirement System, Maryland State Teachers’ Pension
System, TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan, Maryland State Employees’ Retirement System, and the
Maryland State Employees’ Pension System. All of the plans the College participates in are the
same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans the County participates in, with the
exception of TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan which is a separate plan the County is not associated
with. The State of Maryland is responsible for funding the employee portion of pension costs for
substantially all employees covered by the Teachers’ Retirement System, Teachers’ Pension
System, and the TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan.

Detailed information on the College’s retirement plan provisions, funding status, required
contributions and trends may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30,
2020. Allegany College’s pension expense for FY 21 was $ 95,579 and net pension liability was
$ 865,439. Deferred outflows of resources were recorded at $ 197,339, of which $ 4,298 was
due to change in pension assumptions, $63,050 was for the net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension investments, $ 37,022 was for change in proportionate share and $
92,969 was attributed to contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. Deferred
inflows of resources was recorded at ($ 76,093) for the net difference between projected and
actual experience ($35,979), change in proportionate share of ($24,116) and change in
assumptions of (8 20,343).
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Note 12. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued

LaVale Sanitary Commission — Component Unit

The Sanitary Commission provides a defined benefit pension plan for all their full-time
employees. The plan is a single employer non-contributory plan and is not a part of any of the
plans in which the County participates. Detailed information on LaVale Sanitary
Commission’s retirement plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends
may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2021. LaVale
Sanitary’s pension expense for the fiscal year ended was $ 45,854. Net pension liability was

($ 426,395), pension contributions exceeding the required annual contributions are recorded as
an asset in the Commission’s financial statements; the balance at June 30, 2021 was $ 426,395
and therefore, no net pension liability obligation exists.

At June 30, 2021, the Commission reported deferred ouflows of resources in the amount of

$ 245,368 of which, $ 157,044 was the difference between expected and actual experience, and
$ 88,324 was the change in assumption amount. The deferred inflows of resources was

$ (226,994) of which, $(140,1435), was attributed to change in assumptions and $ (86,559) was
the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments.

Note 13. Pension and Retirement Systems-Length of Service Award Program (LLOSAP)

Allegany County Primary Government
General Information about the LOSAP Pension Plan
Plan Descriptions
On January 1, 2009, the County adopted the Allegany County Emergency Services Length of
Service Awards Program for the Allegany County Emergency Service Organizations members
which provide fire, rescue, and ambulance services to the residents of Allegany County. The plan is
a single employer, defined benefit pension plan which is open to any volunteer over the age of
eighteen, who has completed one year of service. Participants vest after ten years of service and
earn a fixed dollar benefit based on years of service. The plan is administered by Allegany County
and any and all changes made to the benefit terms of the plan are under the authority of Allegany
County. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meet the criteria in GASB No. 73,
paragraph 4. No trust is established, contributions are not irrevocable, and assets are not legally
protected from creditors. No separate financial report is issued for the plan.

Participants Covered by Benefit Terms

At year end, the program membership consisted of 459 eligible active members and 88 retirees.
There are no inactive members that currently receive benefits nor are there any inactive members
that are entitled to but not receiving benefits.

Funding Policy and Benefits Provided

The plan is available to vested volunteer members with no covered payroll. Benefits amortize on a
level dollar basis and are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Benefits accrue per month at the rate of $7 multiplied by the years of service, with a maximum
benefit of $ 105 per month. Since the County fully funds the plan, refunds are not paid. The plan

does not provide for post-retirement increases. Benefits have been paid.
C-63



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

Note 13. Pension and Retirement Systems-Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the County reported total net pension liability of $ 5,216,858. The net pension
liability was measured as of December 31, 2020 and the total pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020, the results of which were rolled forward to the December
31, 2020 measurement date, in accordance with actuarial standards of practice.

Pension expense for the plan for FY 21 was $ 655,568

At June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience S 2,668 S 250,386
Change of assumptions 1,338,717 21,012
Total $ 1,341,385 $ 271,398

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred OQutflows

(Inflows) of
Resources
Year ended June 30:

2022 S 173,804
2023 S 173,804
2024 5 173,804
2025 $ 173,804
2026 and thereafter 5 374,771
Total 1,069,987
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Note 13. Pension and Retirement Systems-LOSAP-continued

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following key actuarial assumptions, (no experience studies) applied to all periods included in the

measurement:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, closed
Inflation 0%
Salary increases Not Applicable
Discount Rate 2.00%
Investment rate of return 2.0%, net of pension plan investment expense, induding inflation
Post Retirement Mortality RP2000 projected to 2030
Retirement First Eligible
Tumover 16
Disability None
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 2.0%. This single discount rate
was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 2.0%. The discount rate
of 2.0% is based on the 20-year AA general obligation bond rate as of December 31, 2020.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from

the employer will be made at contractually required rates (actuarially determined). Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate decreased to 2.0% from the
previous year’s rate of 2.75%.

Sensitivity of the County’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the County’s net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
2.%, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1% lower (1.%) or 1% higher (3.%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
1.00% Rate 2.00% 3.00%
County's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability 5,584,808 5,216,858 4,840,600
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Note 13. Pension and Retirement Systems-LOSAP-continued

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Total Net Pension Liability
Service Cost 396,312
Interest 85,452
Changes in Benefit Terms
Difference between expected and

actual experience (97,103)
Changes in assumptions, including
discount rate 604,872
Benefit payments and expenses (84,129)
Net Change in total pension liability 905,404
Total Net Pension Liability-beginning 4,311,454
Total Net Pension Liability-ending 5,216,858

Note 14. Governmental Fund Balance Classifications

Beginning with fiscal year 2012, the County adopted GASB Statement No. 54 “Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, which redefined how fund balances of governmental funds
are presented in the financial statements. Those classifications are:

e Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a nonspendable form
or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

e Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Allegany
County Code, federal or state laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

e Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal
resolution or ordinance by the Board of County Commissioners.

e Assigned — Amounts that are designated by the Board of Commissioners or the Director of
Finance for a particular purpose.

o Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.
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Major Special Major Capital
Revenne Fund  Projects Fund
General Revolving Public Imprv Other
Fund Balances: Fund Building Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable
Long term receivables $ 1,200,000 § - - 3 $ 1,200,000
Inventory 41,235 41,235
Restricted for:
Transit bus replacement 78,907 - . 78,907
Housing programs - - - 9,739 9,739
Coal Haul Roads - - - 117,796 117,796
Drugtask Force - - - 235,487 235487
Inmate activities/fire comp anies - - . 870,733 870,733
PIB Bond Projects - - 7,190,442 7,190,442
CARES Fund 2,425 2,425
Debt Service 6,497,905 6,497,905
Sheriff Task Force 31,344 31,344
Committed to:
Economic develop ment - 7,844,439 - 7,844,439
Amount to balance FY 2022 budget 1,446,563 1,446,563
School capital\Fire Co - - 1,948,484 1,948,484
Assigned to:
Election machine replacements . . -
Future Disparity Grant Funding 3,264,000 3,264,000
Potential State of MD Budget Cuts 750,000 . . 750,000
LOSAP 3,287,025 3,287,025
Technology Enhancements - - 229,557 229,557
Public Works projects 568,335 568,335
Public Safety 105,488 105,488
School projects 265,597 265,597
County building improvements - . 242,765 242,765
Unassigned: 20,022,041 - - (2,097,892) 17,924,149
$ 30,048,536 § 7,844,439 7,190442 $ 9,068,998 § 54,152415

Note 15. Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Plan Description & Administration. The County’s single-employer defined benefit postemployment
healthcare plan, the Allegany County Non-Pension Post Employment Benefits Plan (ACBP), provides
medical benefits to eligible retired County employees and their beneficiaries. ACBP is affiliated with
the Allegany County, Maryland Non-Pension Post Employment Benefit Trust (ACMBT), an agent
multiple-employer postemployment healthcare plan. The Allegany County Code assigns the authority to
establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plans that participate in ACMBT to the respective
employer entities, for ACBP, that authority rests with Allegany County. Management of the ACMBT is
vested in the ACMBT Board of Trustees which consists of four trustees. One trustee is appointed by the
LaVale Sanitary Commission (the other employer in the trust) and the other three are appointed by
virtue of the position they hold in the Allegany County government. The authority to establish and
amend the benefit provisions in the ACMBT rests with the respective employer entities. For Allegany
County, the authority rests with the Board of Commissioners. The plan does not issue financial reports
separately.
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Note 15. Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued

The assets, income and expenses for the trust that holds the assets are reported in the County’s fiduciary
funds.

Contributions. The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and
may be amended by ACMBT board of trustees. ACBP members under age 65 receiving benefits who
were hired prior to July 1, 1997 contribute 8% of the premium and members under the age 65 receiving
benefits who were hired after June 30, 1997 contribute 25% of the premium. The County pays $ 150 per
month for retirees over 65.

The current ARC rate is 7.5 percent of annual covered payroll, and is an actuarially determined amount.

Benefits Provided. Employees are eligible for health insurance coverage providing that the retiring
employee had coverage in effect when they stopped working, are eligible for retirement, and must have
at least 10 years of service and attained age 62 or have 25 years of continuous service. Employees who
retire are eligible for the under 65 health insurance plan. Once the retiree turns 65, the retiree is moved
to the County’s $ 150 per month health insurance subsidy plan.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. Plan membership consists of 397 active members and 271
inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments and there are no inactive
plan members that are entitled to but not receiving benefits.

Investment Policy. The Trust has adopted the County’s investment policy. The Board of
Commissioners have authority to amend the policy. Currently, the Trust invests in the MACO Trust
Fund. The Maryland Association of Counties Pooled OPEB Trust (the “Trust”) is an “Other Post-
Employment Benefits” membership trust established to help local governments invest current funds
toward future obligations for retiree health insurance, a.k.a. “other post-employment benefits.” Both
county and municipal governments, and other county-funded entities (like libraries and community
colleges), are welcome to join the MACO OPEB Trust.

Investing through an entity like the MACO Pooled OPEB Trust offers governments an
opportunity under state law to invest funds in a manner suitable for longer term assets, and
outside the laws generally governing “public funds.” The Trust arrangement ensures that the
funds may not be extracted for purposes other than the intended benefits, making that distinction
clear. The trust shall be invested consistent with Section 17-102 of the Local Government Article
of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended from time to time.

Overall, the Trustees have adopted a fairly conservative mixed portfolio, with 65% in equities and 35%
in fixed income investments. The target rate of return for the Trust is 7% annually, set generally in
keeping with industry trends given the diversified portfolio construction, Further information including
audited financial statements is available at www.mdcounties.org/index.aspx 7nid=250
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Note 15. Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used to include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
Allegany
County
Non-Pension
Postemployment
Benefits Plan

Valuation Date &6/30/2019
Measurement Date ¥ 06/30/21

Actuarial cost method Entry Age

Amortization method Level percentage of pay
(3% annual payroll increase assumed)

Remaining amortization period 30 Years
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate The expected trust return of 7% is blended with
the 20 year Aa municipal bond rate of 1.92%.
The blended rate is 5.43%
Investment rate of retum 7%, net of investment expense and including
inflation
Healthcare cost trend rate 6.5% for 2021, reduced linearly to an
ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2029
Mortality Pre/Post Retirement: Pub 2010G Headcount (M/F)

with generational improvements using Scale SSA18
Post Disablement: Pub 2010 GHeadcount (M/F)
with generational improvements using Scale SSA18

Changes in Actuarial assumptions. There were no changes in actuarial assumptions during fiscal year
2021, except for the change in discount rate. Discount rate increased from 5.38% in FY 2020 to 5.43%
in FY 21.
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Note 15. Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued

Expected Return: The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined
using a building block method in which best estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. This is
then modified through a Monte-Carlo simulation process, by which a (downward) risk adjustment is

applied to the baseline expected return.

Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2021, and the final investment return assumption, are summarized in the

following table:
Long-Term

Expected Real

Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 6.15%
Intemational funds 6.40%
Fixed Income-US 2.15%
Global Funds 4.85%
Cash Equivalents 0.00%
Total Weighted Average Real Retum 4.72%
Plus Inflation 2.50%
Total Return w/o Adjustment 7.22%
Risk Adjustment -0.22%
Total Expected Return 7.00%

The money-weighted rate of retum for FY 21 was 22.78%

Net OPEB Obligation:

The County’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, the results
of which were rolled forward to the June 30, 2021 measurement date, in accordance with actuarial

standards of practice.
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Note 15. Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued

The changes in net OPEB liability are as follows:

FY 21

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost 465,581

Interest 1,310,884

Change in benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience -

Changes in assumptions, including discount rate (90,006)

Benefit payments (1,515,078)
Net Change in total OPEB Liability 171,381
Total OPEB liability-beginning 24,647,911
Total OPEB liahility-ending 24,819,292

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer 1,515,078
Contributions-member 82,400
Net investment income 678,033
Benefit payments (1,597,478}
Administrative expenses {5,482)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 672,551
Plan fiduciary net position-beginning 2,979,154
Plan fiduciary net position-ending 3,651,705
Net OPEB liability beginning 21,668,757
Net OPEB liability ending 21,167,587
Fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 14.70%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.43%. The County’s
funding expectations/policy is to contribute the Actuarially Determined Contribution to their OPEB trust
(if greater than annual benefits), in addition to paying benefits for retirces. It is expected that benefits
will be paid from the trust when a 40% funding level is reached. Based on this information, we project
that benefits will be financed on a pay as you basis through 2030, then from the trust there forward
(from 2031 on).

Therefore, the expected trust return of 7% is blended with the 20 year Aa bond rate (Source: Fidelity
general obligation municipal bond index) of 1.92%. The blended rate is 5.43%.
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Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rates: The following presents the net
OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1% lower (4.43%) or 1% higher (6.43%) than the current discount rate;

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
at 4.43% at 5.43% at 6.43%
Net OPEB Liability 23,185,500 21,167,587 19,395,311

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates: The following
presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1% lower (5.5% decreasing to 3.0%) or 1% higher (7.5%
decreasing to 5.0%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease 1% Increase
(5.5% decreasing (6.5% decreasing {7.5% decreasing
to 3.0%) to 4.0%) to 5.0%)
Net OPEB Liability 19,327,556 21,167,587 23,283,909

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB. As of June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ - $ (804,205)
Change of assumptions 356,853 (236,161)
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on plan

investments - (251,372)
Total $ 356,853 $ (1,291,738)

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Deferred Outflows

{Inflows) of
Resources
Year ended June 30:

2022 ) (311,083)
2023 (198,827)
2024 (189,199)
2025 (220,775)
2026 (15,001)
Total {934,885)

OPEB expense for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 was $1,262,496.
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Payable to OPEB Plan:
There were no contributions payable to the OPEB plan as of June 30, 2021.

Allegany County Component Units

Board of Education-Component Unit

The Board of Education sponsors a single-employer post-retirement plan which provided a
supplement to retiree health care benefits as well as providing medical benefits including
prescription drug to eligible retired employees. Retirees are eligible for continued membership in
the medical plans provided they have at least 15 year of service. Net OPEB Liability as of June
30, 2021 was $ 10,485,511. For the year ended June 30, 2021 , the Board recognized OPEB
expense of $ 1,125,792. Deferred outflows of resources at year end was $ 2,210,571 of which

$ 1,909,270 was for changes in assumptions and $ 301,301 which represented the difference
between projected and actual earnings. Deferred inflows of resources was $ 4,014,903 of which
$ 1,873,809 was for the difference between projected and actual earnings, $ 83,244 was for the
change in assumptions and $ 2,057,850,was for the difference between expected and actual
experiences.

Allegany County Library System-Component Unit

Allegany County Library System sponsors a single-employer post-retirement plan which
provides medical and prescription benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. Eligible persons
include employees with a minimum of thirty years of service or have reached age 60. These
benefits are available until the employee reaches age 65. The retired employee must pay the full
amount of the monthly insurance coverage. The Library’s OPEB expense for the year was §
13,293. Net OPEB liability was $ 110,765 at June 30, 2021. Deferred outflows for FY 21 was $
19,372, of which, $7,849 was for the difference between expected and actual experience and $
11,523 was for changes in assumptions.

LaVale Sanitary Commission-Component Unit

The LaVale Sanitary Commission sponsors a single-employer defined benefit post-retirement
plan which provides medical and prescription benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses.
Employees and their spouses are eligible for benefits after the employee has twenty years of
service and has attained age 60. Health insurance benefits are paid 100% by the Commission
until the employee and spouse are eligible for Medicare. When the retired employee becomes
eligible for Medicare, the retiree can elect to be covered under a Medicare supplemental plan and
would be responsible for paying 50% of the spouses’ premium. When the spouse becomes
eligible for Medicare, the spouse can then elect to be covered under the Medicare supplemental
plan and health insurance benefits are covered 100%. The Commission’s OPEB expense for the
year was $ (16,873). Net OPEB liability was $ (271,156) at June 30, 2021, of which was
recorded as an asset. Deferred outflows of resources was recorded at June 30, 2021 in the
amount of $ 1,651,623, of which $ 1,651,623 was for the change in assumptions. Deferred
inflows were recorded at $§ 3,715,399, of which $ 799,368 was due to the difference between
expected and actual experience, $ 2,679,581 due to change in assumptions and $ 236,450 was the
net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments.
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Note 16. Tax Abatements

The County is subject to Enterprise Zone Credits granted by the State of Maryland by authority of
Section 9-103 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. The Enterprise Zone tax
credit is available to businesses that locate in designated areas of Allegany County and is designed to
spur economic growth in these areas. This real property tax credit is available only for nonresidential
properties located within the Enterprise Zones and is based on growth in property assessment. Personal
property is not included under the Enterprise Zone law. The “base year assessment” is the real property
assessment for the year before any new construction or refurbishing is done. The credit is based on the
increase in the assessment for each of the next 10 years compared to the base-year assessment.

The credit is given on the actual taxes that result from the increase in assessment, using the following
rate schedule:

Percentage of Assessment

Year Increase Credit
1-5 80%
6 70%
7 60%
8 50%
9 40%
10 30%

The State subsequently reimburses the County tor 50% of the annual tax credit. The fiscal year 2021
enterprise zone credits amounted to $ 81,689 and the State of Maryland reimbursed the County
$ 40,785.

In addition, the County also “piggybacks” on to the City of Cumberland’s Historic Preservation tax
credit program as follows:

The City of Cumberland has a Historic Preservation tax program whereas property owners are eligible to
receive property tax credits of up to 10% of properly documented expenses when the existing structure
is renovated or preserved. By authority of Section 9-204 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated
Code of Maryland, state law provides that a tax credit of up to 5% may be provided for the new
construction costs of architecturally compatible structures and allows a property owner of the program
structure to have the assessed value of the property frozen for up to 10 years at the pre-renovation value.
A property must be a certified historic structure meaning that it must possess one of the following
designations:

Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places

Listed in a National Register historic or landmark district

Listed in a property or district designated as an historic property or district under local law
Included within the boundaries of a certified heritage area

;o op
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Note 16. Tax Abatements-continued

The following table is utilized by the City of Cumberland (and therefore Allegany County) to
determine the length of the property tax assessment freeze for approved properties:

Improvement
Cost as
Percentage of Available Tax
Base Exempt
Status of
Assessment Improvement
10% 1Year
20% 2 Year
30% 2 Year
40% 3 Year
50% 3 Year
60% 4 Year
70% 4 Year
80% 5 Year
90% 6 Year
100% 7 Year
200% 8 Year
300% 9 Year
400% 9 Year
500% 10 Year

The amount of historic tax credit issued by Allegany County for FY 21 was $ 38,769. The
County does not provide for the recapture of abated taxes in the event an abatement recipient
does not fulfill the commitment it makes in return for the tax abatement. Also, Allegany County
grants tax credits to several nonprofit organizations that were named in Section 9-302 of the Tax
Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.
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Note 17. Risk Management
“

Liability Insurance - The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which it carries commercial
insurance. The County retains no risk for claims up to the maximum amount of the policy except for
deductible amounts. During the fiscal year and for the three prior fiscal years, the County did not have
any losses exceeding its insurance coverage.

COVID-19 Pandemic- The COVID-19 pandemic has caused negative impacts in all aspects of County
operations and financials. The extent of the unprecedented disruptions depends on the length of the
pandemic and its far-reaching results cannot be determined at this time. Currently, any significant
financial or other impacts on the County cannot be reasonably estimated.

Self-Insured Health Care — Effective January 1, 2009, the County is self-insured for hospitalization and
medical benefits provided to its employees within specified limits. The County pays a third party
administrator a monthly fixed fee for various claim administrative services on a per enrolled employee
basis to administer the plan. The County has established an internal service fund to account for this
activity.

The third-party administrator submits invoices periodically for all processed claims and administrative
fees, and the County issues payment to the third-party administrator, who in turn issues individual
claims checks. To protect itself against significant losses, the County has stop-loss policies in place for
individual participant health care claims in excess of $200,000 per year.

Third party administrators estimated the non-discounted claims liability reported in the funds at June 30,
2021. It is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10,
which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurred
but not reported claims, be reported. Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors
as inflation, change in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing claims
liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are reevaluated periodically
to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social
factors.

Changes in the balance of claims payable relating to the funds for fiscal year 2021 are as follows:

Balance at July 1, 2020 $ 526,538
Claims and changes in estimates 8,330,076
Claim payments (8,256,135)
Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 600479
Claims and changes in estimates 7,608,083
Claim payments (7,653,362)
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 555,200
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Note 18. Pending Claims and Litigation

#
The County is the defendant in several lawsuits in which plaintiffs are seeking to recover amounts from
the County as a result of alleged damages incurred by those plaintiffs. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits and any other potential proceeding, lawsuit or claim that is pending or threatened are not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the County’s legal counsel and County management that
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of the County. At
this time, there are no known claims or judgments due within one year.

Note 19. Contingent Liabilities

The County participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs, principal of which
are the U.S. Department of Agriculture, the U.S. Department of Transportation and the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Developments economic development and housing assistance grant programs.
Entitlement to the grant proceeds is generally based on compliance with the terms and conditions of the
grant agreements and applicable regulations, including expenditure of the resources for eligible
purposes. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives. The audits of these programs for and including the year ended June 30, 2021 may not
have been concluded.

Allegany County has borrowed funds on behalf of the LaVale Sanitary District for the purpose of
improvements to sewer and water lines and construction of a water treatment plant and water reservoir.
The LaVale Sanitary District is responsible for the debt service payments and the County has never been
called upon to make any of the direct payments of the conduit debt. As of June 30, 2021, such debt
includes loans with the U.S. Department of Agriculture of $1,410,116 and Series 2021 Bond of

$ 2,598,000

The State of Maryland’s Department of the Environment and Allegany County has entered an agreement
setting a timetable for fixing the County's combined sewer and storm water system overflow problem.
The cost associated with correcting the problem cannot be reasonably estimated. However those costs
will likely be spread over an extended period of years and will be borne by the users of the sewer
systems.

The State of Maryland’s Commerce Department and Allegany County have entered into a verbal
agreement that the conditional loan in the amount of $1,500,000 will be forgivable at $150,000 per year
as long as the property can maintain 100 employees each year. The conditional loan has been recorded
in the financial statements as Due to State.

Note 20. Related Party

#
The Willowbrook Health Center Condominium (the Association) is a statutory condominium association
organized for the purposes of operating and maintaining the common property of the Willowbrook
Health Center Condominium. The Willowbrook Health Center Condominium consists of four units
occupying a site of approximately 4.6 acres located in Cumberland, MD. The Condominium is jointly
owned by the Allegany County Commissioners at 46.7 percent and the Western Maryland Health

System at 53.3 percent. During FY 21, Allegany County paid $ 282,714 in fees to the Willowbrook
Health Center Condominium. Of this amount, $ 85,000 is included in accounts payable at year-end.
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Note 21. New Pronouncements

As of June 30, 2021, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following
pronouncements, which will require adoption in the future, if applicable: GASB Statement No. 87,
“Leases”; GASB Statement No. 90, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period”; GASB Standard No. 91, “Conduit Debt Obligations”; GASB Statement No. 93,
“Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates”; GASB Statement No. 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements”; GASB Statement No. 96, “Subscription Based
Information Technology Arrangements”: and GASB Statement No. 97, “Certain Component Unit
Criteria and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of
GASB Statement No. 32.”. These statements may have a material effect on the County’s financial
statements once implemented. The County has not yet completed the process of evaluating the impact of
these pronouncements on its financial statements, and plans to adopt them, as applicable by their
effective date.

Note 22. Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The County has evaluated, for possible financial statement disclosures, subsequent events through
March 8, 2022, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued and has determined
there is one subsequent event that should be noted. As of December 22, 2021, five loans with MDE were
closed during FY 22, all of which totals $ 1,907,077, which will be paid back with increased customer
water/sewer charges over the next 30 years,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LOSAP-SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Last Ten Fiscal Years *
2021 2020 ___ 2019 2018 2017
Totel Net Pension Liability
Service Cost 396,312 341,969 352,003 308,176 260,811
Interest 85,452 94,779 104,059 72,176 71,864
Changes in Benefit teems - - -
Differences between expected and
actual experience (97,103) {127,045) (105,205) 4,799 1
Changes in assumptions, including
discount rate 604,372 599,378 334,551 246,393 (31,517
Benefit payments and expenses (84,129) (81,231) (6,620) (7,270) (6,820)
Net Change in total pension liabikity 905,404 827,850 678,788 624,274 254,339
Total Net Pension Lisbility-beginning 4311454 3,483,604 2,804,815 2,180,542 1,886,203
Tota! Nte Pension Lisbility-ending 5,216,858 4,311,454 3,483,604 2,804,816 2,180,542

No covered payroll-plan members are all volunteer firc fighters.
*This schedule is designed to pr infornmation for a 10 year period beginning FY 17. Until a full 10 year trend is compiled, the Cownty
will be presenting information only for those years for which information is availalble.

MARYLAND STATE RETIREMENT
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S PROFORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

County's County's County's share Pan fiduciary
Proportion of the  Proportion of the County's of net pension net position as
Year Ended net pengion ret pengion Covered Liability (asset) 2% of total

30-Tun ligbility Linbility {asset) Payroll asa % ofpayroll  pension liabiltiy
2015 6.10% $10,872,378 14,004,466 T77.64% 69.53%
2016 6.98% 14,514,808 13,959,828 103.98% 68.78%
2017 6.85% 16,160,225 15,109,085 106.96% 65.79%
2018 6371% 13,774,92F 15,410,092 £9.39% 69.38%
2019 835% 17,523,277 14,693,609 115.26% 71.18%
2020 8.67T% 17,895,857 16,834,720 106.30% 72.34%
2021 9.19% 20,778,533 16,542,967 125.60% 70.72%

This schedule is prosented to illustrate the requirement to show the information for 10 years. 2015 is the first year information is available

MARYLAND STATE RETIREMENT SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S CONTRIBUTIONS

Contractually relative io County's aza % of
Year Ended required Contractually Contribution Covered covered
3-Jun contribution Req contribution Deficiency Payroll payroll
2015 1,472,135 $1,472,135 13,959,828 10.55%
2016 1,334,208 1,334,298 15,109,085 8.83%
2017 1,338,202 1,338,202 15,410,092 7.61%
2018 1,665,400 1,665,400 14,693,609 11.33%
2019 1,781,734 1,781,734 16,834,720 10.78%
2020 1,961,655 1,961,655 16,542,967 11.86%
2021 2,216,381 2,216,381 15,556,786 14.25%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show the information for 10 yesrs. 2015 is the first year information is available
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Allegany County

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the County's Net Other Post Retirement
Benefits Liability and Related Ratios-Last Ten Fiscal Years

FY 21 FY 20 FY 19 FY 18 FY 17

Total OPEB Lisbility

Service Cost 465,581 394,767 383,269 372,106 361,268

Interest 1,310,384 1,387,465 1,345,895 1,275,326 1,250,947

Change in benefit terms

Diiferences betwoen cxpected and actual experience - 1,206,307}

Changes in assumptions, including disoount rate (90,006) 535281 {103,054) (599.679)

Benefit payments {1,515,078) (1,062,959 {1,167,028) {1,000,295) (1,235,135}
Net Change in total OPEB Liability 171381 48252 459,082 43,142 377,080
Total OPES liability-beginning 24,647,911 24,599,659 24,140,577 24,183,719 23 806,639
Total OPEB liability-ending 4,819,292 24,647,911 24;59929 24,140,577 24!1 83719
Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions-employer 1,515,078 1,062,954 1,167,028 1,099,055 1,162,09%

Contributions-memher 82,400 95,902 102,866 86,712 90,491

Net itvesteont income 678,033 47,605 141,286 147,820 195,770

Benefit payments (1,597,478) (1.158,836) {1,269,894) (1,177,607 (1,235,135)

Administrative expenscs {5.482) (6,552} (10.803) {10,635) (17,453)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 672,551 41,053 130,483 145,345 195,769
Plan fidugiary met position-beginning 2.975,154 2,938,101 2807618 2,662,273 2,466,504
Plan fiduciary net position-ending 3,651,705 2579,154 2,938,101 2,807,618 2!662é73
Net OPEB linbility beginning 21,668,757 21,661,558 21,332,959 21,521,446 21,340,135
Net OPES lishility ending 21,167,587 21,668,757 21,661,558 21,332,959 21,521,446
Fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPER liability 14.70% 12.10% 11.90% 11.60% 11.01%
Covered employee payroll 20,274,395 23,562,640 20,354,264 14,693,609 16,680,326
Net OPEB Liability as a percestage of covered payroll 104% 9% 106% 145% 129%
Schedule of the County's Other Post Retirement Benefits Contributions-Last Ten Fiscal Years *
A ially d ined Tbuti 1,499,358 1,455,687 1,351,412 1,312,050 1,273,335
Contributions in relation to th jally d ined ibaati 1,515,078 1,062,954 1,167,028 1,099,055 981,229
Contbribution deficiency {excess) (15,720) 392733 184,384 212,095 292,606
County's covercd-employee payroll 20,274,595 23,562,640 20,354,264 14,693,609 16,680,326
Contributions s perconitage of covered-employes payroll 7.50% 4.50% 5, 70% 7.50% 3.50%
Sehedule of the County's Other Post Employment Benefits Investment Returns-Last 10 Fiscal Yrs
Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment cxpense 2.78% 1.62% 3.04% 5.56% T.64%
*This schedule is designed to present inft ion for @ 10 year period beginning with fiscal year 2017

Until 8 full 10 year trend is compiled the County will be presenting information only for those years for
which infiormation is availsble.

D-4



Allegany County
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Note 1: LOSAP Pension Information

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the January 1, 2020 actuaria} valuation was determined using the following

actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods inlcuded in the measurement:

Fiscal Year End June 30, 2021
Measurement Date December 31, 2020
Annual Discount Rate 2.%-based on 20 year AA general bond rate at 12/31/20. The projection of

cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from the employer will be made at contractually required rates

(actuarially determined)

Annual salary increases Does not apply

Assumed retirement Age First Eligible

Mortality Mortality rates are based on RP 2000 projected to 2030.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Form of Benefit Monthly benefits at a rate of $7 multiplied by the years of service, max § 105
No changes in benefits during FY 21

Changes in assumptions Discount rate decreased from 2.75% in FY 20 to 2.% in FY 21
Mortality changed from 3 yr setback to RP2000 projected to 2030.

Assets accumulated in trust None

Note 2: Other Post Employment Benefits Information

Actuarial Assumptions

The totat OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods inlcuded in the measurement;

Fiscal Year End June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2021

Amnnuzl Discount Rate 5.43%-the expected trust return of 7% is blended with the 20 year Aa bond
rate (Source: Fidelity general obligation municipal bond index) of 1.92%

Annual salary increases 3%

Mortality Pre/Post Retirement: Pub 2010G Headcount (M/F) with generational
improvements using Scale SSA18

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Amortization Method Level percentage of pay

Investment Rate of Return 7% net of investment expense and including inflation

Health Care trend rate 6.5% for 2021, reduced linearly to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2024

Changes in assumptions Discount rate increased from 5.38% in FY 20 to 5.43% in FY 21

Note 3: State of Maryland Pension Information
Changes in assumptions:

Infiation assumption Changed from 2.65% to 2.60%

Wage inflation assumption Changed from 3.15% to 3.10%

Salary increases No change during the fiscal year

Discount Rate/Investment Rate ~ No change during the fiscal year
Change in Benefit Terms No change during the fiscal year
Change in Size/Composition

of Population No significant change during the fiscal year
Mortality Table Public Sector 2010 Mortality Table
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE,

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Nepative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes:
Real and personal property $ 40,877.006 40,877,006 42,204,173 1,327,167
Payments in licu of taxes:
Coal companies 14,000 140,000 133,200 (6,800)
Housing Authorities 50,000 50,000 28,006 {21,994)
Rocky Gap 295,000 295,000 295,000 -
DNR 945,859 945,859 899,995 (45,864)
Interest on Delinquent taxes 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,367,213 317,213
Sub-total 43,231,865 43,357,865 44,927,587 1,569,722
Less:
Prompt payment discounts 181,000 181,600 186,089 (5,089)
Deferred revenues 250,000 250,000 {509,510} 759,510
Industrial exemptions 155,000 155,000 120,909 34,091
Enterprise zone exemptions 150,000 150,000 14,694 135,306
Regidential development tax credit 15,000 15,000 14,323 677
Real Estate Tax Set Aside - 152,675 152,675 -
Historic tax credit 55,000 55,000 38,769 16,231
PILOT abatement 20,000 20,000 16,021 3,979
Sub-total 826,000 978,675 33,970 944,705
Total Net Property Taxes 42,405,865 42,379,190 44,893,617 2,514,427
income Taxes 28,282,989 28,282,989 31,190,781 2,907,792
Other Local Taxes:
Hotel/motel tax 1,214,113 1,214,113 824,379 (389,734)
Admissions 220,000 220,000 70,630 {149,370}
Recordation 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,723,827 323,827
Ag Transfer Tax - - 16,544 16,544
911 Fees 400,000 400,000 433,717 33,717
Trailer court 62,000 62,000 53,336 (8,664)
Transfer tax 550,000 550,000 692,774 142,774
Highway users taxes 1,088,800 1,088,800 1,057,788 (31,012)
Total Local Taxes 4,934,913 4934913 4,872,995 (61,918)
Total Taxes 75,623,767 75,597,092 80,957,393 5,360,301
Licenses and Permits
Alcoholic beverage licenses 98,000 98,000 {12,847) (110,847
Amusement licenses 2,500 2,500 1,919 (581)
Traders licenses 92,000 92,000 96,910 4,210
Junkyard licenses 800 ROO 800
Building permits 35,000 35,000 11,518 (23,482)
Marriage licenses 4,000 4,000 3,995 (5
Cable franchise fees 420,000 420,000 420472 472
Sediment control permits 30,000 30,060 19,257 (10,743)
Total Licenses and Permits 682,300 682,300 542,024 (140,276)
Continued
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES (Continued);
Intergovemmental;
Federal Funds;
Homeland security grant 420,000 420,000 243285 (176,715)
Civil defense 70,000 70,000 48,236 (21,764)
FEMA grant 690,000 690,000 566,716 {123,284)
Federal DOJ Grant - . 173,899 173,899
HIDTA Federal Grant - - 10,587 10,587
MTA Transportation planning 117,228 117,228 126,656 9,428
FMHA Grant - . 50,000 50,000
CDBG-Covid Grant - - 59,718 59,718
Emergency solutions program 281,000 281,000 300,343 19,343
Health & Human Services Grant - - 164,353 164,353
Masters program 44,425 44,425 40,168 (4.257)
Medicare-Ambulance Fees 306,635 306,635 452,528 145,893
Medicaid-Ambulance Fees 40,903 40,903 68,125 27222
Payments in lieu of property taxes 8,500 8,500 8,778 278
Sub-total Federal funds 1,978,691 1,978,691 2,313,392 334,701
State Funds:
Public Health 14,000 14,000 22,856 8,856
Police protection 280,000 280,000 245,372 (34.628)
State transportation planning 11,086 11,086 15,832 4,746
Juvenile Service Grant 14,000 14,000 11 (13,889)
Dept of Natural Resources 250,000 250,000 : (250,000)
Conservation aid salary 31,313 31,313 32,483 1,176
Program Open Space grant 869,000 869,000 184,537 (684.463)
Disparity grant 8,930,611 8,930,611 8,930,611 -
State Jury Reimbursement 50,000 50,000 11,640 (38,360}
Tourism grant 30,000 102,543 152,746 50,203
MD Emeigency Housing Program - - 151,112 151,112
Miscellaneous 491,188 589,633 765,116 175,483
Sub-total State Funds 10,971,198 11,142,186 10,512,416 (629,770)
Other Intergovernmental:
Other agencies 599,006 809,096 1,236,527 427,431
Sub-total Other Intergovernmental: 599,096 809,096 1,236,527 427,431
Total intergovernmental 13,548,985 13,929,973 14,062,335 132,362
Continued
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amount {Negative)
REVENUES (Continued)
Service c8:
General government charges:
State civil process 45,000 45,000 36,735 (8,265)
Plans & specifications 2,500 2,500 7,590 5,090
Regulation & Maps 1,250 1,250
Tax sale fees 30,000 30,000 40,472 10,472
Election filing fees - - 50 50
Security interest filing fee 70 70
License application fees £,500 8,500 8,200 (300)
Liquor License transfer fee 4,500 4,500 1,620 (2,880)
Bay restoration collection fee 5,000 5,000 (5,000
Health Ins Admin fee 300 300 526 226
Tourism promotion charges 20,000 20,000 36,438 16,438
Collection fees-special areas 60,000 60,000 73,639 13,639
Liquor License Collection fee 3,600 3,600 3,063 (537)
Hotel/Motel collection fee 25,000 25,000 20,125 4,875)
Partial payment fee 2,000 2,000 1,602 {398)
Engincering fees 30,000 30,000 (30,000)
Indirect cost allocation 697,752 697,752 8,471 (689,281)
Sub-total general government charges 034,152 934,152 239,851 (694,301)
Public safety charges:
Police protection charges 70,000 70,000 69,901 99)
ATV Registration Fees 2,000 2,000 1,650 (350)
Zoning Admin Fee 400 400 89 (311
Boarding state prisoners 50,000 50,000 2,520 (47,480)
Boarding federal prisonets 410,000 410,000 238,937 (171,063)
Community service fee 22,000 22,000 6,046 (15,954)
Home detention fee 35,000 35,000 16,302 (18,698)
Work Release Fees 5,000 5,000 950 (4,050)
Inmate Medical Copay 4,000 4,000 7,308 3,308
Building Inspection fees 15,000 15,000 11,288 (3,712)
CPR Training Fees 12,942 12,942 11,740 (1,202)
Ambulance Subscription Fees 37,322 37322 28,740 (8,582)
Ambulance fees 587,257 587,257 729,172 141,915
Sub-total public safety charges 1,250,921 1,250,921 1,124,643 (126,278)
Sanitation and Waste Removal: -
Landfill fees 192,060 192,000 301,454 109,454
Recycling fees 125,000 125,000 149,584 24,584
Recycled material sales 8,000 8,000 9,547 1,547
Sub-total Sanitation and Waste 325,000 325,000 460,585 135,585
Continued
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REVENUES (Continued):

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Service Charges {continued):

Public service enterprises:
Upper Potomac River Commission
Road closing fees
Sub-total public service charges
Total Service Charges

Fines and Forfeitures:

Circuit court fines

Liquor violation fines

Fines and forfeitures
Total Fines and Forfeitures

Miscellanegus:
Interest
Rents and concessions
Miscellaneous

Total Miscellancous

Total Revenues

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative)
388,560 388,560 388,560
388,560 388,560 388,560 -
¢ ) £l L] el 3 1] {Es I'; ! Ij
7.000 7,000 2,960 (4.040)
11,000 11,000 3,750 (7,250}
10,000 10,000 5,439 (4,561)
28,000 28,000 12,149 (15,851)
315,150 315,150 107,680 (207,470)
420,000 420,000 126,300 (293,700)
145,075 145,075 171,520 26,445
280,225 £80,225 405,500 (474,725)
93,661,910 94,016,223 98,193,040 4,176,817




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
EXPENDITURES: Original Final Amount {Negative
General Government:
Legislative:
County Commissioners 180,237 180,237 172,901 7,336
County Commissioners Office - - - -
Total legistative 180,237 180,237 172,901 7,336
Judicial:
Family Support Services 241,950 223,766 222,660 1,106
Alternative dispute resolution 6,464 6,464 6,461 3
Circuit court masters program 67,496 69,254 67,352 1,902
Circuit court 412,422 415,564 446,141 (30,577
Orphans court 64,135 64,135 79,139 (15,004)
Family Law Master 64,609 64,609 64,003 606
State's attorney 1,625,670 1,640,552 1,647,273 (6,721)
Drug Coordinator 213472 213,472 167,680 45,792
Law library 21,340 21,340 21,340 -
Grand and petit juries 79,425 79,425 27,289 52,136
Total Judicial 2,796,983 2,798,581 2,749,338 49,243
Executive;
Administrator 550,442 552,948 392,797 160,151
Elections:
Registration and elections 858,772 862,655 745,011 117,644
Financial Administration:
Finance Office 825,037 840,648 688,218 152,430
Tax Office 685,606 695,273 406,514 288,759
State Assessment Fee 371,869 371,869 312,096 59,773
Accounting Software 400,000 400,000 397,312 2,688
Professional services 93,000 93,000 104,470 {11,470}
Total Financial Administration 2,375,512 2,400,790 1,908,610 492,180
Legal:
Legal counsel 232,233 232,977 172,883 60,094
Other legal/professional 173,000 173,000 159,945 13,055
Total legal 405,233 405,977 332,828 73,149
Personnel Administration:
Human Resources department 331,246 331,246 296,716 34,530
Human resources board of appeals 3,502 3,502 55 3,447
Wellness/Employee recognition 9,335 9,335 417 8,918
Total personnel administration 344,083 344,083 297,188 46,895
Planning and Zoning:
Planning and zoning department 254,651 254,651 159,710 94,941
Land use planning - - - -
Total Planning and Zoning 254,651 254,651 159,710 94,941
General Services:
County Building Maintenance 1,218,667 1,220,719 1,206,168 14,551
Data Processing 427,676 429,910 398,264 31,646
Total general services 1,646,343 1,650,629 1,604,432 46,197
Other general government:
Liquor control board 127,031 127,031 97,049 29,982
Insurance 467,660 467,660 494 089 (26,429)
Employee benefits 451,500 212,080 86,929 125,151
Post retirement benefits 655,000 655,000 969,649 {314,649)
Total Other General Government 1,701,191 1,461,771 1,647,716 (185,945)
Total General Government 11,113,447 10,912,322 16,010,531 901,791
Continued
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
EXPENDITURES: Original Final Amount (Negative)
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
1 :
Police:
Police Department 2,198,877 2,254,016 2,635,289 (381,273)
Sheriffs department 1,412,179 1,455,874 1,607,968 (152,094)
C3I Unit 13,000 13,000 23,705 {10,705)
Saft School 272,241 272,341 282,931 {10,550)
Total Police 3,806,397 3,995,231 4,549 893 (554,662)
Fire and rescue:
Emergency medical services 3,971,827 4,006,566 4,619,072 (612,506)
Length of service award 270,000 270,000 90,765 179,235
Volunteer fire companies 1,148,050 1,148,050 1,163,613 (15,563)
Total Fire 5,389,877 5,424 616 5,873,450 (448,834)
Correction;
County detention center maintenance 244 826 244,826 190,150 54,676
County detention center 7,960,372 8,009,392 8,247,228 (237,836)
Juvenile service grant 14,300 14,300 1i2 14,188
Alternative sentencing 408,562 411,459 419,181 (7,722)
Home detention grant 168,556 168,556 151,873 16,683
Total Correction 8,796,616 8,848,533 9,008,544 (160,011)
Other Protection:
Permits & enforcement 268,281 270,146 267,751 2,395
Emergency Management Agency 202,766 206,844 250,317 {43,473)
Local Emergency Board 15,000 15,000 . 15,000
Animal control 414,837 414,837 414,837 -
o211 2542272 2,583,995 3,163,749 (579,754)
Hazardous materials operations 73,000 73,000 73,292 {292)
Emergency Services 159,525 159,525 131,605 27,920
Domestic preparedness grant 400,000 400,000 315,588 84,412
Building Codes 60,556 60,556 42,365 18,191
Code Enforcement 91,136 91,136 100,411 (9,275)
Transportation planning 175,188 175,188 158,320 16,868
Total Other Protection 4,402,561 4,450,227 4,918,235 (468,008)
Tota] Public Safety 22,485,451 22,718,607 24,350,122 (1,631,515
Public Works:
Public Serviges:
Highway department 8,462,805 8,766,814 8,337,679 429,135
Airport 240,000 240,000 240,000 -
Waste collection:
Solid waste disposal 423,244 423244 523,435 (100,i91)
Solid waste recycling 282,874 284,731 193,212 91,519
UPRC 485,700 485,700 485,700 -
County engineer 1,049,925 1,129,907 1,182,653 (52,746)
Total Public Werks 10,944,548 11,330,396 10,962,679 367,717
Continued
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
EXPENDITURES: Original Final Amount _ (Negative)
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Heaith gnd Hospitals;
Brook Building 243,405 243,405 173,305 70,100
Willowbrook Office 349,000 349,000 282,714 66,286
Health Department supplemental 28,568 238,568 221,188 17,380
Western Maryland Health Planning 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Total Health and Hospitals 632,973 842973 677,207 165,766
Social Services:
Nursing Home costs 110,000 119,000 37,061 72,939
Pauper's burials 1,300 1,300 = 1,300
Human Resources Devel. Comm, 744 946 744,946 804,664
Emergency solution program 281,000 281,000 451,455 (170,455)
Child abuse coordinater 147,689 147,689 147,881 (192)
Family Crisis Center 88,800 88,800 88,800 -
Promoting Safe/Stable Families - - - -
Total Social Services 1,373,735 1,373,735 1,529,861 (96,408)
Recreation and Culture:
Agriculture Expo 13,000 13,000 11,659 1,341
Allegany County Arts Council 35,000 35,000 35,000 .
Allegany County fair 589,016 589,016 172,718 416,298
Highland trail operations 137,552 137,552 87,692 49,860
Cumberland Summer Theatre 12,000 12,000 12,000
Program Open Space 869,000 869,000 209,888 659,112
Total Recreation and Culture 1,655,568 1,655,568 528,957 1,126,611
Congervation of Na Resources:
Agricultural Extension Service 170,709 170,709 169,230 1,479
Soil conservation services 173,662 173,662 173,763 {101}
Gypsy moth control 10,000 10,000 6,000 4,000
Tota! Conservation of Natural Resources 354,371 354,371 348,993 5,378
Community Development & Housing
Allegany Co. Public Housing Authority - - -
Total Community Development & Housing - -
Economic Development,
Scenic railroad developiment 140,000 140,000 77,920 62,080
Tri-County Council 40,000 40,000 40,000 -
Tourism department 659,503 732,046 701,405 30,641
Toil House 700 700 336 364
Thrasher Museum 15,000 15,000 25,573 (10,573)
Community promotion 21,000 21,000 15,000 6,000
Total Economic Development 876,203 048,746 860,234 88,512
(continued)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
EXPENDITURES: Original Final Amount (Negative)
EXPENDITURES {Continued):
Appropriations to Other Governmentat Units:

Grants in Lieu of Taxes 28,704 28,704 28,704 -

Health Department 1,477,009 1,477,009 1,124,606 352,403

Department of Social Services 11,000 127,628 131,880 {4,252)
Total Appropriatians to Other Gov't Units: 1,516,713 1,633,341 1,285,190 348,151
Miscellaneops:

Miscellaneous 91,533 91,533 51,157 40,376
Total Miscellancous 91,533 91,533 51,157 40,376
Payments to Component Units

Allegany Co. Board of Education 31,138,670 31,138,670 31,138,670 -
Allegany College 7,706,856 7,706,356 7,706,356 -
Allegany County Library 966,545 966,545 966,545
Information Technology 109,829 109,829 109,829
Total payments to component units 39,921,900 39,921,900 39,921,900 -
Total Expenditures 90,966,442 91,783,492 90,526,831 1,316,379
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 2,695,468 2,232,731 7,666,209 2,860,438
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Unex| ed ce - prior years 760,245 1,222,982 - (1,222,582}
Transfers In from other funds:

Transfers from special revenue finds 91,989 91,989 - (91,989)

Transfers from Debt Service Fund .

Transfers from enterprise funds 24,325 24 325 32,702 8,377
Total Transfers In 116,314 116,314 32,702 (83,512)
Operating Trapsfers to Other Funds;

Special revenue funds:

Transit Fund {462,301) (462,301) (1,210,529) (748,228)
Coronvirus Fund - - (694,232) -
Narcotics Task Force -
Gaming fund - -
RBF - -

Debt service Fund:

From General government (3,002,942) (3,002,942) (1,532,173) 1,470,769

From Bureau of Police -
Capital Projects Fund

Pay-Go Fund -

Capital Projects Fund (16,951) (16,951)

Enterprise funds:

Allconet (25,000) {25,000) 25,000
Sanitary fund/Water fund {91,784) {91,784) (96,914) (5,130)

Total operating transfers to other funds (3,582,027) (3,582,027) (3,550,799} 725,460

Sale of capital assets 10,000 10,000 85,932 75,932
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses (2,695,468) (2,232,731) (3,432,165) (505,202)

Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other

financing sources over expenditures and
other financing uses $ - 3 - 4234044 § 2,355,238

Fund balance, beginning 25814492
Pund balance, ending 3 30,048,536
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REVOLVING BUILDING FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
QOriginal Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 5 3,359,078 $ 3,359,078 % 81677 § (3,277,401)
Rent 3,334,691
Federal Grants 200,000
State Grants/Other Agencies 34,008 34,008
Total Revenues 3,355,078 3,359,078 3,650,376 (3,243,393)
EXPENDITURES
Economic development 13,179,567 13,179,567 4,386,518 8,793,049
Total Expenditures 13,179,567 13,179,567 4,386,518 8,793,049
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (9,820,489) (9,820,489) (736,142) 5,549,656
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:
Unexpended balance - prior years 9,915,280 9,915,280 - (9,915,280)
Transfers to other funds (94,791) (94,791) {135,345) (40,554)
Sale of Assets - 460,019 460,019
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 9,820,489 9,820,489 324,674 (9,495,815)
Net change in fund balances $ - 3 - (411.468) 3§ (3,946,159)
Fund balance, beginning 8,255,907
Fund balance, ending 3 7,844,439

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Budgetary Basis

Annual budgets are adopted for the General and all Special Revenue Funds which include the major funds presented in the
Required Supplementary Information. All governmental fund budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAFP). Encumbrances and appropriations gencrally lapse at year-end and are treated as
expenditures in the year the liability is incurred.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted for specific purposes.

Coal Haul Roads Fund - this fund accounts for taxes levied on mined coal which are locally restricted for repairing
those roads used in transporting coal.

Transit Fund - the Transit Fund accounts for the operation of a public transit system. The primary sources of
revenues are federal and state grants.

CDBG Fund - this find accounts for revenues from the federal Department of Housing and Urban Development.
These revenues are restricted to accomplish the various objectives of CDBG programs.

Block Grant Program Income Fund - program income from Community Development Block Grants which are
restricted to specific programs are recorded in this fund,

Community Development and Housing - this fund accounts for federal grants restricted for low income housing
programs as well as various other state and federal housing programs administered by the County.

Gaming Fund - this fund reports paper gaming revenues and their support of County fire companies and
public education,

Drug Task Force Fund - this fund accounts for federal and state grants and local seizure revenues that are used
to prevent the distribution and manufacture of illegal drugs.

Sheriff Narcotics Task Force Fund - this fund accounts for expenditures needed in order to prevent the
distribution and manufacture of illegal drugs. Funded with fees such as impound fees and towing fees.

State Fire and Rescue Fund - this fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of State Section 508 funds
to the various County fire and rescue organizations.

Cares Act-COVID 19-this fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of federal COVID 19 funding.

Rocky Gap Slots Revenue Fund-this fund accounts for the receipt of slots revenue from the Rocky Gap
Casino and the distribution of funds to various agencies.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general
obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources.

Capital Projects Funds

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for capital projects primarily funded by grants and other
external sources.

The PAYGO (Pay-As-You-Go) Capital Project Fund is used to segregate resources for future capital
projects and is fonded by transfers from the general fund and other sources.



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

- Special Revenue Funds
Coal Community Bleck Grant  Community Drug
Haul Development  Program Development Task Sheriff
Roads Transit Block Grant Income & Housing Force Narcotics Coronavirus

ASSETS; Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Task Ferce CARES Fund

Cash $ - % 150 % - % - 3 - % 1,000 §$ - % .

Cash - restricted . - - 31,086 - .

Investments 804,989 = - 107,447 8,500

Investments-restricted

Receivables

Notes and loans . 173,319 - - -
Qther 1,118,781 . 10,022 39,230

Due from other funds - 9,739 406,642 53,165 757,335 135,136 2425

Inventory - 41,235 - - - - - -
Total Assets 804,989 1,160,166 9,739 579,961 94,273 905012 143.636 2425
LIARBILITIES:

Accounts payable 22,637 425417 - 8,737 392

Accrued payroll - 31,046 - . - 1,227

Accrued payroll fringe . 16,416 - < 5

Due to other funds 687,193 49,074 - - . -

Amounts held in escrow - - . 84,251 639,466 111,900

Unavailable revenue - - 173,319 - - -
Total Liabilitics 687,193 119,173 - 598,736 84,25] 669,525 112,292 -
DEFERRED INFLOWS of RESOURCES:

Grant Reimbursement not Available 1,040,993 10,022
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 1,040,993 - - 10,022 - - -
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable . 41,235 - - -

Restricted 117,796 9,739 235487 31,344 2425

Committed . - - . - -

Assigned . - - - . -

Unassigned - (41,235) - (18,775} - - -
Total Fund Balances 117,796 - 9.739 {18,775) - 235,487 31,344 2,425
Total Lizbitities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances § 804989 § 1,160,166 3 9739 § 579961 § 94273 § 905012 § 143,636 _§ 2,425




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Capital Project Funds
State Fire, Rocky Gap PAYGO Total Total
Rescue & Slots Debt Capital Capital Capital Noamajor
MD Relief Gaming P Safety Revenue Service Project Project Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

§ - 8 - ¥ [ L150 § - 3§ - 8 - & $ 1,150
. 31,086 - - . 31,086

- 329,705 1,250,641 1,152,546 1,152,546 2,403,187

6,863,339 3 6,863,339

- 173,319 - - 173,319

32,240 224,198 1,424,471 1,274,547 1,274,547 2,699,018

232,945 1,060,126 552,293 1,773,722 4,983,528 259,196 259,196 5,242.724
- - - 41,235 - - - - 41,235
232,945 1,092,366 881,998 1,997,920 7,905,430 6,863 339 1,274,547 1,411,742 2,686,289 17,455,058
232,945 1,873 11,265 1,135,617 1,838,883 - 66,275 66,275 1,905,158
3,265 - 35,538 - - 35,538

1,047 - 17,558 - - 17,558

- - 736,267 365,434 2,616,166 2,616,166 3,717,867

- 855,617 . - 855,617

- - 173,319 - 441,008 - 441 008 614,327

232,945 6,185 11,265 1,135,617 3,657,182 365,434 3,123, 449 - 3,123,449 7,146,065
1,051,015 188,980 - 188,980 1,239,995

- - - - 1,051,015 - 188,980 - 188.980 1,239,995

- - 41,235 - - 41,235

- - 870,733 1,267,524 6,497,905 - - 7,765,429
1,086,181 - 862,303 1,948,484 . - - - 1,948,484

- - - . - 1,411,742 1,411,742 1,411,742
- - - - (60,010) 037 882 - (2,037,882) (2,097,892

- 1,086,181 870,733 862,303 3,197,233 6,497,905 (2,037,882) 1411.742 {626,140) 9,068,998

$ 232045 § 1092366 § 881998 § 1997920 § 7905430 3 6,863,339 $ 1274547 § 1411742 § 26862890 8 17455059
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Special Revenue Funds
Coal Community  Block Grant (-lommunity Drug
Haul Development  Program Development Task Sheriff
Roads Transit Block Grant Income & Housing Force Narcotics Coronavirus
REVENUES: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Task Force CARES Fund

Other local taxes § 59940 § - 3 - 8 - 8 - 8
Intergovernmenia!:
Federal - 498,099 . 170 924 065 48,408 3,706,490
State/Other : 242249 - - 36,450 1,590,583
Service charges - 199.190 - . -
Fines and forfeitures . . - . - 147,752 46,942
Interest - . -
Miscellaneous - - 19,253 - 35,941 24 587 6,316
Total Revenues 59.940 939.53 - 19,423 924,065 268,551 71,529 5,303,389

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government = . o E - .
Public safety . £ . - - 219,923 34,943
Public works 2,078,098 . . - - -
Health and Human Services 5,163,654
Community Development
and Housing . . - 425,417 924,063
Economic development - - - . -
Payments to Other Orgs - . - -
Payments to component units
Debt Service:
Principal : - ‘ z -
Interest - . - -
Capital Qutlay:
General government . . . -
Public Safety . - - - - 5,715 85,718
Public works 132,264 78,719 . . . - -
Health and Human Services 831,542
Education = H . - -
Recreation & Culture . - - - : -
Library - - - - . -
Economic development . . . - . -
Miscellanecus - - - - -
Total Expenditures 132,264 2,156,817 - 425417 924 065 225,638 120,661 5,995,196

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (72,324) (1,217,279) - (405,994) - 42913 (49,132) (691,807

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in - 1,210,529 . : - 694,232
Transfers out - . - .
Debt issued - - - . - -
Capital leases - . - . .
Sale of capital assets - 6,750 - 425417 - 9275 80,985

Total Other Financing
Sources and uses - 1217279 - 425417 - 9275 80,985 694,232

Net change in fund balances (72,324) - - 19,423 . 52,188 31,853 2,425

Fund balance, beginning, 190,120 - 9,739 (38.198) - 183,299 (509)
Fund balance, ending $ 117,79 _§ -3 9719 § (18775 _$ - 5 235487 % 31344 8§ 2425

]




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMEINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Sp&@l Revenue Funds Debt Service Capital Project Funds
State Fire, Total PAYGO Total Total
Rescue & Rocky Gap Special Debt Capital Capital Capital Nonmajor

MD Relief Gaming Public Safety Slots Revenue Revenue Service Project Praject Prajects Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 543429 $ $ 603,369 § $ $ 603,369
- - 5,177,232 ‘ 854,458 854,458 6,031,690
598,908 . 348,889 2,560,261 5,377,340 . 373,557 100,000 473,557 5,850,897
37,300 . 236,490 . 19,635 . 19,635 256,125
194,654 . . - . 194,694
156,773 158,450 401,320 - - 401,320
598,908 737,502 507,339 2,560,261 11,990,445 - 1,247,650 100,000 1,347,650 13,338,095
159,214 - 69,387 228,601 - - - 228,601
48,300 445468 1,325,520 2,074,154 . - . 2,074,154
- 2,078,098 - - - 2,078,008
5,163,654 5,163,654
232,946 1,582,428 1,582,428
365,962 - 365,962 365,962
- 200,000 200,000 200,000
360,000 360,000 360,000
- - 8,084,176 . . - 8,984,176
- - 1,103,951 - - - 1,103,951
- - 29,644 186,313 215,957 215,957
91,433 679,521 826 680,347 771,780
- - 210,983 382,488 54,395 436,883 647,866
831,542 831,542
- - 972,543 972,543 972,543
102,256 102,256 102,256
598,908 207,514 445 468 1,954,907 13,186,855 10,088,127 2,166,452 241,534 2,407,986 25,682,968
- 520 988 61,871 605,354 {1,196410) _ (10.088,127) {918,802y (141,534) {1,060,336) {12.344.873)
- 1,904,761 16,941,396 16,951 235,163 252114 19,098,271
{160,000) (160,000) - (75,163) (75,163) (235,163)
- - - 522427 - - - - 522,427
- - - (160,000) 2,267,188 16,941,396 16,951 160,000 176,951 19,385,535
529,988 61,871 445,354 1,070,778 6,853,269 (901,851) 18,466 (883,385) 7,040,662
(6.753) (6,753)
556,193 808,862 416,949 2,126,455 !355,364! (1,136,032) 1,400,029 263,997 2,035,088
3 14li74z 31619387 § 0068997

g 1,0861181 [] 870,733 $ 862,303 $ 31197,233 3 6,4971905 5210371882!
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise fimds are used when debt is backed solely by fees or charges, or there is a legal requirement to
recover costs through fees or charges or a policy decision has been made to recover costs of providing
services through user fees.

Allconet IT Fund - this fund is used to account for the assets and operations of the second phase of the
Allegany County high speed internet network which provides the infrastructure to connect the private and
public sector to broadband/wideband technologies.

County Loan Fund - this fund accounts for the loan activity between the County, various agencies and
the community, It also includes loans to the County's enterprise funds.



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROFRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2021
Allegany
County
Loan
ASSETS Allconet I Fund Tatal
Current Assets:
Cash:
Cash 3 - $ - $ -
Receivables:
Accounts (net) 8,641 8,641
Other 24,880 386,808 411,688
Due from other funds 147,787 592,180 739,967
Miscellaneous assets - -
Total current assets 181,308 978,988 1,160,296
Non-current Assets:
Advances to other funds 187,331 187,331
Capital assets subject
to depreciution 5,510,589 . 5,510,589
Accumulated depreciation {4,703,552) . (4,703,552)
Total noncurrent assets 807,037 187,331 994 368
Total Assets 988,345 1,166,319 2,154,664
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 15,516 . 15,516
Due to other funds - - -
Miscellaneous liabilities - -
Total current liabilities 15,516 15,516
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long term: debt:
Compensated absences - - -
Total noncurrent liahilities - - -
Total Liabilities 15,516 . 15,516
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 807,037 . 807,037
Unrestricted 165,792 1,166,319 1,332,111
Total Net Position $ 972829 3 1,166,319 “§ 2139148
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Allegany
County
Loan

OPERATING REVENUES: Alleonet IT Fund Total

Service charges 43,906 - 43,906
Total operating Revenues 43,906 43,906
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Rent Expense 19,584 - 19,584

Utilities 6,737 - 6,737

Repairs & maintenance 13,434 - 13,434

Professional services 27,197 - 27,197

Materials and supplies 26,507 - 26,507

Insurance 1,770 - 1,770

Miscellaneous

Depreciation 222,779 - 222,779
Total operating expenses 318,008 - 318,008
Operating Income (Loss) (274,102) - (274,102)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

Interest income E -

Other income (expense) - - -
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) . -
Income {Loss) before contributions

and transfers {274,102) - (274,102)

Federal grants 539,761 519,761

State grants 113,692 113,692

Transfer in -

Transfer out - (32,702) (32,702)
Change in net position 379,351 (32,702) 346,649
Total net position - beginning 593,478 1,199,021 1,792,459
Total net position - ending $ 972,829 5 1,166,319 $ 2,139,148
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2021

Allegany
County
Loan
Cash flows from operating activities: Allconet 11 Fund Total
Cash received from customers $ 50,248 5 25,397 3 75,645
Cash payments for goods and services (79,863) (79,863)
Other operating revenues -
Net cash provided by operating
activitics (29,615) 25,397 (4.218)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Advances from other funds (205,140) (8,355) {213,495)
Advances to other funds 404,230 15,660 419,850
Transfers from other funds -
‘Transfers to other funds - (32,702) (32,702)
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 199,090 (25,397) 173,693
Cash flows from capital and related fimancing activities:
Acquisition and construction
of capital assets (864,128) - (864,128)
Grant Revenue 653,453 653,453
Contract Bid deposit 41,200 - 41,200
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities (169,475) - (169,475)
Cash flows from investing actlvities:
Purchase of investments - -
Sale of investments -
Interest on investments - -
Net cash used in investing activities - -
Wet increase (decrease) in cash 0 0
Cash at beginning of the year - -
Cash at end of year § 0 3 - $
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) § (274,102) $ - §  (274,102)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to ’
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 22,779 222,779
Provision for uncollectible accounts -
Change in assets & liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables 6,342 25,397 31,739
(Increase) decrease in prepaids - -
Increase (decrease) in ace'ts payable 15,366 15,366
Increase {decrease) in accrued payroll - - .-
Total adjustments 244,487 25,397 269,884
Net cash provided by
operating activities ] (29,615) $ 25,397 {4,218)
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Debt Service Fund,
Special Revenue Funds

&
Capital Project Funds
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous:
Paying agent foes $ 25,000 $ 25000 $ - $ 25,000
Debt Service:
Principal payments on :
General obligation debt 1,780,679 1,780,679 8,821,002 (7,040,323)
State loans 206,981 206,981 163,174 43,807
Total principal payments 1,987,660 1,987,660 8,984,176 (6,996,516)
Interest payments on:
General obligation debt 1,054,885 1,054,885 1,099,370 (44,485)
State loans 10,840 10,840 4,581 6,259
Total interest payments 1,065,725 1,065,725 1,103,951 (38,226)
Total Expenditures 3,078,385 3,078,385 10,088,127 (7,009,742)
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (3,078,385) (3,078,385} (10,088,127) 7,009,742
Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
Unexpended Fund Balance ] - -
Transfers from other funds:
From the General Fund 3,002,942 3,002,942 1,532,173 (1,470,769)
From the Capital Projects Fund 15,293,226
From the Revolving Building Fund 75,443 75.443 115,997 40,554
Transfer to General Fund - -
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 3,078,385 3,078,385 16,941,396 (1,430,215)
Net change in fund balances 5 - b - 6,853,269 $ (8,439,957)
Fund balance, beginning (355,364)
Fund balance, ending $ 6,497,905

= |

E-15




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FiIND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR TEE YEAR ENDED JUN 30, 2021

Coal Haul Rozds Fand Translt Fund
Varlance With Varignce With
Final Budget Final Budgey
Originat Final Positive Original Final Pasitive
REVENUES: Budgzt Budget Actual __{INepative} Budggt Budget Actual —Negative)

Taxes - State Sharsd H - 8 - - % - § B L} - [ - H -

Other local taxes 65,000 65,000 59,940 (5,060) - - -

Intergovernmental:

Fedend - 1,217,562 1,217,562 458,699 (719,463)
Stale - - - 365,465 565,465 242,249 (323218)
Other - - - - - - . -

Service chargey - - 397,000 397,000 199,150 (197,810}

Fines and forfeitures - - - - - - - -

Inierest 5,000 5,000 (5,000} -

Miscellaneous - - - - - -
Tolal Revenues - 70,000 10,000 59940 {10,060} 2,180,027 2,180,027 939,538 (1,240,489)
EXPENDITURES:

Qeneral government - - - - - -

Public safety - - - - - - - -

Public workss 70,000 70,000 132,264 62, 264) 2,642,228 2,642,328 2,156,817 485,511

Health & Human Sves . - - - - -

Social Services - - - -

Community Development

and Housing - - -

Egonomic development - - -

Education

Misotllancous s L] - - -

P C Unite: - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditares 70,000 70,£00 132,264 (62,264} 2,642,328 2,642 318 2,156,817 485,511
Enxcess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) dif L] L] {1234y {02.324) {462,301} {462,301) {1.217.279) (754,978)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES):

Unexpended balance - prior - - - - - -

Transfer from other funds - - - " 462,301 462,301 1.210,52% 748,228

Transfers to other fimds - - - - E

Debd issued - - - - . - -

Sale of capital assels - [ - - - - 6,750 6,750
Tetal Other Financing

Sowrces and Uses - - - - 301 301 1,217,279 334,978

Nct change in fund balances ; Co - (72324 _§  (Jo3M) $ = 5 - - $ .
Fund balance, beginning, 150,120 -

Fund bulsnce, ending 3 117,29 i -




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Community Developmeat Block Grant Fand Block Grast Program Iscome Fand
‘Veriance With Variance With
Final Budget Final Budget
Orriginal Final Pogitive Original Fimal Pusitive
BEVENUES; __ Bas  _ Budew Al Qg _DBudge  __Bodey  __Aomal _ (Negwhp)

Taxes - State Shared [ - H - 5 - ] - ] - ] - $ - $ -

Onher local s - - - J - -

Intergovemmental:

Pederal - = - 170 170
State - . > - .
Orher - = - - .

Service charges - - .

Fines and forfciivres - - -

Intaresl - - - =

- - - - - - 19,253 19,253
Total Revenuss - - = - - - 19,423 19.423
EXPENDITURES:

General government - - -

Public mfcty - - - -

Public works - - - - -

Health & Human v - = o -

Highvay - * £

Social Services - -

‘Community Pevclopment -

and Housing E - - 425,417 (425417}

Economlc development. . - - - # =

Education

Miscelianeous -

Payments to Ci Und, - - - - r - = -
Toul i - - - - - - 425,417 {425417)
Excess (deficlency) of neverues

ever (under) expenditures - - - - - - {403,994) 403,004
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USESK

Unexqpended bataag: - priar - - - - - - -

Transfiz from othex fnds - - - - - -

Teansfers 1o sther fands - - - - - "

Debt ismued . - B - - =

Sale of capital assels = - - = - ) 423417 A17
Total Other Finuncing

Sources and Uses = - L3 - = - 425417 425417

Net change ln fund balances ! - 5 = ] = 5 - 3 = 19,413 3 19.423
Fund balance, beginning, 9,73% {38,198)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENTES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Community Deve ot & Housing Fund Sheriff Drug Task Force Narcotics Drup Task Force
Variance With Variance With Variancs With
Finz] Bodget Final Budget Final Budgel
Criginal Fimal Posilive Original Final Posilive Original Final Pesitive
REVENUES: Bwiget _ Bodgel Actaal (Nepative} _Budget _ Pudgct Actugl (Negative) Budget Budgst Actual _ [Nepative}
Taxes - State Shared § - 3 - F - 5 - 8 - % - 5 - 8 - 8 - - % - 8 -
Oihier local Laxes - - - - - . -
Intergovernmenial:
Federal 924,065 924,065 - - 48,408 48,408
Suate - - . 36,450 36,450
Other - - - - -
Servige charges - - - - - - - - - - -
Fines and forfeilures - - 45,942 46,942 114,600 114,608 147,752 33,152
Interest - - - -
seell: - - L3 - - - 24,587 24,587 - - 35,941 35,941
Tatal Revonues - = 924,063 924 065 - - 71,829 71,529 114,600 114,600 268,551 153,951
EXPENDITURES:
General government - - - - - - -
Public safety - - 120,661 {120,661) 114,600 114,600 225,638 {111,038
Public works - - - - - - -
Heslth & Human Sves - - - - - -
Highway - - - - . i a
Sacial Services - - - - - & - =
Community Development
and Houging - 924,665 (924,065)
Economic develppment - - - -
Educaticn
Miscellaneaus - - . -
Paymients to C Uné - - - = - - - - - = - -
Total i = - 924,063 (924 065) - - 120,666 {120.661) 114,600 114,600 225,638 {111,038}
Excess {deficiency) of revanues
over {under) di - - - = - = (49.132) (49,132 - = 41,913 42913
OUR:
Unexpended balance = prior - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transker from olher funds - - - - - -
Transiers i other fonds - - - - - - - - - - - -
Debi {ssued - - - - - - - - - - - -
Salc of capital agscly - - - - - - 80,985 80,985 - - 5,275 9,275
Total Other Financing
Sources and Uses - - - . - - 80,985 80,985 = - 5,275 9,275
Mel change in fund balances_3$ - % L - 3 - 3 = 8 = 31853 _§ 31353 ; - % - 51,138 ; Sé 138
Fund balance, beginning, - (509; 133,299
fund balance, ending [ . % 5§ 135,487
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ALLEGANY ©OUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Coronavirus CARES ACT & MD Relief Gamlng Fexd Revalving Bullding Fusd
i Variance With Variznoe With Variance With
Fingl Budget Final Budan Final W
Ovigimad Final Positive Criginal
REVENUES: _ . . . Byges  __ Bydsd Acwal ML..%JM_ Actaal _(Eﬂlﬂil_ _ML _Edaﬂ.._ _m _{!mﬁl_

Taoces - State Shared $ - 3 - § -

Other [ocal wexes !m 484,000 543429 1.59,429 -

Imergoverumental:

Federal 163,689 3,706,490 3,542,301 - - - - 200,000 200,000
Siate 1,906,547 2,189,491 282,944 - - - 34,008 34,003
Other - - & - - -

Service charges 31,000 31,000 37,300 6300 - -

Fings pnd focfeitares . - - -

Interest - - - -

Renu/M 6316 6316 - wem  uem  __amem ___!M_s.ﬂ.& it
Total Revenues - 2,076,582 5,902,297 3,825,745 413,000 413,500 737,502 322502 2,359,078 3350078 3,650376 291 208
EXPENDITURES:

General goverament 117,409 178,645 135214 19,431

Public; safety 59398 59,398 43,300 11098

Public works - - - .

Health & Hmmas Svey 6,903,344 5,995,196 008,148 = J -

Highomy . 7 i

Social Sarvices = - =

Community Develogment -

and Howsing 232,946 (232,946) - - -

Ecanomic development 365,962 {365,962) g 13,179,567 13,179,567 4,386,518 8,793,049

Education -

Misocilatenus - - - - -

Paymenis to (X Unifs 178193 iy 178,193 - =) &
Total B di - 6,903,344 5,594,104 3092 m 416,236 é 4 208,722 13,179,567 13,119,567 4,385,518 8,793,049
Excess {deficlency) of revenues

over (inder) di - (4,826.79%) 691 3.516.508 - (1,236} 529,988 531294 19,820,489) (9,%20,439) {736, 142) 9064347
AND

Unexpanded balance - prior years 4,826,192 (4,826,792) - - - - 9,915,280 9,915,280 - (9,915,280

Transfer from other funds 694,232 694,232 1,236 (1,236) - - -

Transfers to other funds - - - (54,791) {94,191) {(135,345) (40,554)

Debt irrued - - - - - - -

Sale of capilal axsela - - - - - - 19 019
Total Other Financing

Sources pnd Uses = 4,826 792 594,232 {4.132.5600 - 1,236 - {1,296y 9,820,483 9,820,489 326M 15.495,815)

Net change in fnd balances_§ =3 -_$ 2425 8 {816.053) _$ -3 - 520988 _§ 429, - - 3 - (411,468) _§ {411,468)
Fund balanoe, begimming, - 556,193 8255907
Furd balacs,cading i S—— AT T
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHAXGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Five, Rescue & Public Safety Fund Rocly Gap Slois Reveane Fund Total Special Reveue Funds
Varance With Variance With Variance With
Final Budge! Flnal Budget Final Budget
Original Final Posifive Oulginal Final Positive Original Final Positive
WBEVENUES: _ Budget _ Budget  Actoal  (Mesative) ., Bodge  _ Buodest  Actual (Newstive)  Budget _ Budgs Actus] —{Negative)
Taxes « Siate Shared $ - 3 - 8 - % - % - 3 - 8 - 3 - 5 - % - 3 - 8 -
Other local taxes - - - 449,000 449,000 603,369 154,369
Tiergovernmental: - - -
Federal - - - - - . . 1,217,562 1,381,251 5,371,132 3,995,981
Siale 335,970 335910 343,835 12,919 2,443,978 2445978 2,560,261 114,283 901,435 1,807,982 5,411,348 2,603,366
Other - - - - - - - . - -
Service charges 34,000 34,000 - (34,000) 462,000 462,000 236,495 225,510)
Fines and forfeitures - - - - - - - 114,600 114,600 194,694 86,094
Interest - i 5,000 5,000 - (3,000)
Miscellaneous 46,000 46,000 158,450 112,450 - 3405078 3,410,394 3,817,688 294
Tolal Revgnues 415,970 415,970 507,339 91,369 2345978 2443978 2,560,261 114,283 6,554 675 8631227 13,640,821 7,009,594
EXPENDITURES:
General government - ' 562,589 562,989 69,387 493,602 177,408 178,845 228,601 49,956
Public safety 415,970 415,970 445,468 {29,498) 1,162,989 1,162,989 1325500 (162,531) 589,968 389,98 2,165,587 1,575,619
Public works - - - - - . : 2,712,328 2N2,3:8 2,289,081 (423,247)
Health & Human Svcs - E - - 6,903,344 5,993,196 (908,148)
Highway . . . K
Social Services - - - -
Community Development - - -
and Housing i s i - n 1,582,428 1,582,428
Economic development - - - . - 13,179,567 13,179,567 4,752,430 (8.427,087)
Education - . - -
Misc 200,000 200,009 200,000 - - - 200,000 204,000
Pavments to C: Uni - - - - 360,000 350,000 360,000 - 178,193 178,193 360,000 181,
Totzl E: di 415,970 415,970 445,468 3498 2285978 2283078 1,954,907 331,071 16,837,465 23,742,045 13373373 (6,168,672)
Excess (deficicney) of revenucs
over (undsr) i - - 51871 61871 160,000 160,000 605,354 605,354 (10.282,790) _ (15108:8) (1,932,552 840,922
. A SOURCES AND {1
Unexpended balance - prior - - - - - . 9,915,280 14,242,072 - {14,742,072)
‘Transfer from other funds - - - - - - - - 462,301 463,537 1,904,761 1,441,224
Transfers to other funds - - - - {160,000) (160,000) {160,000} - (54,791) {94,781) {295,345) (200,354)
Dbt isswed - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sale of capilai assels - - - - - - - - - - 982 446 82446
Tatal Other Fiuancisg
Sources and Uses - - = - {160,600) {160,000} {160,000} - 14, 290 15130818 2,591 862 {12 518 956)
Net change in fund balances,_§, L ] - 6187 _§ 6], 871 ] - - 445334 $ 605354 _§ -3 - 5 659310 3% 11,678,034
Fund belance, beginniag, 808,862 416,949 10,382,362
Fund balance, ending § _B70,713 $ 862303 g !1!041 572
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Capital Improvement Projects Fund Pay-As-You-Go (PAYGO) Fund
Variance With Variance With
Final Budgst Final Budget
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
REVENUES: Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Intergovernmental

Federal grants $ 854,458 $ 854,458 3 - 3% 3 -

State grants 1,338,700 1,338,700 373,557 {565,143) - 100,000 100,000

Other ) 19,635 19,635 .

Other Taxes 5 - - -

Miscellaneous:

Interest - - - . -

Miscellaneous - - - - - -
Total Revenues 1,338,700 1,338,700 1,247,650 (91,050) - - 100,060 100,000
EXPENDITURES:

General Goverment 29,644 (29,644) 186,313 (186,313)

Public Safety 679,521 (679,521) 826 (826)

Public Works 1,338,700 1,338,700 382,488 956,212 54,395 (54,395)

Health . - - - . - -

Social Services - - - - - -

Educaticn 972,543 (972,543)

Recreation, Culture & Libraries . . 102,256 {102,256)

Conservation of Natural Resourc - - - - -

Bconomic Development . -

Miscellaneous - - - . -

Payments to component ynits - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 1,338,700 1,338,700 2,166,452 (827,752) - - 241,534 (241,534)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over {(under) expenditures = - (918,802) (918,802) - - (141,534) {141,534)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:

Unexpended fund balance

Trensfers In:

From other funds 16,951 16,951 235,163 235,163

Transfers Out:

To other funds - ; . - (75,163) {75,163)

Debt issued/Premium - - -

Capital leases . - - 5 -

Sale of capital assets - - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing Uses - - 16,951 16,951 - - 160,000 160,000
Net change in fimd balances $ - 8 - (901,851 § (501,851) $ - 8 - 18466 % 18,466
Fund balance, beginning {1,136,032) 1,393,276
Fund balance, ending $  (2,037,883) § 1411742
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Public Improvement Bonds
Capital Projects Fund Total All Capital Projects
Variance With Variance With
Final Budget Final Budgst
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 510,000 8 510,000 3 (510,000) § 510,000 $ 510,000 $ 854,458 $ 344458
- 1,338,700 1,338,700 473,557 (865,143)

873,531 873,531 - 893,166 893,166

158,175 158,175 158,175 158,175

510,000 510,000 1,031,706 521,706 1,848,700 1,848,700 2,379,356 530,656
1,995,516 (1,995,516) - 2,211,473 (2,211,473}
685,384 (685,384) . - 1,365,731 (1,365,731)

1,275,000 1,275,000 2,040,643 {765,643) 2,613,700 2,613,700 2,477,526 136,174
623,484 {623,484) 1,596,027 (1,596,027)
- . - - 102,256 (102,256)
1,275,000 1,275,000 5,345,027 (4,070,027) 2,613,700 2,613,700 7,753,013 (5,139,313)
(765,000) {765,000) {4,313,321) (3,548 321) {765,000) (765,000) (5,373.657) (4,608,657)
765,000 765,000 {765,000) 765,000 765,000 (765,000)

- 252,114 252,114
(15,293,227) (15,293,227 - (15,368,390) (15,368,390)

18,572,346 18,572,346 - - 18,572,346 18,572,346

765,000 765,000 3,279.119 2,514,113 765,000 765,000 3,456,070 2,691 070
3 - $ - (1,034,202) §_ (1,034,202) 3 - L) - (1,917,587) $  (1917,587)

8,224 644 8,488.641
2119042 5 6564301




CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND PROJECT
BALANCES
FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30, 2021

E-23



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND PROIECT BALANCES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Proj.
Capita) Improvement Projects Fund No.
Burcau of Mioes 4082
New Hope Bridge 40B3
Cash Vallcy Road 4084
Driaster Recovery 408%
Floed buyouts 4087
Delenition Center HVAC 4084
Orlenns Road Bridge 408B
Bridge Industrial Park 408C
Fairgrounds 48F
Allegany High Scheol 408H
Potcmaz Hollow Road Bridge 408P
Evitis Creck 408Q
Taksma Drainzge 408T
Tree Planting Grant 408U
Emergency Wetershed 408V
Rural Lagecy 0EW
Shaft 408X
Frostburg Pond 408Y
Dry Run Phare I 409L
Flocd Gate, Savage Dam 4098
Potomnc River Water 409T
Aliegany Comrumity Callege 4140
Aliegeny Museum 4141
Iron Rail Project 4142
RS Brdige 4143
Old Miller 4144
Baorden Tunnel 4145
LwC 4146
Cumb St Bridgs 4147
Alleg High Schoal Demo 4i48
Brodie Road 4149
Georges Creck S5 4150
FEMA Tradler Park 415
MTA Hub 42iC
Highland Trail 410X
Pay-As-You-Go Capital Praject fund
Computer Netwerk 4131
Roads Paving Program 418
LaVale Blvd Storm Drain 42060
Software upgrade 4208
Disaster Emecgency Cagital 20V
Carcigker House 4207
OF Roads Imgrovements 4203
‘Washingien St Columns 4204
Bridge Street bridge 4207
Draingge improvements 4208
Mt Savage Roof 4210
Fiber inftastructure 4214
Pans Mt Tower 4118
Library Repairs 4ALF
Seriff Buiiding 4218
Alleonet 4211
Rocky Gap Slos-Bd of ED 42iM
Rocky Gap Siots-County 42IN
Sheriff K-8 4218
Courty bldg improvermeals 4181
Public Improvement Bonds Capital Prolect Pund
2013 PIB Ciloting Costs 4331
2013 Taxable Bond Closing Costs 4333
2013 PIB Bond [nterest 413y

2014 PIB Educnicnnl Bond Closing 4341
2014 PIB Educational Bond Costs 4342

EMS Radio sysiem 4351
ACC Building 4352
Waootcock 43353
Bridge Relb 4354
Bowling Green Stormwnler 4355
Boné Costs 4357
Belair foof 4338
Parkside Roof 4359
CAD Sysiem 4331
AC Teck Bldg. 4382
County Bridges 4383
Courty Buildicg 4384
AC Roof 4385
Reads Equipment 4386
Reads Garags 4387
LaVale Libeary 4388
Bond Costs 4389
Bond Interest 438Z
2020 Bond Preceeds/Costs 4391-43%9

Tatal Capital Pzcect Furds

Project Revenues and other Soarces

Length Federal Sume Orher SBervice
Budget Orants Cleants Interpovl Charges

700,000
150,000
2,000
795,000 753,778
86,350 164,268
375,000 384,864
175,600 267,195
50,000 127,991
327,326 2,081,543
300,000 290,318
800,600 795,43
520,000 292,085 -

3,715,000 3,265,061 401,372 328,590
70,000 15,000 - .
93,80C

300,000 120,964 60,000
450,000 13,338
250,600 105,035
300,000 262,040
183,000 140,587 18,300
186,000 30,009
15,000 68430
6,000
500,000 145,548
156,000

1,009,000 674560 11,216

30,000 24,735
10,606,000 3,224,644 6,032,359 6,772 -

69,893

117,588

71,000

220,916

12,010,003 11,69%,721 283272 339,800

507,497

350,000 - - - -
5,606,608 - 40,000
1,500,000 - 110,425 10,000 -
835,302 230,856 ;
202,000 ; -
102,000
743,123 - 16,392
250,000
£16,000
7,500
125,090
270,000
75,000 30,000
430,000 1,826,288
80,000
160,000
407,775
407,778
6,000
651,581 18,981 - 100,000 -

10,600
134,500

3,597

5,500
4,000

226,259

249,837 14C,43% 1,936,288 56,352

4,256

150,009
13,593,905 500,600
6,000,000 505,500
1,100,009
1,600,000 530,511
680,000
300,000
250,000
235,000
185,000
3,000,000
2,700,000
2,500,060
250,000
450,000
525,000
850,000
400,006 1,064,214
1,023,968

18,572,348

26,532
105,831

446,18F
5,744

565,500 1,030,511 1,064,214 -

388,288

5 12,765,430 § 12868667 % 5.283,7M $ 396,192
T e | =

§  L500,41
rrs——
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL FROIECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND PROJECT BALANCES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revemees and other Sonrces Mmm and other Uses Romaining
Debt Tramafers Ttk Transfers Toal Projest Project
Frocoeds -] Sources Expenditures Out Useg Balance Bedget
697,637 697,637 697,637 - (14,637)
46,613 168466 168,466 158,456 - (B A66)
863 675,100 675,100 &73,100 -
200 304,973 304973 304,973 . {54.973)
11,591 11,391 378 11,213 14,591 - ()
395,654 829,346 829,346 829,346 - 394,346)
308,888 2,390,948 3,033,353 - 3,033,353 ©4L408) 3,903,647
770,430 770,430 799,469 799,469 (29,039} (99.465)
18,521 136,109 271,919 271,919 {135,810 (121,919)
133,780 123,780 132,419 2,267 134,686 (906) (132,686)
251,693 9BFATL 985,471 985,471 - (190,471)
164,263 162,526 1,42 154,268 - (77.918)
384,864 374,653 10,211 384,864 B (9.864)
1,742 268,937 267,542 267,542 1,395 (O2,542)
72,452 200,053 200,053 200,053 . (150,053)
2,107,918 2,006,140 2,006,140 101,778 {1,678,614)
20318 285,619 285619 4,659 14381
715 796,154 797,180 797,180 1,026) 2820
84,527 286,613 387328 387,328 N15) 132,672
220,000 428500 4,079,612 135,41t 4,215,023 - (500,023)
123,360 138,360 118,773 118,773 19,587 48.773)
62,284 62,284 74817 74,817 {12,539) 18,183
180,964 300,495 300,495 (119,531) 493)
15,063 5,000 5,000 10,062 445,000
105,835 120211 120211 (15,176) 129,789
262,040 262,092 152,002 2) 37,908
16,951 173,838 175,438 175,838 - 1162
101,000 223,894 223,894 (122,834) 43,854)
E8430 68430 68,430 - (53,430)
2,267 2,267 1,032,541 1,031,541 {1,029,274) ©71,541)
145,348 145,548 145,548 354452
- 69,943 69,943 (69,543) 80,057
636,170 679,521 679,521 6,649 320479
M.135 27484 27484 (2,745) 2516
- L] 9908 412 9,903,412 - 5,908,412 - 597,588
- 3,985,762 27,794,145 29,671,183 160,844 29,832,027 2,037,832) 1,473,246
- 365,059 363,909 159314 5715 165,039 00,000 184,961
- 6,163,579 6.213,573 5,693,254 95,336 3,783,590 424,589 (181,982)
982,612 1,257,547 1,056,125 : 1,056,125 201,422 443,875
805,309 1,036,165 1,056,528 - 1,036,528 20,363) {251,219)
400,000 400,000 99,342 200,200 299,542 100,458 (99,542)
155,300 155,300 147,163 18,522 165,685 (10,385) (65,68%)
881,770 98,162 979,837 - 979,857 {81,695) (246,734)
27,196 270,196 278,951 276951 (6,735) 76,951y
416,000 416,000 445,672 - 443,672 Q9,670 29,67
- 61,413 65,410 93,835 93,835 @325 {6.335)
125,000 125,000 125,060 125,000
200,000 200,000 124,837 75,163 200,000 - 70,000
123,500 153,500 153,500 153,500 - (7B,500)
196,842 2,028,630 2021877 2,021,877 6,753 (L3987
880,000 884,000 825,470 38530 884,000 - (84,000
50,000 30,600 80 80 49,920 95,020
626,279 626279 485,682 485,632 140,597 77,907
626,279 626,279 246,476 137.038 383,514 242,765 24,261
6,000 6,000 b 870 5,000 5.030
- 482,693 827,933 735,831 - 735,831 92,102 1
- 13.817.811 16,605,015 14.602 764 500,514 15,193,278 1,411,742 (1921,5079)
226,933 26,93 228,754 228,754 (1,819 (228,759)
36,017 36,017 53,636 52,696 2,381 (43,636)
1,006 1,086 1,666 1,666 (470 (1.666)
144,446 172918 156,202 156,302 16,676 (6,302)
9,593,905 4,000,000 14,199,736 13,303,193 133,780 13,436,973 762,763 156,932
5,000,000 1,000,000 6,505,500 8,066,629 B,066,629 (1.561,129) (2,066,629)
1,100,000 1,100,000 44,706 44,706 1,045,294 1,055,294
1,000,000 1,530,511 2,565391 3,565,391 (1,034,230} (L565.391)
630,000 680,000 412,645 300318 712,963 Q2963) 32,963)
300,000 300,000 - 300,000 300,000
230,000 250,000 99,484 99,484 150,516 150,516
235,000 235,000 - 235,000 235,000
185,000 185,000 91,500 91,3500 93,500 93,500
3,000,000 3,000,000 936918 956,918 2,043,082 2,043,082
2,700,000 2,700,000 2824554 2,824,354 124,554) (124,554)
2,500,000 2,500,000 720994 720,994 1,779,006 1,779,006
250,000 250,000 349,899 549,898 299,899) {299,299
450,900 450,000 - 430,000 430,000
325,600 525,000 1,265,321 1,265,821 M0.821) {140.821)
850,000 850,000 TRLE05 782,695 67,305 67,305
400,000 1464214 1,563,183 1,563,183 (98,969) (1,163,133
1,023,968 1,023,968 227,754 227,734 796,214 96,214
446,181 109,373 109375 336,806 109,375
18,572,348 18,582,092 291,538 15,293,226 13,584,754 2997008 2987584
49,044, £19 5,001,096 57,294,228 34,316,637 15,727,324 30,042,961 7.190,442 3,721,260
$§ 49,044,619 } 1],7145669 ¥ 101,633,592 $ 78,590,584 - 16,478,682 $ 05069266 § giﬁ}w 3 320499
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES
BY PROJECT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BY PROJECT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Diaster Bradie Gerages Orleans Rd Fema Evitts Eron MTA Bridge
Recovery Koad Creek SS Bridge Traver Park  Creek  Dry Run ACM Rau Hub Ind Park
REVENUES; (4085) (4149) {4150) {408B) {4151) (408Q) _ (409L) (4140) (4142) _ (421C) (408C)

Intergovernmental:
Federal:
FEMA 5 . H $ 650,000 §% - % - - % - % - 8
CDBG 5 24,560
Highway § 125745
State:
Dept of Natural Resources 145,548
State Highway . E
MD Transit 24,735
Dther Agencies
Service charges - - - 11,210 - - - - - -
Misceilaneous:
Interest - - - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revemues - 145,548 - 125,745 586,170 - - - -~ 24,735 -

EXPENDITURES:

Public Safety - 679,521 . . : . -

Public Works 145,548 69,943 241 16,490

General Govt . - - - - a

Rec & Culture

Education - - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures - 145,548 69,043 241 679,521 - - - N 16,490 -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES):
Transfers-in from:
General Fund - - - - - - - - -
Other funds - - - - - - -
Transfer Qut - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources and Uses - - - ! - - - - - - - -

Net change in fund balances - - (69.943) 125,504 6,649 - - - - 8,245 -

Fund Balance, beginning 200 - - (767,909} - (200 (715) _ (12,533) 10,063 _ (109%4)  (25,039)
Fund Belance, Ending § 200§ - 5 (69943) § (642405) § 6649 § (200) §_(715) § (12533) § 10,063 § (3,749) § (35,099)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL FROJECTS FUND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BY PROJECT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Allegany snafm PR Water Tree Frostburg Faral Old Borden Cumb St Alleg HS
High School  Stream ACM BS Bridge Fairgrounds  Stody Planting Pond Legacy  Miller  Tunnel LwC Bridge Demo Fund
(408H) {408X) (4141) (4143} (408F) (409T) (408 {408Y) (40BW) _ (4144) _ (4145) {1146} {4147} (4148) Tatal

] - 8 1 - 8 - 8 - 5 - i H H E | - 3 - § 650,000
24,960

3 53,753 179,498

11,509 157,057

24,135

105,035 18,300 68,430 191,765

- 8,425 : - - - 19,635

- 11,509 - 105,035 8425 - - - - - 72,053 - 68,430 - 1,247,650

- - : . - z - - - - . 679,521

6,084 89,874 - 347 53,961 382,488

29,644 29,644

55,131 47,125 102,256

- - - - - - - - - 972,541 97541

- 6,084 . £9,874 25,644 - 347 - - - 55,131 47, IZS & a 2,16_6,150

16,941 16,951

- - - - - - - - - - 16,951 - - - 16,951

- 5425 - 15161 21,219) - (347 - - - 187 @7,125) 14469 (572,541) (901,84%)
(906} (726) __(119,531) _ (30,337y _ (114,591) 19,587 1,742 _ (1,026) 101,778 (52) _ (33,873) (75,769) _ (14.469) (56,733) __ (1,136,033)
S {906) § 4699 S {“9 531‘ ‘lsil‘lq s135|810! $ 19,587 § 1305 l|395 [ sl,m; 3 101im $ ‘522 § - 3 (122i894) § - § s1i029£74l $ ;&osv.xsz!
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REVENUES:

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
PAY-AS-YOU-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Roads

Paving
Program

(418R)

Computer
Network
(4181)

Dam's
Mountain
Tower
(421B)

LaVale
Storm
Drains
(4200)

Gen Ledger Public Safety
Software  Emergency
Upgrades Capital
{4208) (420V)

Caretaker Road
House Improv
(420Y) {4203)

Intergovernmental:
Federal grants:
RDA grant
Homeland Security
State grants:
Maryland highway grant
Misc State Grant
Statc Highway Users Tax
Other Agency
Miscellaneous:
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

General Government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation & culture
Education

Total Expenditures

46,595

46,595

OTHER FINANCENG SOURCES and (USES):

Transfers-in from:
Generat fund
Other funds
Trangfers -out to:
Other funds
Debt proceeds, capital lease
Total Other Financing
Sources and Uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, beginning
Adjustment
Fund Balance, Ending

73,500

73,500

200,000 424,389

73,500

(73,500)

(7,800) - (46,595)

209222 (20363) 100,458 (10,385 (35,100)

$200,000 3 424,989

$201422 § (20,363) § 100458 _§ (10,385 § (81,695)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPTTAL PROJECTS FUND
PAY-AS-YOU-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total
County Rocky Gap Rocky Gap PAYGO
Sheriff Bridge St Drainage Fiber ‘Washington Building Mt Savage Slots Slots Capital
K9 Bridge Improvements Infrastructure Library St Columns Allconet Improv Roof Bd of Ed County Projects
(4218) (4207 (4208) (4214) (421F) (4204) (4211) {4181) (4210) (421M) {421N) Fund
H - § - 8 - 8 $ $ -
100,000 100,000
- Z _ . - - - 100,000 - - : 100,600
a ‘ 186,313 . . 186,313
826 - - - - ; : 826
B , - s 54,395
826 - - - - - - 186,313 - - - 241,54
1,663 80,000 80,000 235,163
- - (75,163) E - - . - (75,163)
- - - (75,163} - - - 1,663 - 80,000 80,000 160,000
(826) - - (75,163) - - . {84,650) - 80,000 80,000 18,466
5,856 (29,672) (28,425) 75,163 6,753 (2) 49,920 176,752 125,000 60,597 162,765 1,400,028
(6.753) (6.753)
$ 5030 § 539!672! 5 538.4252 $ - % - § sz) $ 499520 § 92|102 3 125!000 $ l40!597 $ 242!765 $ 15411!142
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY WATER DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

General Barton Ind. Mexico Franklin/ Bowling Bowman's
Operating Grahamtown  Consol Park Farms  Brophytown Green Addition  Cresaptown
OPERATING REVENUES: _ 5011 S01A 501B 501C 50112 501E 501F 501G 501H
Setvice charges § 28913 § 146174 § 39,130 § 16018 $ 61,379 § 37,329 § 454,014 § 142429 $ 762,801
Miscellaneous 26,315 -
Total Operating Revenues 55,228 146,174 39,130 16,018 61,379 37,329 454,014 142,429 762,801
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries . 19,925 5392 13,362 63,135 19,613 61,416
Fringe benefits - 11,843 3,205 7,942 37,526 11,657 36,504
Utilities - 58,915 15.418 63,689 13,604 176,157 73,811 588,899
Repairs and maintenance 7,100 1,921 4,761 22,496 6,988 21,883
Professional fees 388 105 260 1,228 382 1,195
Materials and supplics - 2,332 631 1,564 7,390 2,296 7,189
Indirect cost - 8,631 2,335 5,788 27348 8,495 26,603
Miscellaneous - 175 48 17 552 172 537
Depreciation 41,431 18,712 44,422 45,689 114,473 74,119 50,798
Total Operating Expenses - 150,740 47,766 44,422 143,170 13,604 450,305 197,533 795,025
Operating Income (Loss) 55,228 (4,566) (8,636) (28,404) (81,791) 23,725 3,709 (55,104) (32,224)
NON-QPERATING REVENLE (EXPENSES):
Interest income 7,643 2,179 S0t 3,921 7,725 3,725 11,154
Interest expense (2,455) (19,853) {3,626) (12,781) (12,064) - - (30,333) (34,592)
Total Non-operating
Revenue {Expenses) 5,188 (17,674} (3,125) (12,781} (8,143) - 7,725 (26,608) (23,438)
Income Before Contributions
and Transfers 60,416 (22,240) (i1,761} {41,185) (89,934) 23,725 11,434 (81,712) (55,662)
Capita! Contributions:
Federal grants . . - : - - 88,895
State grants - : - : - -
Other governments . . - - - - -
Transfers in:
General fund - - - - -
SR-CDBG
Revolving Building Furd 19,348
Transfers Out -
Change in Net Position $ 60416 § (222400 §_(1L761) § (21,837) & (89934) $_ 23,725 8 100,329 (81,712) $_ (55,662)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY WATER DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION :
PROFRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Rorden/
Mt Bedford MF Rawlings Oldtown Route 36 Zhilman/  Carlos/Shaft/
Savage Road Industrial Water Road McCoole Ellerslie Eckhart Hoffman Vale Swnmit Morantown Klondike
501J 501K 501P S501R 5012 5013 5014 5015 5016 5017 5018 5019 Total
250691 % 38,854 473,705 § 216,096 200,482 § 168353 § 383,778 § 300715 § 8810 § 62322 % 120,501 § 201,985 § 4,150,479
26,315
259,691 38,854 473,705 216,096 209,482 168,353 383,778 309,715 8,310 62,322 129,501 201,985 4,176,794
33,443 4,610 27,270 20,692 25,395 54,540 39,069 1,250 8,048 18,597 27,895 452,653
19,878 2,740 16,209 17,648 15,094 32417 23,222 743 4,784 11,054 15,580 269,046
4,059 28,011 379,263 3,310 T7476 48,094 161,955 105,925 3,491 34,380 163,630 85,439 2,085,525
11,916 1,643 9,717 10,580 9,048 19,433 13,921 445 2,868 6,626 9,939 161,284
651 90 530 578 493 1,061 760 24 157 362 543 8,804
3915 540 3,192 3476 2,973 6,384 4,573 146 942 2177 3,265 52,985
14,486 1,997 11,812 12,861 11,000 23,625 16,923 542 3,486 8,055 12,083 196,070
292 60,599 239 259 221 3,525 34 11 70 162 244 67,564
60,435 50,697 278,859 100,321 08,978 164,376 77,829 4,037 47,397 36,352 96,236 1,435,161
179,074 150,925 379,263 351,139 252,892 211,296 467,317 282,562 10,689 102,132 247,015 252,224 4,729,003
80,617 (112,071) 94,442 (135,043) (43,410) (42,944) (83,539) 27,153 (1,879) (39,810) (117,514) 550,239! { 552,300)
6,025 653 145 5,028 3,174 3,172 6,822 5,990 206 690 2,566 4,052 75,371
(63,875) (450) (12,905) _ (157%0) _ (33,106) - (16627 - (15797 _(30,068) (304,322)
{57,850) 203 145 (7,877) _(12616) _ (29.938) 6,822 (10,637) 206 690 (13231) _(26016) __ (228,951
22767 (111,868) 94,587 (142920)  (56,026) (12878 (76717 16516  (L673)  (39,120)  (130.745)  (76,259) (781,251)
- 88,895
- - 0
- - = - . 0
- - s - - 0
0
19,348
- 0
$ 22,767 § (111,868) 94,587 $ (142,920} ( 56,026 ) $ (72878) 8 (76,717) § 16,516 $ (1,673) § 539.120! $ (130,745) § !76,255! (673,008)
40,562,088

Total net position - beginning
Total net position - ending

$ 30,889,080
—————
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Jermings
General Bowling Braddock Bedford Run/Wills
Fund Green Cresaptown Run Road Creek McCoole Oldtown
OPERATING REVENUES:; 511 516 517 518 519 520 521 522
Service charges 12,941 § 412955 § 382,739 § 1,303,032 § 542,874 % 499,579 71,044 $ 20,219
Miscellancous 18,639 28,166
Total Operating Revenues 31,580 412,955 382,739 1,331,198 542,874 499,579 71,044 20,219
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wages and salaries 4,777 125,236 112,548 131,804 174,942 158,075 25,406 6,568
Employee benefits 2,595 68,043 61,150 71,612 95,050 85,886 15,977 3,568
Office expenses 345 9,050 8,133 9,524 12,641 11,423 2,125 475
Utilities 1,971 51,673 46438 54,383 72,182 65,222 12,133 2,710
Repairs and maintenance 1,908 50,028 44,959 57,781 69,884 63,146 11,747 2,624
Water/Sewapge treatment costs 9,059 237,512 213,449 249,968 331,781 299,792 55,769 12,456
Professional fees 143 3,762 3,380 3,959 5,254 4,748 883 197
Materials and supplies 1,631 42,765 38,432 45007 59,738 53,978 10,041 2,243
Insurance 598 15,687 14,098 16,510 21913 19,800 3,683 §23
Indirect cost 1,920 50,333 45,234 52,973 70,310 63,531 11,818 2,640
Miscellaneous 100 2,627 2,361 2,765 3,670 3,316 617 138
Depreeiation 3,491 95,558 85,757 278,020 204,876 230,117 52,373 18,580
Total Operating Expenses 28,539 752,273 675,939 974,305 1,122,242 1,059,033 206,572 53,020
Operating Income (Loss) 3,041 (339,318) (293,200) 356,893 {579,368) {559,454) (135,528) {32,801)
NON-OPERATING REVE XPENSES):
Real and personal property taxes 198,629 183,217 189,548 136,092 54,304 4,597 946
Interest & Penalties, taxes - 7,105 6,641 6,555 5490 4,725 265 49
Discounts, taxes {1,086) (929) (1,093) (763) 21 (26) %)
Collection fees (4,686) {4.218) {4,392) (3.292) (1,318) an @
Front footage assessments - - - - 14,931 -
Interest income 7,183 8,162 6,207 13,465 10,655 1,228 1,092
Interest income, debt service . . .
Tnterest expense (8,260) {40,255) (37.159) (67.566) 21,197 (16,142) - -
(Gain {Loss) on disposal of assets -
Total Nonoperating revenue {expenses) {8,260} 166,890 155,714 129,319 129,795 66,881 5,947 2,058
Income Before Contributions and Transfers (5,219) (172,428) (137,486) 486,211 (449,573) (492,573) (129,581) (30,743)
Capital Contributions:
Federal - 328,241
State - -
Other
Transfers in 3,099 5,130
Transfers out (3,099)
Change in Net Position {2.120) (172,428) (137,486) 816,483 (449,573) (492,573) (125,581) (30,743)
Net position - beginning 3,018,673 1,512,078 2,615,469 1,452,393 {1,797,306) (2,436,203) (1,046,797) (736,554)

Net position - ending

3016553 5 1,330,650 § 2,477,983 §

— |

7308876 S (4.046879) $_(2028,776) $_(LI76378) § _(767.297)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Celancse Cash Barton
Georges Franklin/ Treatment Mexico Valley Oldtown Industrial Total
Flintstone Creck Brophytown Plant Farms Road Road Park All
523 524 525 526 527 528 529 530 Districts
$ 39,726 § 978,134 $ 53,331 § 569,936 $ 377,783 § 22381 § 117,667 $ 7736 $ 5412077
26,900 - 73,705
39,726 978,134 53,331 596,836 377,783 22,381 117,667 7,736 5,485,782
10,897 294,207 11,941 28,361 11,941 45,377 1,146,080
5,920 159,849 6,488 15,409 6,488 24,655 622,690
787 21,260 863 2,049 263 3,219 82,816
4496 121,391 4,927 11,702 4927 18,723 472,878
4,353 117,527 4,770 11,329 4,770 18,127 462,953
20,666 557,969 22,647 53,787 22,647 86,059 2,173,560
327 8,837 359 852 359 1,363 34,423
3,721 100,464 4,078 9,684 4,078 15,495 391,355
1,365 36,852 1,496 3,552 1,496 5,684 143,557
4379 118,244 4,799 11,398 4,799 18,238 460,617
229 6,172 251 595 251 952 24,042
27,456 1,051,181 13,388 457,145 47,776 22,502 77,098 48,558 2,713,875
84,595 2,593,952 76,007 457,145 196,495 85,121 315,049 48,558 8,728,847
(44,869) (1,615,818) (22,676) 139,692 181,288 (62,740) {197,382) (40,822) (3,243,065}
1,288 318,962 2,022 10,316 12,425 36,385 1,148,731
152 19,995 58 374 975 900 - 53,284
) {1,677 3 - (59 53) (207} (6,122)
(35) {7.908) (48) - (250) (325) (830) (27,443)
- - - - - 14,931
1,082 29,613 684 17.682 5,549 716 1,691 - 105,009
- - : - . 0
(79,825) - (26,163) (3.920) (15.482) - (315,966)
2,480 279,160 2,713 (8,481) 15,930 3818 22 457 - 972,424
(42,329) (1,336,658) {19,963) 131,211 197,218 (52,922) (174,925) (40,822) (2,270,641)
. - 328,241
- 90,000 - 90,000
- - - - 1}
43,784 48,000 100,013
(3,099)
(42,389) (1,336,658) (19,963} 264,995 197,218 (52,922) (174,925) 7,178 (1,755,485)
(517,822) 26,428,921 748,630 12,174,800 2,731,383 49,144 1,182,135 892,491 46,311,436
0
— — PR
$§_(560211) § 75002,263 § 728,667 § 12,439,795 § 2928601 § 53,778! $~ 1007210 $ 899,669 3 44 555,947
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

CUSTODIAL FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Balance Balance
ASSETS: July 1, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021
Taxes levied for State:
Taxes receivable - State $ 618,168 b 4,241,055 $ 4,336,402 5 522,821
Bay restoration fee 517,060 1,363,666 1,373,302 507,424
Other receivables (8,682) (8,682)
Taxes levied for Special Areas:
Lonaconing, Town of 45,845 141,842 148,319 39,368
Midland, Town of 14,680 40,562 42,123 13,119
Westernport, Town of 92,595 385,277 398,247 79,625
Barton, Town of 9,115 29,909 30,271 8,753
Cumberland differential 738 - 738
Bel Air Special Tax Area 1,386 34,365 34,358 1,393
Bowling Green Fire Co. 4,334 46,483 46,820 3,997
Bedford Road Fire Co. 6,366 45,197 46,663 4,900
Bowting Green Special Tax Arca 3,719 21.402 22,191 2,930
Cresaptown Ambulance 14,580 138,844 140,381 13,043
Cresaptown Civic Imp. Assoc. 4,958 32,511 32,262 5,207
Cresaptown Fire Co. 18,335 181,513 183,400 16,448
Corriganville Light & Imp. 3,984 23,519 24,088 3,415
Ellerslie Special Tax Area 1,310 10,635 10,860 1,085
LaVale Volunteer Fire Dept. 24,654 189,000 189,402 24,252
LaVale Rescue Squad 12,332 93,368 93,567 12,133
LaVale Sanitary District 51,162 448,819 449,635 50,346
McCoole Special Tax Arca 1,476 4,439 4,832 1,083
Moscow Light 784 3,232 3,571 445
M. Savage Special Tax Area 3,668 10,853 11,552 2,969
Potomac Park Special Tax Area 1,858 15,731 16,053 1,536
Rawlings Fire Co. 8,791 69,863 70,859 7,795
Sub-total special areas 326,670 1,967,364 1,999,454 294,579
Due from other funds 226,150 7,491,259 7,148,147 569,261
Total Assets $ 1,679,368 $ 15,063,344 $ 14,857,305 $ 1,885,357
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 217,571 $ 7,606,155 $ 7,263,653 3 560,074
A/P Special Areas 326,512 2,014,848 2,046,335 295,026
Taxes payable - State 618,171 4,233,861 4,329,207 522,826
A/P Bay restoration fee 517,063 1,486,411 1,496,046 507,429
Total Liabilities $ 1,679,319 $ 15,341,275 $ 15,135,241 $ 1,885,357
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Primary Government

At June 30, 2021 Net
Accumulated Net Book Value
ASSETS Cost Depreciation Book Value June 30, 2020
Land $ 27,211,512 § - $ 27211512 § 26,562,657
Construction in progress 3,642,781 - 3,642,781 3,779,250
Buildings 65,770,724 33,813,194 31,957,530 31,952,837
Infrastructure 54,996,930 35,764,927 19,232,003 20,061,079
Furniture & fixtures 1,054,110 1,026,781 27,329 33,047
Machinery & equipment 22,465,004 16,212,453 6,252,551 7,523,319
Vehicles 14,819,200 10,830,065 3,989,135 3,494,719
Heavy equipment 5,948,436 4,368,112 1,580,324 1,234,044
Other capital assets 1,251,821 925,054 326,767 374,271
Total Assets $ 197,160,524 5§ 102,940,591 $ 94219933 §_ 95015223
FUND EQUITY
Investment in general capital assets acquired
before July 1, 1993 - source unidentified $ 6,915,024 § 8,174,952
Investment in construction in progress 1,892,137 1,892,137
Investment in general capital assets by source:
General Fund:
General revenues 17,093,236 16,340,001
Federal grants 4,311,989 4,311,989
State grants 2,849,831 2,849,831
Miscellaneous revenues 761,252 765,526
Debt proceeds 1,575,512 1,575,512
Special Revenue Funds:
General revenues 54,293,960 54,093,940
Federal grants 7,021,555 6,956,592
State grants 8,402,527 8,323,808
Miscellanecus revenues 271,090 219,090
Debt proceeds 8,926,043 8,926,043
Other 1,477,222
Capital Project Funds:
General revenues 22,160,562 22,124,534
Federal grants 12,002,414 11,349,287
State grants 28,025,045 27,954,802
Miscellaneous revenues 1,127,822 1,127,822
Debt procecds 19,743,149 17,143,163
Other 1,371,590 1,371,590
Less:
Accumulated depreciation (106,002,034)  (100,485,393)
Total Fund Equity $ 94219933 $ _ 95,015,223
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Statistical Section

This part of the Allegany County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
says about the County's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's
financial performance and well-heing have changed over time.

Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal Years. .. ......ccccoiviins evveeciis vnnnvinnens seeeeeenee F-5
Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years.......c.ccocei e v e F-6
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years........c.cccccciiiiiiiniins cvviiemienus seesieeenans F-9
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years............. .ccccooveeee veeeaeee. F=10

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County's most significant local
ravenue source, the property tax

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years.......... S S K]
Schedule of Property Tax Rates-Direct and Overlappmg, Last Ten Fiscal Years... S o U
Principal Property Tax Payers... et rerarar mrreneaeeeas F-15
Property Tax Levies and Collectlons TP U PP PRPPR PP o |

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's
current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to issue additional debt in the future

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years... e eeeee e e rer e are e crran F-1¢
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Qutstanding, Last Ten Flscal Years . F-20
Legal Debt Margin information, Last Ten Fiscal Years... F-21
Pledged Revenue Coverage, Last Ten Fiscal Years F-22

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and econamic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the County's financial activities take place.
Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Calendar Years..................ccoiiniinnncnn, F-25
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago.............ooiieiinnimuc s F-26

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the County's financial report relates to the services the County provides and the
activities it performs.
Full-time Equivalents County Government Employees by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Year  F-29
Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years ..............cccocc oo vcvececencne. . F-30
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years............cc.cocoocvveicennnn. F-31

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The
County implemented GASB Statement 34 in FY 2003; schedules presenting
govemment-wide information inciude information beginning in that year.
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Barton
Cumberland
Frostburg
Lonaconing
Luke
Midland
Westernpor}
Al Di Tax Rates (1
Barton
Cumberland
Frostburg
Lonaconing
Luke
Midiand
Westernport
Uricorporated
il im; 1
Sanitary Districts
Bedford Road
Bowling Green
Braddock Run
Cresaptown
Jonnings Run - Wills Creek
Cash Valley Subdistrict
MeCaole
Flintstone! Gilpin
Franklin/ Brophytown
Oidtown
George's Creek
Mexico Farms
Oldtown Road
Other Special Districts
Bedford Road Volunteer Fize Co
Bel Air Special Tax Area
Bowling Green and Roberts Place
Bowling Green Valuntesr Fire Co
Corriganville Light & Imp Assoc,
Cresaptown Ambulance Texing Ares
Cresap Civie Ip Assoc
Cresaptown Special Fire Tax Area
Ellerslie Special Taxing Area
LaVale Sanitary Commission
LaVale Fire Department
LaVale Volunteer Rescue Squad
MeCoole Special Taxing Area
Moscow Special Taxing Area
Mt Savage Specia? Taxing Area
Potomac Park Citizens Committee
Rawlings Special Fire Tax Area

Total County Direct Rate (1.5)

Notes;

(1) All tax rates are per § 10 of aszessed value
(2) Municipal tax retes are presented for informative purpose only znd are not included in the Teta! Coun
(3) County tax rates vary as 4 result of lax differentials provided to

2021

¢.1500
1.0595
0.6800
0.3509
1,204G
0.2800
0.600¢

0.8740
0.8166
0.8273
0.8422
0.8408
0.8740
0.8740
0.9750

0.1000
0.2500
0.0420
0.2500
0,0520
0.1860
0.0310
0.0160
06150
0.0330
0.2100
G.0519
0,1300

0.0400
0.0400
0,0550
0.0500
0.0700
0.0280
0.0500
0.0520
00300
0.0750
0.0400
0.0200
0.0400
90,1600
0.0400
0.0450
¢.1000

0.9852

Allegany County, Maryland
Schedule Of Real Property Tax Rates - Direct And Overlapping and the County Direct Rate

2020

0.1712
10595
0.660¢
0,3460
1.0577
0.2800
0.6000

1.3864
0.8223
0.8353
0.8526
0.3512
0.3864
0.8864
0.9750

0.1000
0.2500
0.0420
0.2500
0.0520
0.1860
0.031¢
c.0166
0.0190
0.0330
0.2100
C.0310
0.1300

0.0400
0.0400
0.0550
0.0400
1.0600
0.028¢
0.0500
0.0520
0.0300
0.0650
0.0400
0.0200
0.0400
0.1000
0.0400
0.0450
0.1000

0.9871

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2019

0.1712
1.0595
0,6600
0.3460
1.0601
0.2300
0.6000

0.8963
0.2385
0.8494
0.864
0.8620
0.8963
0.3963
0.9750

0.1000
0.2500
0.0420
0.2500
0.0520
0.1360
0.0310
0.0160
0.019¢
0.0330
0.2160
0.0510
01300

00400
0.040¢
0.0550
0.0400
0.0600
0.0280
0.0500
0.0520
0.0300
0.0550
0.040¢
0.0200
0.0400
0.1006
0.0400
0.0450
4.10C0

09921

2018

Q.1736
1.0595
0.6600
0.3512
1.0604
02800
0.6000

0.3343
0.8324
0.8405
0.8573
0,8551
0.8343
0.8843
0.9760

0.1000
02500
0.0420
02500
00520
0.1860
0.0310
0.C160
06190
00330
02100
o510
0.1360

0.0400
0.040G
0.0550
0.0400
0.0500
0.0289
0.0500
0.0520
0.0300
0.0530
0,6400
0.0200
0.0400
6,1200
0.0400
0.0450
0.1200

0.9885

residing in

207

0.1727
0.9654
0.6400
0.3498
L0600
0.2300
0.6600

0.3935
0,3452
0.8530
0.8696
0.8670
0.8935
0.3935
0.9770

0,1000
0.2500
0.0070
0.2500
0.0520
0.1860
0.0310
0.1600
4,0190
0.0330
0.2100
9.051¢
0,1300

0.0400
0.6400
0.0650
0.0400
0.C600
0.0280
6.0500
0.0520
0.03¢3
0.0470
0.0400
1.0200
1.0400
0.1200
0.0400
0.0450
90,0800

0.9893

iy Direct Rate

2016

0.1718
0.9654
0.6200
0.3527
1.0809
0.2800
0.5000

08938
0.8486
0.8560
0.8714
0.8687
0.3938
0.8938
0.9780

0.1000
0.2500
C.0070
0.2500
0,0520
0.1860
0.0310
0.§600
0.6190
0.0330
0.2100
0.0316
0.1300

0.0400
0.0400
0.0650
0.0400
0.0660
00280
0.0500
0.0520
0.03900
0.0420
0.0400
0.0200
0.0400
0.120G
0.0400
0.450
0.0800

0.9899

20i3

6.1728
0.9654
0.5820
0.5552
0.7500
0.2300
0.6000

0.8976
0.8530
0.8597
0.876!
0.8735
0.8976
0.8347
0.9750

0.1000
0.2500
0.0070
0,2500
0.0520
0.1860
00310
0,500
0.0190
0.6330
92100
0.0510
0.1300

0.0400
G.0400
6.0650
0.04C0
0,0600
0.0280
0.0500
£.0520
0.0300
0.0520
0.0400
0.6200
0.0400
0.1200
0.0400
0.0450
0.0800

10035

2014

0.1649
0.9654
0.5665
0.3400
0.5500
0.2800
0,600

0.8910
0.8424
0.3497
0.3675
0.8645
0.8910
0.3745
.9300

0.1000
0.2500
0.0070
0.250¢
0.0520
0.1860
00310
G.1500
C.01%0
0.0330
0.2100
£.0510
0.2040

0.0400
0.0400
2.0650
6.0400
0.0600
0.0280
0.0500
0.0520
0.036C
0.0520

0.0400

0.0200
0.0400
0.1200
0.040C
0.045G
0.0800

0.9880

(4) Thirty special taxing ereas have besn established in the County. As provided by various stofutes, taxes are levied and assessed within the special taing areas to provide

for the ame

of tonded indek
{5) County direct rate includes County taxes levied for the County and the special texing Brens,
of gpecial taxing districts, the direct rate includes & provated portion of the tax rate thas corresponds to the pertion of the County's assessable base against which the tax is

d of sanitary di

levied, Therefore, the total County direct rate presented above is not & mathematical sum of al! of the individual rates presented.

Source: Allegany County Finance Department; Maryland State Assessment Office
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#nd to pay for the protection, street lighting and other civil services,
it does not include thxes levied by the munigipalities. For taxes levied on behsif

2013
0.1662
0.9654
0.5665
0.2400
0.5500
0.2860
0.6000

0.8892
0.8371
0.8436
0.8655
0.8620
0.8892
0,8702
0.9810

01000
0.2500
0.0070
0.2500
0,0520
G.1860
0.0310
01550
6.0190
0.0330
0.2100
00510
00770

0.0400
0.0450
90,0650
0.0400
0.0600
©.0230
0.6500
0.0520
0.0300
0.0330
0.0400
0.0200
0,0400
0.1200
0.0400
0.0450
0.0800

C.9877

0.1769
0.9554
0.5665
0.3400
0.5500
0.2800
0.6000

0.9638
0.8519
0.857%
0.8334
0.8799
0.9038
0.8854
0.9820

0.1000
0.2500
0.0070
0,2506
0.0520
0.186¢
0.0310
0.1500
0.0190
0.0330
90,2100
0.0510
G.0770

0.6420
0.0400
0.6550
0.0400
0.06C0
0.0280
0.0500
0.0520
0.0400
0.100C
0.0400
0.0296
0.0400
0.1200
0.0400
0.0450
0.0800

0,9997



Allegany County, Maryland
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2021 2012
Percentage Percentage
of County of County
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Columbia Gas of Maryland 78,510,620 1 2.04% 24,450,160 7 0.62%
Potomac Edison Co 70,295,080 2 1.82% 44 209,560 4 1.12%
AES WR Limited Partnership $ 52,790,794 3 1.37% 75,140,027 1 1.90%
CSX Transportation 40,895,160 4 1.06% 31,613,397 6 0.80%
New Page (Mead/Westvaco/\erso) 28,805,370 5 0.77% 62,921,022 2 1.59%
Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line 27,735,880 6 0.72% 45,922 230 3 1.19%
Country Club Mall Realty LLC 23,460,633 7 0.61% - 0.00%
Western MD Health System 21,199,160 8 0.55%
LaVale Associates 17,644,967 9 0.46% 32,556,800 5 0.82%
Allegany Coal-Land 15,549,479 10 0.40% 14,853,762 10 0.38%
Hunter Douglas Northeast, Inc. 16,045,060 9 0.41%
Verizon-Maryland (Beil Atlantic) 24,225,970 8 0.61%
Total $ 377,887,243 9.80% $ 372,937,988 9.44%

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office

Note: Total county taxable assessed value includes real estate and personal property
Largest assessed properties are not necessarily the largest taxpayer due to tax exemptions
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Allegany County, Maryland
Property Tax Levies and Collections
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property
Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections Grand Total Information
Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent in Subsequent Percentage
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Coliectlons of Levy
2012 33,037,418 30,657,037 92.49% (43,963) 2,425 829 32,993,455 32,982,866 99.97%
2013 32,760,110 30,023,529 81.65% (23,154) 2,702,328 32,736,056 32,725,858 98.97%
2014 32,815476 30,180,373 02.56% (31,183) 2,379,486 32,584,283 32,568,859 99.95%
2015 32,363,414 29,837,271 ©2,19% (17,501) 2,484,011 32,345,913 32,321,282 99.92%
2018 32,407,750 29,866,195 92.16% (19.852) 2,488,077 32,387,808 32,354,272 99,90%
2017 32,533,553 30,119,478 92.58% (23,519) 2,344,981 32,510,034 32,484,459 99.86%
2018 31,928,262 29,405,769 92.10% (15,588) 2,445,033 91,912,704 31,850,802 99.81%
2019 32,200,047 29,636,851 82.04% (52,066) 2,434,723 32,147,991 32,071,574 99.76%
2020 32,253,424 29,278,582 80.78% (8,062) 1,741,614 32,244,362 31,020,176 86.20%
2021 32,569,381 30,041,196 92.24% 32,560,391 30,041,196 92.24%
Personal Property and Corporate Personal Property
Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections Grand Total Information
Ended for the Percentage In Subsequent in Subsequent Percentage
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Collections of Levy
2012 8,281,531 7,494,836 90.50% (33,772) 715,784 8,247,759 8,210,620 98.55%
2013 8,027,385 7,204,178 89.75% 13,477 795,616 8,040,862 7,099,604 99.49%
2014 8,294,170 7,770,966 93.69% (311,470) 181,369 7,982,700 7,852,335 99.62%
2015 8,022,818 7,682,332 95.76% (8,269) 301,762 8,014,530 7,084,094 99.62%
2018 7,832,203 7,650,047 97.69% 17,740 169,271 7,649,943 7,820,218 99.62%
2017 7,854,575 7,718,722 098.27% (37.428) 48,865 7,817,149 7,767,587 99.37%
2018 7,422,103 7,176,320 96.69% 70,861 286,949 7,492 964 7,463,269 99.60%
2019 7,802,902 7,548,080 965.71% (9,208} 189,957 7,793,604 7,736,017 99.26%
2020 7,951,402 7,017,348 88.25% 54,958 843,812 8,006,380 7,861,161 98.19%
2021 8,770,988 8,453,667 96.38% 8,770,985 8,453,607 96.38%
Total Taxes Levied
Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections Grand Total Information_
Ended for the Percentage in Subseguent in Subsequent . Percentaga
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Collactions of Levy
2012 41,318,949 38,051,873 92.09% (77.735) 3,141,813 41,241,214 41,193,485 99.88%
2013 40,787,495 37,227,707 91.27% {9,677) 3,497,845 40,777,818 40,725,552 99.87%
2014 40,800,646 37,960,339 92.79% (342,663) 2,560,855 40,566,583 40,521,184 99.89%
2018 40,388,233 37,519,603 92.90% (26,790) 2,785,773 40,360,443 40,305,376 99.86%
2016 40,239,053 37,517,142 93.23% (2,112) 2,657,348 40,237,841 40,174,40C 99.84%
2017 40,388,128 37,838,200 93.69% (60,945) 2,303,846 40,327,183 40,232,048 99.78%
2018 39,350,395 36,582,089 92.96% 55,273 2,731,982 39,405,668 39,314,071 99.77%
2019 40,002,949 37,182,811 92.95% (61,264) 2,624,680 39,041,685 30,807.581 99.66%
2020 40,204 826 36,295,811 90.28% 45,898 2,585,428 40,250,722 36,881,337 96,60%
2021 41,340,377 38,494,803 93.12% - - 41,340,377 38,494,893 93.12%

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office & Allegany County Finance Office
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Allegany County, Maryland
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Per
Personal Capita Public
Income Personal School Unemployment
Year Population in 000s Income Enroliment Rate
2012 74,692 2,453,991 32,855 8,414 8.02%
2013 74,012 2,400,000 32,000 8,409 8.60%
2014 73,521 2,659,178 35,929 8,349 7.20%
2015 72,952 2,958,277 40,551 8,357 7.30%
2016 72,528 3,014,191 41,559 8,317 6.40%
2017 72,130 2,975,363 41,250 8,212 5.80%
2018 71,614 2,815,878 39,320 8,191 6.10%
2019 70,975 2,875,694 40,517 8,070 5,80%
2020 70,416 2,191,024 41,454 7,982 9.70%
2021 70,057 3,080,438 43,970 8,075 7.40%

Source - Population, personal income and per capita - Bureau of Economic Analysis
Public Schoo! Enroliment - Alegany County Board Of Education-Does not include Pre-K
Unemployment Rate - Maryland Department Of Labor, Licensing and Regulation
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Employer

Western Md Heaith Systems (UPMC)
Allegany County Board Of Education
Northrum Grumman{ATK Tactical )
Frostburg State University

Hunter Douglas

New Page Corporation (VERSO)
CSX Transportation

Western Correctional Institution
North Branch Correctional institution
American Woodmark

Allegany College

Total

Source: Aliegany County Economic Development Office and Maryland Department of Business &
Economic Development.

Allegany County, Maryland
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

F-26

2021 2012
I-’ercentage F'ercenmge
Of Total Of Total
County County
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
2,200 1 6.14% 2,290 1 6.67%
1,350 2 3.77% 1,346 3 3.92%
1,050 3 2.93% 1,396 2 4.06%
1,003 4 2.80% 922 4 2.68%
900 5 251% 580 7 1.69%
0.00% 870 6 2.53%
635 6 1.77% 900 5 2.62%
588 7 1.84% 552 10 1.61%
574 8 1.60% 557 9 1.62%
572 9 1.60%

509 10 1.42% 559 8 1.63%

9,381 26.18% 9,972 29.03%



OPERATING INFORMATION
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